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Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its subsidiaries as
a Group is a leading semiconductor group specializing in the
design, development and sales of integrated circuits products and
system solutions that enable a wide range of display and touch
applications for smartphones, tablets, TVs/monitors, notebooks
and other smart devices, including wearables, electronic shelf
labels, healthcare devices, smart home devices, as well as
industrial appliances, etc.

VISION

Provide the ultimate silicon solution for every display system
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BISTABLE DISPLAY

Bistable display is a non-traditional display technology. It is a
display device illuminated by reflecting ambient light. Bistable
display offers paper-like readability, with features such as high
contrast, a wide viewing angle, reflectiveness, and readability under
sunlight. It is ultra thin and lightweight. Some bistable displays
can even be twisted out of shape. Moreover, system power can be
saved by the bistability characteristics, since the image remains on
display even after the panel power supply has been removed.

Solomon Systech develops the specialized Bistable Display Driver
Controllers to make this novel display technology a standard in low-
power-consuming displays. These highly integrated drivers consist
of MCU interface for command and image data input, display RAM
to buffer image data and high voltage driving outputs. To minimize
system cost and space, the drivers have built-in DC/DC converter
to supply high voltage to drive bistable display. These drivers
can be applied to different bistable display technologies, such as
Electrophoretic displays (EPD) and more.

In order to allow customers to verify the functions and customize
for his own interest, we can support various development platforms
for easy testing and development, and the display driver with MCU
board and USB interface can drive and simulate customers’ own
design by PC programming.

Applications

loT devices, electronic shelf labels (ESL), electronic signages for
POP/POS, e-book readers, smart watches/meters, health care
devices, mobile displays, indicators, smart cards, etc.
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MOBILE DISPLAY

Solomon Systech provides a wide range of Mobile display IC
solutions, including In-Cell Touch Display Driver IC (TDDI), TFT
Display Driver IC, STN Display Driver IC, MIPI Bridge IC, Display
Controller IC, LCD Touch Controller IC, Hi-speed interface IC
and Local Dimming MiniLED Backlight Product. They support
applications including smartphones, tablets, wearable, gaming and
loT devices etc.
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OLED DISPLAY

With the increasing popularity of smart IOT devices, more new
applications have adopted OLED to display operating status. In
addition, as the self-emissive OLED display is readable under any
light condition and inherent a wide operating temperature range,
it is suitable for outdoor applications even under severe weather
condition. Solomon Systech offers wide range of OLED driver ICs to
match with various kinds of applications.

Passive Matrix OLED Driver Controller

Solomon Systech continues to be the market leader in the Passive
Matrix OLED (“PMOLED”) display IC, which has competitive edge
in small size mobile display applications. A full range of PMOLED
driver ICs are available from icon, mono and gray scale to full color
with highly integrated features.

With the success of Solomon Systech’s OLED driver technology,
the PMOLED drivers employ a proprietary driving scheme to reduce
system power consumption and enhance display performance. They
are ideal display solutions for portable devices.

Applications

Smart home appliances, portable gadget, health care product, smart
power meter, industrial instrument, consumer appliance, remote
control, keypad, switch, etc.
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LARGE DISPLAY

Solomon Systech provides a wide range of large display driver IC
solutions, including source drivers, gate drivers, a GIP controller and
power IC. They support applications including monitors, notebooks,
large-size TVs, etc. in different resolutions of HD, FHD, QHD and
UHD 4K/8K.

Applications
Monitors, TV, notebooks, etc.
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AUTOMOTIVE DISPLAY

With huge development potential, automotive display is one of the
emerging applications that Solomon Systech has been actively
expanding into in recent years. We are preparing the validation
and mass production of several diversified and high performance
automotive display solutions in 2025, including touch and display
driver IC solutions for center console in the cabin of electric vehicles
and automotive driver IC solutions for standard automotive displays.
Our automotive display IC products provide excellent display
performance, support high-resolution, and are stable and reliable to
meet the stringent requirements of the automotive environment. The
touch driver IC solutions support a wide range of touch operations,
providing a smooth and responsive touch experience. Solomon
Systech will continue to invest in the research and development
of automotive displays to provide customers with high-quality and
reliable automotive display solutions.

EHAT

BEHETRARRE D  BREANOERE
BARROFEERES - RFRREEEBR
20258 BZEZHAL - SHENEHBERE
RERETRENEE  BEEARNERE
ERAPEENBEEIICHIE  URERAR
BESHBETFNEREHICHE - RPIRE
MEFHERCERREHEENBETIER  XE
BOBRE BEAE  REBRTNEHREE
R HRFREHICH R ESEBIZRE -
RERS BHNBZER - FPIBNRESEE
BRARBERBETINHR  AEFRHESA
B UENESERERIR-

06

Solomon Systech (International) Limited

| Annual Report 2024



CUSTOM ICS

We have specialized in designing, testing and delivering custom IC
for digital, analog and mixed-signal applications. With more than 20
years of display IC experience, our turnkey services have provided
one of the most convenient and easiest ways from ASIC to SoC
production. Our in-house experts and manufacturing partners have
strived to ensure the production quality of the IC tailored for our
customers with the provision of state-of-the-art test facilities.

MiniLED/ULED Custom Driver Controller

Nowadays, the fast-response and vivid color MiniLED/pLED display
is very popular for high resolution devices. In response to the
demand for MiniLED/ULED displays, Solomon Systech provides
custom display ICs design solution. Solomon Systech has rich
experience in both passive matrix, amorphous/LTPS/Oxide-TFT
driver design and owns a library featuring state-of-the-art IPs that
are tailor-made for MiniLED/ULED display. Combined with compact
design Solomon Systech drivers are the ultimate MiniLED/uLED
display driver solutions for the applications.

Hi-Speed Interface IC

Pioneering in MIPI solutions for display, Solomon Systech offers a
series of proprietary MIPI bridge IC that support high-resolution,
high-speed and low-power display of smart devices. Among our
solutions which all support AMOLED, a-Si LCD, metal oxide TFT
and LTPS LCD panel technologies, we boast the lowest power
consumption MIPI 8-lane transmitter in the world. In addition to
MIPI bridge IC, Solomon Systech also provides other custom hi-
speed interface IC solutions such as eDP, QSPI and LVDS to tailor
to individual needs.

Local Dimming MiniLED Backlight Product

Local dimming is the most effective technology to improve the
performance of LCD displays. The distinction between black and
white becomes stronger and the contrast of the display will be
increased with this technique. Solomon Systech’s Local Dimming
MiniLED Backlight Products control LED backlight array effectively.
Displays can be easily upgraded by replacing the MiniLED backlight
array modules with our local dimming solutions. While utilising
existing LCD Panel and structure can help save development time
and cost, visual performance comparable with OLED display can be
achieved with lower cost.

Applications
Mobile phone, tablet PC, TV, consumer appliance, ePaper/ESL,
portable game console etc.
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(A) Results ¥%&

2024 2023
US$ million ~ US$ million ~ Change %
ELESS BEER #BEsH

Revenue HER 113.4 153.2 -25.9%
Gross profit ES 38.0 46.3 -17.9%
Gross margin (%) EFE%) 335 30.3  3.2% point
BOH
Profit attributable to owners of the parent AAREE AREGER 10.1 19.4 -47.9%
Earnings per share (US cent) BREF (£4) 0.4 0.8
(B) Financial Position B35k
As at 31 December
W12831H
2024 2023
US$ million  US$ million ~ Change %
BEER BEEXT #BBESH
Total assets BEE 163.7 157.4 4.0%
Shareholders’ funds R 137.0 126.9 8.0%
(C) Financial Ratios Bf#tt &
As at 31 December
M2A31H
2024 2023
Current ratio RELLZE 6.17 4.96
Debt to equity ratio BRERLLE - 0.013
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' CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

| have great pleasure to present the Group’s annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2024.

2024 continued to be a year marked by both challenges and
opportunities, where difficulties coexisted alongside hopes. Due to
factors such as geopolitical tensions, sluggish economic growth
and the rise of trade protectionism, the global economic recovery
remained slow, leading to persistently weak market demand for
consumer electronics. However, it was encouraging to see that
the end products market successfully completed destocking in
most sectors in the second half of the year after experiencing
prolonged inventory adjustment, bringing a glimmer of hope for
industry recovery. In the complicated and ever-changing market
environment, the Group actively engaged in innovative research and
development (R&D) in various areas, committing to the development
of diversified chip solutions. By deepening partnerships, we have
built a more flexible and sustainable business ecosystem. These
initiatives have not only enhanced the Group’s competitiveness
but have also positioned us well for a future market filled with
opportunities.

Technology Driving Recovery and Rise of
Innovative Products

In 2024, the global semiconductor industry experienced a flat
trend due to the dual challenges of inventory adjustment and weak
end market demand. However, as the destocking cycle gradually
came to an end during the year, the market’s supply-demand
structure began to stabilise, showing early signs of recovery in
the industry. With their diversified product lines and presence in
global applications spanning consumer electronics, industrial and
automotive sectors, etc., IC design companies in the Asia-Pacific
region demonstrated strong resilience, supported by manageable
inventory levels and a resurgence in demand for personal devices.
International Data Corporation (IDC) forecasts that the Asia-Pacific
IC design market will see a rebound in 2025, with an expected
annual growth rate exceeding 15%, becoming a key driver for the
recovery of the global semiconductor industry.

As electronic paper technology rapidly advances, significant
breakthroughs have been made in overcoming the two key
bottlenecks of enlarging the size and enhancing the colors of the
products, and the global electronic paper market is poised for an
explosive growth in 2025. As forecasted by the Electronic Paper
Industry Alliance, the global market capitalisation of electronic
paper displays, known for low power consumption and flexible
human-machine interface, is expected to exceed USD$70 billion,
benefitting from the widespread adoption of 5G networks, a
sharp increase in Internet of Things (IoT) devices and the deeper
application of big data.

The OLED display, mobile display and mobile touch IC markets will
record a significant growth driven by technological innovation and
diverse application demands. As emerging display technologies
are widely used in smart phones, wearable devices, televisions,
automotive display and other aspects, the market demand for
display ICs, as the core driving component, will continue to rise.
The Business Research Company, a market research institution,
forecasts that the global display driver market capitalisation will
reach USD$9.39 billion by 2025 with an annual growth rate of 6%,
driven by the innovation in consumer electronics.
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Prioritising Scientific Research and
Innovation to Drive New Growth Momentum

The semiconductor market is developing rapidly, and the Group,
which has been deeply engaged in this sector for many years, fully
recognises the importance of technological innovation. Leveraging
our technological advantages and continuous R&D investment,
we have always been at the forefront of scientific research in the
industry. As a global leading supplier of display driver ICs, we are
committed to providing high-quality and reliable products to meet
our customers’ stringent requirements. Some models of small-
size four-color electronic paper labels supported by the Group’s IC
products had commenced mass production by the end of 2024. The
Company is actively engaging in new product R&D, and plans to
develop IC products supporting six to seven-color electronic display
labels in 2025, with mass production scheduled for the second
half of the year. In addition, the Group is closely monitoring the
application of OLED display IC in smart wearable devices and smart
home appliances, while continuously increasing R&D investment.
We have maintained the largest market share in the global
PMOLED display driver IC market, and successfully launched a new
generation of IC products supporting PMOLED transparent display
in 2024, further consolidating our leading position in the industry.

With the changing end demand in the consumer electronics market
and rapid development of intelligent driving, the Group is vigorously
expanding its competitive advantages in the fundamental sectors.
Solomon Systech offers a wide range of mobile display and mobile
touch IC solutions. In 2024, we partnered with several leading small
and medium-sized TFT-LCD panel manufacturers to jointly develop
a human interface display platform, which is expected to commence
mass production in the second half of 2025. Moreover, the Group
is developing a mini-LED backlight solution, with its supporting IC
products set to launch concurrently, mainly for automotive head-
up display (HUD) applications, to meet the demands for high-
performance display technology in the intelligent driving sector.

The Group has continued to advance in the development of large
display ICs, with project validation for a new generation P2P high-
speed transmission interface display IC set to commence in the
second quarter of 2025. Meanwhile, the first automotive integrated
driver IC developed by the Company is also scheduled for mass
production in 2025. The launch of such new products will facilitate
the Group to further expand market share in the large-display smart
devices sector, boost sales increase of OLED display ICs, and
solidify our leading position in the display technology sector.
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Looking ahead to 2025, the global economy is expected to
remain constrained by high costs, high debts and protectionism,
with persisting adjustment pressures. While the demand for end
products is anticipated to remain under pressure, we are cautiously
optimistic about the gradual recovery of the semiconductor market
in 2025, especially as industry inventories are brought under
control and the demand for personal devices begins to rebound.
We are confident in the Group’s future development. Leveraging
our strong R&D capabilities, extensive product portfolio, diverse
patent pipelines, comprehensive distribution network, and an
experienced management team with a global perspective, we
have established a solid competitive advantage. In the future, the
Group will uphold our enterprising spirit, formulate and implement
a sustainable development strategy, and continually enhance our
technological innovation capabilities. We will also vigorously expand
a diversified business and product portfolio, so as to flexibly cope
with the rapidly changing consumer demands. We will seize the new
opportunities brought by the development of digital economy and
consistently create long-term value for our shareholders.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, investors, customers,
suppliers, bankers and other partners for their continuing support.
With the advent of the digital economy era, the semiconductor
consumer market is poised for further expansion, bringing more
opportunities for both competition and cooperation in the industry.
We are committed to fully leveraging our technological leadership
and working together as a whole as we prepare to embrace a new
growth cycle in market demand.

Ma Yuchuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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Dear Shareholders,

In 2024, the global semiconductor industry faced an extremely
challenging macroeconomic environment. A combination of factors,
including geopolitical tensions, high inflationary pressure, and weak
end-market demand, exerted substantial pressure on the industry.
However, there were glimmers of hope amidst this adversity. After
a period of adjustment, the destocking cycle in the semiconductor
industry finally came to an end, gradually restoring a balance
in market supply and demand. The rapid growth of emerging
sectors injected new vitality into the industry. Despite the tough
external environment, the Group has consistently consolidated its
technological leadership by adhering to the concept of innovation-
driven development. At the same time, we are closely monitoring
market dynamics and adapting our operating strategies to sustain
business growth momentum and resilience in anticipation for an
industry recovery.

Stable Profitability Amid Surge in Large
Display IC Sales

During the year ended 31 December 2024 (the “Year under
Review”), the Group’s shipment volume decreased by 12.7%
year on year to approximately 293.2 million units due to delays in
launching new products. Meanwhile, the Group’s sales revenue
for the year decreased by 25.9% year on year to US$113.4
million, driven by lower average product prices and reduced
shipment volume amid ongoing price cuts of end products and
industry competition. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by 47.9% vyear on year to US$10.1 million. Earnings
per share for the year were 0.4 US cents. Despite pressures on
overall results, the demand for large-sized display products such
as monitors and smart TVs, surged during the Year under Review,
supported by a number of subsidy policies for home appliances
introduced in mainland China. This surge resulted in a significant
increase of more than 50% year on year in both the shipment
volume and revenue of the Group’s large display IC products. In the
past year, the Group also focused on stabilising its supply chain
by strictly managing inventory levels and continuously fostering
product innovation to enhance its competitive edge and maintain a
reasonable level of profitability. During the Year under Review, the
overall gross profit margin was maintained at approximately 33.5%,
up from the level in 2023.

Building on Technology Leadership to
Strengthen Business Foundation

As a global leader in the electronic paper industry, the Group
supported E Ink in developing the Display IC Solutions for Spectra™
3100, a next-generation e-ink platform, which has successfully
enabled a four-color spectrum display, reinforcing our leading
position in the ESL and retail signage markets. Following the launch
of the large-sized four-color display labels in the fourth quarter
of 2023, mass production of small-sized products commenced in
the fourth quarter of 2024. The Group has responded to market
changes by flexibly adjusting its product portfolio and continuously
developing new products while consolidating its business
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foundation. Since 2024, we have invested in the development of
IC products supporting six to seven-color electronic display labels,
e-book readers and ultra-large-size color electronic retail signages.
Some of the products were already launched in 2024 and we will
continue to roll out new products with mass production in the
second half of 2025. The breakthrough in color display technology
will greatly expand the applications for electronic display labels,
further increasing market penetration.

The Group offers a diverse range of OLED display driver IC
products, including PMOLED, mini/micro-LED and icon ICs, for
various applications. During the Year under Review, the market
demand for OLED display ICs surged due to the generation upgrade
of certain popular electronic products. The Group adeptly seized
this market opportunity, resulting in a slight increase in the shipment
volume of OLED display ICs. In terms of annual shipment volume,
the Group remains the world’s largest supplier of PMOLED display
driver ICs, maintaining a significant lead in market share.

Advancing Product Research and
Development to Expand Business
Advantages

The Group keeps abreast with technological advancements and
market trends, continuously focusing on innovative product
development. Leveraging its technological edge and intellectual
properties, the Group actively expands research and development
collaboration to accelerate its entry into target markets and achieve
promising returns in the less explored areas.

During the Year under Review, the Group co-developed a human
interface display platform with a number of leading TFT-LCD panel
manufacturers, which will enter mass production in the second half
of 2025. In addition, we are actively researching and developing the
application of mobile display and mobile touch ICs to a wider range
of areas. The Group is currently developing mini-LED backlight
solution, with the FPGA development platform already completed
and the production of conceptual product confirmed by the
customer. Following this, we will proceed to develop standard ICs.
The product is expected to be launched in the market in the second
half of 2025 for application in automotive head-up displays (HUD).

For large display ICs, the Group has been authorised by a major
Chinese display manufacturer to develop new generation point-
to-point (P2P) high-speed interface display driver IC. Prototypes
for project validation are expected to be produced in the second
quarter of 2025, which will enhance the competitiveness of
the Group’s products. The Group will continue to focus on the
medium and large display market while actively expanding into the
emerging automotive display market. In 2023, the Group signed
a memorandum of understanding on strategic cooperation with
a Shenzhen automotive display manufacturer and has begun
cooperation in the design and development of the first automotive-
specification integrated driver IC, which will be mass-produced in
2025 for use in major automotive systems.
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Future Prospect and Strategies

Looking ahead, the semiconductor and consumer electronics
industries will see new opportunities against the backdrop of global
economic uncertainty and technological innovation. Semiconductor
companies will gradually restore the balance between supply and
demand through inventory adjustments and technology shifts,
paving the way for industry recovery. China’s consumer electronics
market is set to expand steadily supported by technology diffusion
and policy support. Additionally, the restructuring of the global
supply chain will present new opportunities for Chinese enterprises,
allowing them to consolidate their global market positions through
technological innovation and globalisation.

To cope with changes in the economic environment and competitive
challenges, the Group continues to promote product innovation
and market expansion. In the electronic paper sector where the
Group is deeply engaged, the market for electronic paper labels
is transitioning from three-color to four-color display. Following
the successful launch of the Group’s four-color display ICs, the
Group will continue to advance the research and development
of six to seven-color display ICs, aiming for mass production
in the second half of the year. The Group is also committed to
applying electronic paper display technology to other products with
development potential, such as e-books. In addition, automotive
display is emerging as a key market for the Group. Currently, the
Group is accelerating the application of its innovative technologies
in high-end markets, including smart electronic products and
automotive electronics, through diversified customer engagement to
continuously enhance its market competitiveness.

In the face of global economic challenges, the Group maintains
a cautiously optimistic approach. We will continue to strengthen
our technological research and development capabilities, focus on
the development of high value-added products that meet market
demands while proactively exploring strategic opportunities to
create long-term growth momentum for the Group.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express my deepest
gratitude to the entire management team and staff. Their unwavering
professionalism and dedication have been essential in driving the
steady development of the Group amidst the uncertain external
environment. At the same time, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to our shareholders, investors and partners for their long-
term trust and support. In the future, we will continue to embrace
the concept of openness and collaboration, and work with all parties
to deepen value creation and seize the development opportunities in
the new cycle of the industry.

Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

Business Review

In 2024, the global economy continued its slow recovery. Although
trade picked up and inflation began to ease in the second half
of the year, the world economy remained challenging, with trade
protectionism continuing to affect the global supply chain and
countries undergoing a difficult adjustment period in their economic
policies. China’'s economic growth continued to slow, and consumer
demand remained under pressure due to weak domestic demand
and the ongoing downturn in the real estate sector. After a long
period of excess inventory in the end products market, most
industries completed destocking in the second half of 2024 and
resumed placing orders upstream. Despite the ongoing price
reductions in end products, the Group managed to alleviate cost
pressure as a result of the simultaneous decline in wafer prices.

During the year under review, the Group’s shipment volume for
the year decreased by 12.7% to approximately 293.2 million
units compared with 2023 (336 million units), due to a delay in
new product launch. Continued price reductions in end products,
coupled with industry competition, led to a decline in the average
product price. With the drop in shipment volume, the Group’s sales
revenue for the year decreased by 25.9% to US$113.4 million
compared with 2023 (US$153.2 million).

New Display ICs

New Display IC products mainly refer to bistable display products of
the Group. Bistable display is a non-traditional display technology
where the display device is illuminated by reflecting ambient light.

During the year under review, the market for three-color (E4) and
four-color (E5) electronic display labels was in a changeover period.
As retailers were waiting for the launch of the new generation four-
color displays (E5), sales of three-color display labels (E4) were
affected. This, along with market competition, led to a decrease in
the average selling price of the Group’s new display IC products.
The Group supported E Ink in developing the Display IC Solutions
for Spectra™ 3100, a next-generation specialised platform for ESL
and retail signage application. This has successfully enabled a four-
color spectrum display which helped place the Group in a leading
position in this vast market. The large-size four-color display labels
supported by the Group’s IC products were launched on the market
in the fourth quarter of 2023, while some models of the small-
sized four-color display labels have completed the upgrade and
commenced mass production in the fourth quarter of 2024. The
Group will continue to upgrade the remaining models.

ESL provides flexibility in price update and facilitates efficiency
improvement and easy stock management. It not only reduces long-
term costs, but also reduces the carbon footprint of merchants,
meeting the global trend of paperless for sustainable development.
Thanks to its advantages, ESL is not only prevailing in Europe and
North America, but it is also becoming an emerging trend in other
Asian countries. The Group has been a pioneer in developing ESL
ICs for many years, and our customers include many of the world’s
top-ranked supermarkets.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK
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In 2025, the Group will invest in the development of IC products
supporting six or seven-color electronic display labels, with
mass production scheduled for the second half of the year. The
color display technology will allow a wider range of applications
for electronic display labels and is expected to further increase
the application rate. Apart from ESL, the Group is committed to
expanding the color electronic paper display technology into other
applications, including electronic paper photo frames that can be
applied to various products, and electronic badges that can display
photos for wearer identification.

OLED Display ICs

Solomon Systech offers a wide range of OLED display driver ICs
for various applications, including PMOLED display products, mini/
micro-LED products and icon IC products. The Group is the world’s
largest PMOLED display driver IC manufacturer, holding a dominant
market share in terms of unit of shipment for the year.

During the year under review, the Group capitalised on the
significant increase in demand for OLED display ICs, driven by the
generation upgrade of certain high-demand electronic products. Our
timely response to this market opportunity enabled us to secure a
slight increase in the shipment volume of OLED display ICs during
the year. The Group provides a full range of PMOLED driver ICs
from icon to matrix, mono and grey scale to full color with highly
integrated features that are ideal display solutions for portable
devices.

The Group offers a series of competitively priced icon ICs. Since
the launch in 2023, customers have continued to promote their
end products utilising this series of icon ICs. The Group’s icon ICs
are designed for displays ranging from 1 to 4 inches, making them
suitable for portable products and enabling the Group to expand
into the large display market for smart home appliances. Smart
home appliances have already become a major market trend, and
the Group will continue to focus on the growing market demand
for PMOLED smart home solutions and the Internet of Things (loT).
In addition, the Group continued to promote its newly developed
IC products that can support transparent PMOLED displays during
the year. Transparent PMOLED displays are a new technology
suitable for end-use applications such as diving goggles and golf
goggles that require transparent displays. These end products were
launched in the market during the year under review.

The Group is also a forerunner in the application of mini/micro-
LED. Our mini-LED DDI solutions for 50-inch to 100-inch indoor
signage display have been in mass production since 2018 and are
used in the curved signage display in the underground and subways
in the UK and the US. The Group launched the world’s first small-
sized passive matrix micro-LED display driver IC — SSD2363 in
2023, which can be applied to next-generation high brightness
16.7M color displays of 3 inches or less for wearable devices,
home appliances and industrial applications. This IC product is
currently used mainly for customers to validate and test the micro-
LED function of their end products, and the Group is also actively
approaching various types of customers to explore applications of
this product in different types of high value-added projects, such as
automotive devices.
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Mobile Display and Mobile Touch ICs

Solomon Systech provides a wide range of Mobile Display and
Mobile Touch IC solutions that is ever-expanding, including In-
Cell Touch Display Driver IC, TFT Display Driver IC, STN Display
Driver IC, MIPI Bridge IC and Display Controller IC, which support
industrial and consumer applications, such as smartphones, tablets,
wearables, gaming devices and loT devices.

During the year under review, sales of game console controller ICs
were boosted by the launch of new games in the market. However,
the shipment volume and revenue of the Group’s mobile display and
mobile touch IC products significantly declined as other products in
the segment were affected by the weakening personal consumption
market.

The Group pioneers the MIPI solutions for display with a series
of proprietary features that support high-resolution, high-speed
and low-power display of smart devices. During the year under
review, the Group co-developed a human interface display platform
with a number of leading small-to-medium-sized TFT-LCD panel
manufacturers. This product is expected to enter mass production
in the second half of 2025.

With profound expertise in TDDI technology, the Group designs
game console controller ICs that offer more accurate controls,
faster response and longer battery runtime. We are actively
researching and developing the application of mobile display and
mobile touch ICs across a wider range of areas. The Group is
currently developing a mini-LED backlight solution, with the FPGA
development platform already completed and the production of a
conceptual product confirmed by the customer. Following this, we
will proceed to develop standard ICs. The product is expected to be
launched in the second half of 2025 for automotive head-up display
(HUD) applications. We will continue to reach out to customers
producing various end products to gather insights into their needs
so as to develop products tailored to specific applications.

Large Display ICs

The Group is committed to working with domestic and overseas
display manufacturers to develop a wide range of large display
driver IC solutions that support various applications, including
commercial displays, high-end gaming monitors, smart TVs of
various sizes, and medium and large-size electronic color signages
and e-book readers.

During the year under review, the Group benefitted from a series
of home appliance subsidy policies introduced in mainland China
in 2024, leading to a surge in the sales of large-size display such
as monitors and smart TVs. This resulted in a shipment volume
and revenue growth of over 50% for the Group’s large display
ICs compared with last year. The global market trends, along with
subsidies that encouraged consumers to choose high-end and
large-size display, and the accelerated product mix upgrade that
brought more high-end offerings such as commercial displays/
gaming monitors with high refresh rate and high resolution TVs, all
contributed positively to the Group’s revenue during the year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK
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The Group continued to mass-produce a number of mainstream
new products for different brands in collaboration with major
panel manufacturers, including projects for 23.8-inch UHD gaming
monitors with a high-refresh rate of 100Hz, 43/50/58-inch smart
FHDTVs and 32-inch HD entry-level smart TV. The Group has
also been authorized by a major Chinese display manufacturer to
develop a new generation P2P high-speed interface display driver
IC. Prototypes for project validation are expected to be produced in
the second quarter of 2025, which will enhance the competitiveness

of the Group’s products.

Looking ahead to 2025, the Group plans to remain focused on
the medium and large display market while actively expanding
into the emerging automotive display market. The Group signed
a memorandum of understanding on strategic cooperation with
a Shenzhen automotive display manufacturer in 2023 and began
cooperation in the design and development of the first automotive-
specific integrated driver IC, which will be mass-produced in 2025

for application in major automotive systems.

Regarding the medium and large-size electronic paper market, the
Group successfully shipped large quantities of full-color electronic
paper notebook driver IC packages during the year under review.
Co-developed by the Group, the full-color electronic paper
notebook, which utilises the Group’s AMEPD driver IC for Advanced
Color e-Paper Active Matrix Electrophoresis Display (ACeP)
products, was launched in the second half of 2024. In addition, the
Group completed validation for its ultra-large-size e-Paper learning
whiteboards and ultra-large-size color electronic retail signage driver
ICs in 2024. Both products will enter mass production in 2025. The
Group is actively engaged in the electronic paper market and will
continue to monitor demand trends. The shipment volume of the
Group’s IC products is expected to continue to grow in the future.

Outlook

Looking ahead to 2025, global inflation is largely under control and
will continue to ease. The positive impact of the global interest rate
cut cycle is anticipated to offset the negative factors of economic
slowdown, paving the way for a soft landing for the economy.
However, due to the intensifying protectionism and the resulting
uncertainties in national policies, the global economy will continue
to face adjustment pressure in 2025. The Group is cautiously

optimistic about the future.

Existing products in various market segments are still under
price reduction pressure, while competition among suppliers is
becoming increasingly intense. In terms of costs, it is expected that
wafer foundries will maintain or reduce prices in 2025, with a low
likelihood of price increases. The Group will allocate more resources
to develop high value-added new products and applications, and
create differentiated products tailored to market demands. This
approach aims to create a competitive edge, improve pricing power,
and ultimately drive greater profits for the Group.

In addition to investment in the automotive display market, the
Group is focusing on the rapidly growing electronic paper market.
With advancements in technology, electronic paper has been
constantly evolving, bringing more vivid, colorful and higher
resolution displays as well as a wider range of applications. Against
the backdrop of global emphasis on environmental protection, the
Group is fully confident in the future development of electronic
paper and believes that, with the Group’s dedicated effort, the
launch of new products is expected to generate substantial returns
and enhance the overall profitability of the Group.
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OUR PEOPLE AND

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Employees

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total workforce of 315
employees' (2023: 302 employees). Of the total workforce, around
35% were based in Hong Kong head office with the rest located in
Mainland China and Taiwan.

FUNCTION EDUCATION
Bae HERE
11% 1%

52%

36%

EMWEIRLEHLESE
8T
M2024F12831H » AEBHBEII5FE LT
(20234 : 302BET) - BEE THH35%EE

BREMEE  HREISHBEHPEAERA
o

EXPERIENCE
TR

26%

17%

12%
14%
Product Development . Quality and Manufacturing . Master’s Degree & above . Bachelor's Degree . >20 years . 16-20 years . 11-15 years
Em LEE S BB L B8 >205 16-20% 11-15%
@ others @ Diploma / Certificate @ others @ c-10years 1-5 years <1year
Hity SR/ EE Hity 6-10%F 1-54F <1

e 249 engineering employees
249 £ T2ED

e 36% Master’s Degree or above
36% FFIE sk A E 2

e 315 employees worldwide as at 31 December 2024 e 88% Bachelor’s Degree or above
M2024412 8318 2HEEH£3HET 88% HFB T B

About 88% of the Group’s employees hold a bachelor’'s degree or
above, and around 36% have earned a master’s degree or higher
academic qualifications. The Group’s emphasis on R&D is also
reflected in the composition of our workforce, as 67% are engineers
who specialize in product design and development. The entire team
has, on average, around 14 years of working experience.

The Group also had a testing center located in Mainland China, with
a total workforce of 64 employees.

Note': Data excludes testing center in Mainland China

72 BBETERRFER R EH O

e Employees with an average of about
14 years of working experience
BT FHEEN4F LR

REENBBNETHEEZ T ENHIULERE
HNIHETBURALERE - AKEEEE
RN T RREETHE Z2H » 67%H
EIREIEMRTRABRNIRN ZES
TFHETN4F TELER -

REBESRE -BURTERHE ZRHF O
HHEB64EET -
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OUR PEOPLE AND

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

N = =
BAMWEIRGCEMESER
Training & Development
At the Group, we strive to cultivate a culture of “Continuous
Learning”, and to inspire, encourage and develop our staff. In 2024,
the Group dedicated a total of over 6,600 man-hours to training and
development, covering technical and soft skill training. Apart from

in-house training, the Group has also encouraged and sponsored
employees to take external job-related courses.

Employee’s Well-being

We put more resources in health, safety, and wellness of our
employees as we care about their well-being. Apart from providing
a safe working environment and health insurance covering medical,
disability, accidental and life benefits to eligible employees, we also
aimed at assisting employees to strike a healthy work life balance
and to promote team spirit. In 2024, the Group organized a range
of activities for employees to achieve these targets. The Group
also arranged leisure activities inviting our employees to participate
together with their family members.

Remuneration and Awards

The Group believes in motivating, retaining and rewarding
employees and attracting new talent with the right incentives,
in order to facilitate the alignment of their interests with the
Company. NPI First Order Awards were granted to project teams
in appreciation of the order winning on our new products. The
Group also offers cash reward schemes (including KPI Incentive
for recognizing the attainment of annual KPl on both the team
and individual levels), and ES1 MP Award for new products which
win for mass production with the first successful sample attempt.
Patent Awards are in place to encourage and reward technological
innovation. The Group also offers long service awards to reward
employees of long standing.

Details of the remuneration of employees, bonus and share option
scheme are disclosed in relevant section of the Directors’ Report,
and note 6, note 10, note 11 and note 26 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has a strong sense of commitment to fulfilling its
corporate social responsibility and ensures that it becomes part
of the daily operations of the Group. The Group’s Environmental,
Social, Governance (“ESG”) working committee has monitored the
Group’s performance in the areas of employees, the marketplace, the
environment and the community during 2024. The Group’s ESG Report
for 2024 has been published separately on the Company’s website at
www.solomon-systech.com and the Stock Exchange’s website at
www.hkexnews.hk on the same date as this annual report.
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Revenue and Results Overview

The Group recorded a decrease of about 25.9% in revenue to
US$113.4 million during the year (2023: US$153.2 million). The
decrease mainly attributable to the drop in average selling price as
well as the total shipment quantities of the Group’s products.

Profit attributable to owners of the parent was reported at US$10.1
million, representing a decrease of approximate 47.9% from
US$19.4 million in 2023. Earnings per share were 0.4 US cents,
down 0.4 US cents from 2023.

Despite the decrease in shipment quantities and average selling
price, the Group is still able to manage a stable gross profit margin.
We believe that total shipment volume could rebound after the
launch of the new products. At the same time, we have sufficient
resources to support our continued commitment on research and
development projects, which is critical to sustain the long term
competitiveness of the Group.

Gross profit

Gross profit of US$38.0 million and gross margin of 33.5% were
recorded during the Period (2023: US$46.3 million and 30.3%,
respectively). The decrease in gross profit amount was mainly
attributable to the decrease in revenue, in the meantime, a slight
improvement in gross profit margin (33.5%) as compared to 2023
(30.3%).

EEE B R

FINANCIAL REVIEW
g e

WA FEEE

KEBFERRATHKRLY25.9%Z113.45 8 =
Tt (2023%F : 158.2HEXETT) - WARBALEE
EEAEEERFHEERENEETR -

AABRBEBEAEEEZFNAEI1I01BEERT &
2023F W194EBETTRAHN47.9% - BRE
FBEO.4AEA - B2023FH 0.4 ©

BENEBEERFHEETR  ARENREER
REMNEMNER - HMAGE EHEEEH —KE
mi&  RNYEETWERF - BILER - RMAE
RHANERIFASEEERONNEIESR
HHERAEENRERFNERER -

E7

HANEFNMENEZS I A3B0EEET
33.5% (20234 : 7 5l B46.35 B X T M
30.3%) - BERBERLETERBRABOH
G B ERFERIER (33.5%) EE2023F LL 8
(30.3%) &Mk E o
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Revenue/Gross Profit
for the year ended 31 December

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

for the year ended 31 December

HZE12A31A L FEHEE 7 BZ12A31H L EFERQATRE AELEF
S 200 <30 12 &
©@ % %
3 180 3 8
) - 153.2 525 ;»H
m i 09 E
B 440 Fiid 0.8
& 113.4 d20
9 120 :
100 15 0.6
80 0.4
46.3 10
60
38.0 0.3
40 5
20
0 0 0.0
2023 2024 2023 2024
Revenue Gross profit Il Profit attribtable to owners =)= Earnings per share
SHERE EF of the parent BREF
AN A N FEERF
Costs and Expenses AR B X

The Group’s total expenses (including product R&D costs, S&D
expenses, administrative expenses and other expenses) for the
year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to about US$33.7 million
(2023: US$31.6 million), representing an increase of 6.5% as
compared to that for the year 2023.

The Group is committed to investing in product R&D and business
development. During the year under review, the product R&D costs
amounted to US$18.7 million (2023: US$17.8 million) representing
an increase of US$0.9 million, or 4.9%, and the product R&D
costs to sales ratio for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
16.5% (2023: 11.6%), representing an increase in 4.9% percentage
points. The Group has utilised the resources on the new product
introduction and technology development mainly on the products
that more adopt with the global market trend and on viable
businesses. The Group has set a bold target in R&D for innovation
to solidify its leading position in IC display industry.

S&D expenses for 2024 amounted of US$4.7 million (2023: US$3.3
million), represent an increase of 44.0%, whilst the S&D expenses to
sales ratio was 4.2% (2023: 2.1%), the increase mainly attributable
to more marketing efforts were involved in current year for
promoting the Group’s new products launched in 2024 and potential
new products for 2025.

Administrative expense amounted to US$10.0 million (2023: US$10.5
million), decreased by 4.4% as compare to that of 2023. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the group on-going stringent cost
control measures on overall expenses.
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Other Income and Gains - Net

During the year under review, other income amounted to US$1.6
million (2023: US$2.3 million), decreased by US$0.7 million, which
was mainly due to decrease in government subsidies and foreign
exchange gain in 2024.

Profit Attributable to the Owners of the
Parent

During the year under review, the Group reported a profit
attributable to shareholders of US$10.1 million, as compared to a
profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2023 of US$19.4 million. The main reasons for the decrease in
profit attributable to shareholders in the year 2024 were because
of the decrease in revenue, which was mainly due to the decrease
in average selling price as well as the total shipment quantities due
to the new product launch delay of the Group’s products, which
in turn lead to decrease in profit. The total shipment volume could
rebound after the launch of the new products. At the same time, we
have sufficient resources to support our continued commitment on
research and development projects, which is critical to sustain the
long term competitiveness of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

FINANCIAL REVIEW
g e

Ht AR W — 8

REEFR  HWAR1.68 8% T (2023
F:23FBER) BAP0TEEERT X ER
R4 F BT EMRINEZREFRBRD ©

RRFERANEEREF

REBEER  AEEZRESADTRREMER
10 1HEZER L EZE2023F12A31HLEFE
EASEERQTAREREMEF194BEET °
BREEEGEESENR2024ERBRL2EERA
BRARY  HFXrZHRAEEERFHIEE
THREERF —RERWEELEMASEET
HRoEHEHEHF —RERE BFEETEQD
FroBER  RMERHANERIEAEE
WEHONARIEE  EUEREAEENRE
BRBEHEAEE-

RBEESRHBKER

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2024 2023
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FTE=x
Current assets MENEE 152,710 148,598
Current liabilities nEEE 24,762 29,974
Net current assets mEEEFE 127,948 118,624
Current ratio )b 6.17 4.96

The Group’s current ratio was 6.17 as at 31 December 2024 (31
December 2023: 4.96), reflecting a strong liquidity in its financial
position. Working capital position of the Group remains healthy.

The Group does not have any significant interest-bearing loans and
borrowings at 31 December 2024, and is in net cash position. The
Gearing Ratio at 31 December 2023 was 0.013.

Treasury Management

The Group has an internal treasury review team (the “Team”) to
execute treasury management policy, review the overall investment
portfolio and monitor the performance on a regular basis to increase
the yield of cash reserves. The Team conducts regular review
meetings or teleconferences with individual external portfolio
managers and holds internal review meetings to evaluate and
monitor the investment performance.

R2024%F 128318 - AEBEMNRELLERAE6.17

(2023%F12H31H :4.96) ' RMEBEF KR
EERENARBESKE -EBRBELSNR
HER o

13A2024$12)% STEHAEETEEMEARFEE
FRER  BERBREKFE - R2023F128
31 HEE&E&EBLEA0.013°

EXEE

REEREAMEBEF A (A - AF
HITEREERE FHERBREASREY
ERRERDURARSHBHERE - &/
HEBEME REASEERKBETEES

EREEMETANEHERURT RERR
BRI o
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Total cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits of the Group
were US$107.7 million as at 31 December 2024 (2023: US$86.3
million), of which US$3.5 million denominated in US dollars (2023:
US$6.0 million) were pledged to banks to secure for general banking
facilities for general operation purpose. Cash and cash equivalents
and bank deposits of the Group were mainly denominated in US
dollars and Renminbi.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had no bank borrowing. As at
31 December 2023, the Group had a bank loan in connection with a
PRC subsidiary for working capital financing amounting to US$1.7
million, which was denominated in Renminbi. The amount was fully
repaid during the year 2024.

Most of the Group’s trade receivables and payables are quoted in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors the movement of foreign
exchange rates and constantly seeks to obtain favorable exchange
rates for conversion of US dollars into other currencies for paying
local operating expenses. During the year under review, the Group
had not entered into any major derivative instruments to hedge
against foreign currency exposure in operation as the Board
considered this exposure to be insignificant.

Capital Expenditure and Contingent Liabilities

During the year of 2024, capital expenditure of the Group was
US$2.3 million (2023: US$1.1 million).

As at 31 December 2024, capital expenditure contracted for but
not yet incurred was approximately US$3.5 million (2023: US$2.3
million).

The Company has provided corporate guarantees amounted to US$14.0
million (2023: US$14.0 million) to banks in connection with banking
facilities granted to a subsidiary, of which US$5 million (2023: US$8
million) were utilised as at 31 December 2024 as bank guarantees.

Aside from the aforesaid, the Group had no other material capital
commitment or contingent liability.

Significant Investments Held

During the year under review, there was no significant investments
held by the Group.

Future Plans for Material Investments and
Capital Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any future plans
for material investments and capital assets.

Acquisition and Disposal of Material
Subsidiaries and Associates

The Group did not acquire or dispose of any material subsidiaries
and associates during the year under review.
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Charge of Assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any other charge
on its assets except for time deposits amounted to a total of US$3.5
million (2023: US$6.0 million) pledged to banks for securing banking
facilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As of 31 December 2024, the Group had a total workforce of 315
employees*. About 35% of the workforce were based at the Hong
Kong headquarters, with the rest located in Mainland China and
Taiwan. The Group also has a testing center located in Mainland
China, with a workforce of 64 employees. Employee salary and
other benefit expenses increased to approximately US$23.7 million
during the year under review from approximately US$22.1 million
in the year 2023, which represented an increase of 7.2%. The
increase was attributable to the increase in the average number of
employees. The Group’s remuneration were determined based on
the performance of individual employees, which will be reviewed
every year. Apart from the provident fund scheme (according to
the provisions of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for Hong
Kong employees) or the government-managed retirement pension
scheme (for Mainland China and Taiwan employees), medical and
other insurances, discretionary bonus is also awarded to employees
according to the assessment of individual performance.

*

Data excludes the testing center in Mainland China
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Chairman

Mr. MA Yuchuan, aged 59

Chairman of the Board: since May 2019
Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2018
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
Member of the Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

e Graduated from Zhejiang University, the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in semiconductor physics and devices

e  Extensive experience in the semiconductor industry

Current appointments include:
e Director of Huada Semiconductor Company Limited
e Director of Beijing Huada Zhibao Electronic System Co., Ltd.

Former appointments include:

e Held various positions in CEC: division chief of project
division of business management department, division chief
of integrated circuit & components division of corporate
development department, vice general manager of integrated
circuit business group and deputy general manager of planning,
science & technology department

° Director of Shanghai Anlogic Infotech Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code:
688107) * APS (Shanghai) Ltd. * China Electronics Huada
Technology Company Limited (a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange with stock code: 0085), Hua Hong
Semiconductor Limited (a company listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange with stock code: 1347), Shanghai Belling
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
with stock code: 600171), CEC Huada International Co.
Ltd., Shanghai Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd., Nanjing Micro
One Electronics Inc. and Chengdu Sino Microelectronics
Technology Co., Ltd.

26 Solomon Systech (International) Limited
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Executive Director
Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond, aged 59

CEO: since January 2020

Acting CEO: 2019

Appointed to the Board: 2019

Executive Director

Chairman of the Investment Committee

Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules

Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group

Skills and experience:

Graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering

Received a master of business administration degree from the
Victoria University of Wellington, New Zealand and a master of
arts degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong

A chartered engineer with over 30 years’ experience in the
semiconductor industry

Former appointments include:

Corporate VP and Head of Advanced Display Business of the
Group

Held senior management position in Motorola Inc and worked
in Hong Kong, the USA and Canada

Asia Pacific Head of RFWaves Ltd. in Israel
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Non-executive Directors
Mr. WANG Hui, aged 42

Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2021

Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Investment
Committee

Skills and experience:

Master of science in engineering in control systems from the
University of Sheffield

Master of business administration from the University of Hong
Kong

Current appointments include:

Director, development and planning department, Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd.

Chairman, Alpha Power Solutions Ltd.

Director, Chengdu Sino Microelectronics Technology Co., Ltd
Chairman, China Electronics Smart Card Co., Ltd

Director, Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd (a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code: 600171)

Former appointments include:
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Various positions including strategic manager and professional
manager of the development and planning department in
Huada

Marketing manager, Brite Semiconductor (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.
Technical marketing manager, Shanghai Huahong Grace
Semiconductor Manufacturing Corporation

Various engineering positions and technical marketing manager
in Shanghai Hua Hong NEC Electronics Co., Ltd.
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Non-executive Directors (continued)
Ms. LIU Fei, aged 38

Non-executive director

Appointed to the Board: 2024

Member of the Audit Committee

Skills and experience:

Ms. Liu has substantial legal work experience

Graduated from Shanghai Normal University (- /Z&1& KX 2) with
a bachelor’s degree in law in 2009

Obtained a lawyer certificate in the PRC in 2009

Current appointments include:

Deputy general counsel of Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd.
Deputy director of the legal department of Huada Semiconductor
Co., Ltd.

Supervisor of China Electronic Smart Card Co., Ltd.

Former appointments include:

Employed by Shanghai Hengyi Law Firm with last position as
solicitor
Legal counsel of Model Textiles (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Legal manager of Shanghai NGB laboratories Co., Ltd.

Joined Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd as a legal manager and
assistant director
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Kong, aged 57

Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed to the Board: 2023
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Member of the Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

Graduated from The City University of Hong Kong with a
master’s degree in business administration

Obtained a bachelor’s degree in accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University

Fellow member of each of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (“ACCA”), The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, The Chartered Governance
Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute,
and a CFA charter holder of The Chartered Financial Analyst
Institute

Current appointments include:

Advisory Committee Member of The College of Professional
and Continuing Education of the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University

The Convenor of Working Party on Seminars of Accounting
Training Board under The Vocational Training Council
Co-founder of Impacts Technology Limited which is principally
engaged in the business of development and provision of
interactive e-learning solutions to corporates

Independent Non-executive Director of APT Electronics Co.,
Ltd. (@ company listed on the main board of the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange; stock code: 2551)

Former appointments include:
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Held chief financial officer and various senior management
positions in companies whose shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange

Chairman of ACCA Hong Kong

Member of The Financial Reporting Review Panel of The
Accounting and Financial Reporting Council

Member of The Accountancy Training Board under The
Vocational Training Council

Honorary advisor to Hong Kong Internet Registration
Corporation Limited

Solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2024
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)
Dr. CHAN Philip Ching Ho, age 75

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2020

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, member of
Nomination Committee, Audit Committee and Investment
Committee

Skills and experience:

Received his bachelor of science degree in electrical engineer
from the University of California, Davis, the USA

Received his master of science degree in electrical engineering
and doctor in electrical engineering both from the University of
Illinois, Urbana-Champaign, the USA

Taught at the University of lllinois, Urbana-Champaign, the USA
for 3 years

Senior position for development and design of integrated
circuits in Intel Corporation for over 10 years

Current appointments include:

Founder and director of Apt Electronics Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the main board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange;
stock code: 2551)

Independent Non-executive Director of InnoScience (Suzhou)
Technology Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the main
board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange; Stock code: 2577)
Chairman of board of Hong Kong Microelectronics Research
and Development Institute

Former appointments include:

Professor and the head of the Department of Electronic
and Computer Engineering, the director of Nanoelectronics
Fabrication Facility of the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology (“HKUST”)

Dean of the School of Engineering of HKUST and a chair
professor over the years

Deputy President and Provost, a chair professor of Electronic
& Information Engineering (EIE) department of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (“HKPU”) and a council member of
HKPU until his retirement from HKPU in March 2020

Director of Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited and the chairman of its
technology committee, a director of Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited, and a member of the
Vocational Training Council

Member of the Committee on Innovation, Technology and Re-
industrialisation
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)
Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing, aged 74

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2023

Member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee

Skills and experience:

Graduated from Harvard University with a doctoral research
degree in applied physics in 1978

Fellow of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers

Fellow of The Optical Society of America

Fellow of The Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
Elected Member of The Asia Pacific Academy of Materials
Fellow of the Society for Information Displays

Elected member of The Hong Kong Academy of Engineering
Science

Fellow of the National Academy of Inventors

Received extensive honors and awards and has published
numerous papers in the field of information display

Current appointments include:

32

Visiting Professor of the Department of Electrical and Electronic
Engineering at The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(continued)

Save as disclosed in this annual report, each of the Directors (i) has
no relationship with any directors, senior management or substantial
shareholders or controlling shareholders (as defined respectively in
the Listing Rules) of the Company, (ii) is not interested or deemed to
be interested, nor has short positions, in shares, underlying shares,
or debenture of the Company or any of its associated corporations
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, (iii) does not hold any
positions within the Company or other members of the Group, and
(iv) has not been a director of any listed companies in the past three
years. Moreover, none of the Directors has been involved in any of
the events under Rule 13.51(2)(h) to (v) of the Listing Rules.

Founder and Chairman Emeritus

Dr. LEUNG Kwong Wai, JP, aged 68, is the Founder and Chairman
Emeritus of the Group.

Company Secretary

Mr. YU Chon Man, aged 47, Finance Director and Company
Secretary. Mr. Yu joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2022. Mr. Yu
is also the Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant
to Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules. Please refer to the paragraphs
headed “Senior Management” for Mr. Yu’s biography.
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Senior Management

Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond
Please refer to the details of Executive Directors in page 27

Dr. WU Wenchi, aged 56, Vice President, Design Engineering.
Dr. Wu joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2017. Prior to joining
the company, Dr Wu was assistant general manager of Socle
Technology Corporation. Dr. Wu holds a doctorate degree in
electrical engineering from the National Central University in Taiwan.

Ms. LO Oi Yee, Mabel, aged 60, Human Resources Director. Ms. Lo
joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2000 as Human Resources
Manager. Ms. Lo holds a master degree in Human Resources &
Training from University of Leicester, the UK, and has over 30 years
of human resources management experience.

Mr. YU Chon Man, aged 47, Finance Director, Company Secretary,
and Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Yu holds a degree in accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member
in the Association of Certified Public Accountants, CPA Australia
and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. YU has more than 20 years of experience in capital market
management, Initial Public Offering, financial reporting and financial
management. Before joining the Company, he was a chief financial
officer and company secretary of a company listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange. Apart from that, he also worked in an
international audit firm for approximately eight years. Mr. YU is
currently an independent non-executive director and chairman of
audit committee of Luxxu Group Limited, a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code 1327.

Mr. WONG Ka Kei, aged 59, Planning & Customer Services
Director. Mr. Wong joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2005 as
Business Process Solutions Manager. Mr. Wong holds a master
degree in Information Systems Management from The Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, and has over 30 years
customers’ service and logistics management experience in
semiconductors industry.
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Company culture

Our vision is to provide the ultimate silicon solution for every display
system.

There are three pillars that serve as the foundation of our company
culture to support our pursuit of our vision:

Innovative: We continue to innovate and create new
technologies that will improve our product offerings. From
electronic shelf labels (ESL), e-Paper display driver ICs to touch
and display drive integration, we have continuously invested
in our R&D, and sought to secure first-mover advantage in
new markets. Currently we possess over 690 patent registered
worldwide.

Talent-oriented: People are critical to our success. We have
built a highly qualified and experienced workforce: as of 31
December 2024, among our employees, 88% hold a bachelor’s
degree or above, and 36% have earned a master’s degree
or higher academic qualifications; 67% are engineers who
specialize in product design and development. To retain talents
and encourage them to thrive, we offer various incentives such
as bonus and share options to our employees.

Responsive: Semiconductor technologies are ever evolving.
We always keep an eye on the latest development to capture
business opportunities. We also closely monitor the trends
in material and logistics costs with a view to maintaining the
competitiveness of our products.

We are committed to cultivating a strong company culture that is
built on the above core values which will enable to the Company to
offer sustainable growth and return to our shareholders.
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Corporate governance practices

The Board and the management of the Group are committed to
achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate governance
and continuously improve these standards, which the Group
considers as critical in safeguarding the integrity of its business
operations and maintaining investors’ trust in the Company,
and good corporate governance is indispensable for long-term
business success and sustainable performance of the Group.
The management also actively and constantly observes the latest
corporate governance developments in Hong Kong and overseas,
particularly those in the UK and the USA.

The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance
principles that emphasize a quality board, effective internal controls,
stringent disclosure practices, transparency and accountability. The
Company has complied with all the applicable Code Provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
C1 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2024. To
maintain high standards of corporate governance, the Company
has adopted the recommended best practices in the Code where
appropriate. In addition, the Company is committed to continuously
improving these practices and inculcating an ethical corporate
culture.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules as the code for
Directors’ securities transactions. All the Directors have confirmed
their compliance with the required standards set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2024. Regarding the
shares held by the Directors, the details are listed in the “Report
of the Directors” from pages 61 to 74 of this Annual Report.
Pursuant to the Code Provision C.1.3, the Company established its
own written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model
Code for Directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information in respect of their
dealings in the securities of the Company. All Directors and relevant
employees conformed to the Group’s own guidelines throughout the
year 2024.
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Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company’s business and affairs with the goal of maximizing long-
term value for shareholders, while balancing broader stakeholder
interests. Schedule of matters reserved for the Board include:

e  Strategy and management

e Group structure and capital

e  Financial reporting and control
e Internal controls

° Major contracts

e  Corporate communications

° Board membership and other appointments
e  Remuneration

e  Authority and delegation

e  Corporate governance

e  Company policies

Matters not specifically reserved for the Board and relate
primarily to the daily operations of the Group are delegated to the
management under the supervision and leadership of the CEO.

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises one
Executive Director, three Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The size and composition
of the Board are reviewed from time to time, taking into account
the scope and nature of the Company’s operations, to ensure that
the size of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views
and facilitate effective decision-making. The biographical details
of all Directors and the relationships among them, if any, are set
out in the “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
26 to 34 of this Annual Report and the Company’s website. Except
as disclosed in the section of “Board of Directors and Senior
Management”, none of the Directors has any financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships among members
of the Board and the Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors. Accordingly, the Board considers that all Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent as defined in the Listing
Rules.

The Company is committed to selecting the most appropriate
persons as members of the Board for the role. Since 2013, the
Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which has been
published on the Company’s website for better transparency and
corporate governance.
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The selection of Board members is based on a range of diverse §E3§§$QEEEH%E—§§U§U_HB§EW%%E
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural REEES  BELR - e AEER
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background, i%‘EEﬁ.Hﬁi‘  NEFEETRRAMR - Fik - Xk
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. EERREK RABEBRAEZENEERTAES
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that &/EHNERMERE o

the selected candidates can bring to the Board.

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has EZEZ=emEE=ZE8SEZ RIEERS ' UE
delegated specific functions to four Board Committees. The EESHTHBK FTEEEZESTAHAEX
principal Board Committees are the Audit Committee, Remuneration ZEE€  HMWNEES - RBZEESERKREZE
Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment Committee, & FFHIWOT :

details of which are as follows:

Date of Date of
first appointment [ast re-election
to the Board as Director Audit  Remuneration  Nomination Investment
Position Gender  Ethnicity Age ENEZRA BI-NEREF  Commitee  Committee  Committee  Committee
Bt kY ER B EZEMEHRE  RESHAE Ehizag  EMZRE  R4ZRe REZEf
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond  Executive Director/CEO  Male ~ Chinese 59 20 March 2019 20 June 2024
TESRL EGEEGEEE 3 £\ 201953R208 204£6R208 C
Mr. Ma Yuchuan Non-executive Director/ ~ Male Chinese 59 14 March 2018 20 June 2024
Chairman
EIlI%t FUfESIR ] N 2018E3F14R 2024E6R208 ¢ |
Mr. Wang Hui Non-executive Director ~ Male  Chinse 421 April 2021 20 June 2024
IBfE FifEs E )\ AR1E4F1A 224E6R20A | |
Dr. Kang Jian Non-executive Director ~ Male ~ Chinese 43 3 November 2021 22 June 2022
(resigned with ffective from
13 May 2024)
BHEL EIEE E £A 2021511538 2002E6F 2R NJA NJA NJA i
(ERFRERNUE
SA1AEN)
Ms. Liu Fei Non-executive Director ~ Female  Chinese 38 13 May 2024 20 June 2024
Y1t P20k r EL 2R4F5A138 224F6A208 |
Mr. Chan Chi Kong Independent Non-executive Male ~ Chinese 57 30 November 2023 20 June 2024
Director
RExLE eI E g N 203E11R1 224E6A2A ¢ |
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho ~ Independent Male  Chinese 75 10December 2020 23 June 2023
~ Non-executive Director
REZAL BlufEs E £ 20205128108 23E6R 238 | C | |
Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing Independent Non-executive Male ~ Chinese 74 30 November 2023 20 June 2024
Director
PBARL BUFufEs g £ 2031141 2024E6A20A | {

C - chairman of the committee Z5 & % &
\ — member of the committee ZE £ &5

The Company has taken appropriate insurance cover to indemnify ZRNATEBESSIRE  UWREBESEAE
our Directors against possible claims and liabilities arising out of the BEEREFMAEELENZERSE-
Group’s business and activities.
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Board meetings and Board practices

The Board has scheduled to meet for at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. All Directors participate to
discuss the strategy, operational and financial performance and
internal control of the Group.

The Company Secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the meetings and
each Director may request to include any relevant matters on the
agenda. Generally, at least 14 days’ notice is given for the regular
meetings by the Company. All substantive agenda items have
comprehensive briefing papers, which are, in general, circulated
three days before convening each Board meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to the Directors prior to the Board meetings to ensure
that the Directors are able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings so that they may receive
accurate, timely and clear information.

Minutes of the Board, Board Committee and General Meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are made available and
circulated to all Directors periodically.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed
and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company will deal
with the matter by a physical board meeting rather than written
resolution or a Board Committee (except if that Board Committee
was specifically established for such purpose). Independent Non-
executive Directors with no material interest in the matter will attend
the meeting to deal with the matter if it is considered appropriate.
Other than the exceptional criteria allowed under the Listing Rules,
any Director who or whose associates have any material interest in
any proposed Board resolutions will not be counted as a quorum
in the relevant Board meeting or no vote for the relevant Board
resolutions.

All the Board Committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.
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The Board is of the view that the following mechanisms adopted by
the Company are effective in ensuring that independent views and
inputs are available to the Board:

e The Board comprises a majority of Non-executive Directors.

e The terms of appointment of all Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors would not be more than
nine consecutive years.

e In appraising suitability of the Director candidates, the
Board will consider their profiles, including their experience,
qualifications and time commitment; the Board will also
consider to the Board’s overall composition and skill matrix as
well as the Company’s diversity policy.

° The Board will review each Director’s time commitment to the
Company’s business annually.

e The Board will assess Non-executive Directors’ independence
upon appointment and annually.

e Directors are required to abstain from voting in matters in which
he has material interest.

e Directors can upon reasonable request seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses to discharge
their duties.

The quality of deliberations at meetings of the Board are reviewed
during the annual evaluation of the Board’s performance.

The Board, supported by the Audit Committee, regularly accesses
the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control system and considers it to be adequate and effective. The
review covers all material risks, including ESG risks, and controls
including financial, operational, information technology and
compliance controls, and risk management functions. The Board is
not aware of any significant area of concern which may affect the
shareholders. The Board is satisfied that the Company has fully
complied with the code of provisions on internal controls as set
forth in the Code.
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Board meetings, Board Committees EEEggR EEZETEERK
meetings and General Meetings BRAXE

The attendance of Directors at Board meetings, Board Committees AEEEEHFENESSSE -ESZESS
meetings and General Meetings during the year are set out below: BERRERSHBINATER:

Annual Audit  Remuneration Nomination Investment
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
Ezg EVZEg gHzae REZEE REZEE
RRAEAE ] | EE ] EE ] ]
Number of meetings held 2e8RY 1 4 3 2 2 00
Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend in 2024
Members of the Board FE-F EEEENE 0UENCERLEEE
Executive Director BnES
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (CEQ) TESRETHEAR) 1 44 N/A T&E
Non-executive Directors FUTES
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman) EXNEEER) 11 4/4 22 N/A TiE A
Mr. Wang Hui IR%E 1 4/4 212 N/A TiE A
Ms. Liu Fei (i) Y11 " 34 20 N/A RER
Dr. Kang Jian (ii) B8l &L - 1/4 13 N/A FiER
Independent Non-executive Directors BUHTES
Mr. Chan Chi Kong BELEE 1 44 3/3 N/A TiE &
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho BESEL " 4/4 33 212 2/2 N/A TR
Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing HEREL il 4/4 212 212 N/A T8
() No Investment Committee meeting was held during the year under review (i) HREZBZRENEIREBEZIEXTESE
as no proper investment plan and strategies were sound to propose to the B REBEFE WEEHKREZEEEE -
Board.

(i) Appointed as member of Audit Committee with effect from 13 May 2024, (i) BEARERESEHE  H2024F5513H
£

(i) Resigned with effect from 13 May 2024. (if) BIEiEBHTE2024F5H 130 £33 -

Pursuant to the Code Provision C.1.6, Independent Non-executive MRIESTAMEXECA6ME  BAFHITEER
Directors and Non-executive Directors should attend general FHTEERHERRAS - BIFLAMHIK
meetings. According to the above table, all the Independent Non- ZAAGFEBIYFHATES  FHATESRH
executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and the Executive {TEZHC HFE2024RFBEARS I EEARLD
Director were present at the 2024 AGM and available to answer ®RRZEE o

questions from shareholders of the Company.
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Directors’ Continuous Training and
Development

The Group has been responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director, to all the Directors. All the
Directors understand that they should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills to ensure that they are equipped with all information
required for making relevant contributions to the Board.

The Company provides various guideline materials to Directors, for
instance, Directors’ duties and responsibilities, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to Directors and duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group. Every newly appointed Director
will receive a comprehensive induction session at his appointment.
All Directors are encouraged to have continuous professional
development to enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills.

Mr. Ma Yuchuan, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, Mr. Wang Hui,
Ms. Liu Fei, Mr. Chan Chi Kong, Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho and Dr.
Kwok Hoi Sing attended seminars or read materials on corporate
governance, updates on laws, rules and regulations and other
professional skills. Directors were also encouraged to take
educational courses on duties of the directors.

The Board has received from each of the Directors (Independent
Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and the Executive
Director) a record of the trainings received for the year ended 2024
indicating their compliance to Code Provision C.1.4.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and responsibilities of the Non-executive Chairman,
Mr. Ma Yuchuan, and the CEO, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
are segregated as stipulated in the Listing Rules, to ensure an
appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater
capacity of the Board for independent decision-making.

The Non-executive Chairman, Mr. Ma Yuchuan, is responsible for
ensuring that all Directors act in the best interest of shareholders.
Acting independently from the Company, he is fully accountable
to the shareholders and contributes to the Board and the Group
on all top-level or strategic decisions. Specifically, he is assigned
with three key roles to perform, namely leading the Board, ensuring
the Group’s effective communication with shareholders and
implementing a high standard of corporate governance.

Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, as CEO, is responsible for managing
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
He leads the Group’s management team in accordance with the
directions set by the Board. He is responsible for ensuring that
a proper internal control system is in place and that the Group’s
business conforms to applicable laws and regulations. The CEO
chairs the monthly operations and financial reviews and also
the weekly management staff meetings, as well as the quarterly
employees’ communication meeting.
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and
Removal

At every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years or within such
other period as the rules of the Stock Exchange may from time to
time prescribe. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director at the annual general meeting at
which he retires.

In order to promote the independence of Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors, the Company
implemented the policy regarding the terms of office of Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
(“Service Term Policy”). The terms of appointment of all Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
should not be more than nine consecutive years. They should not
offer themselves for re-election for any period beyond the annual
general meeting at which they retire.

Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules

The directors newly appointed during the year 2024, namely
Ms. Liu Fei, confirmed that (i) she has obtained the legal advice
referred to under Rules 3.09D of the Listing Rules in May 2024,
and (ii) understood the requirements under the Listing Rules
that are applicable to him as a director of the Company and the
possible consequences of making a false declaration or giving false
information to the Stock Exchange.

Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills, industry
and business experience to the Group. The composition of
Executive and Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) demonstrates a strong independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment
pursuant to the Code Provision B.1 so as to further strengthen the
Company’s corporate governance. The Non-executive Directors are
of sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry weight. At
least once a year, Non-executive Directors and also Independent
Non-executive Directors will have a private discussion with the
Chairman on the Group’s matters. In addition, Non-executive
Directors, according to the Group’s policy, may approach the
Group’s employees at anytime they think appropriate. During the
year, the Group’s management also met with certain Non-executive
Directors to seek their views on certain business or operational
matters.

During the year 2024, the Board had a total of three Independent
Non-executive Directors and they represented more than one-third
of the Board, which is a sufficient number to meet the minimum
requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-executive Directors bring their wealth of
experience to the Board and make active contributions to the
Group. They closely monitor the Group’s development and freely
express their opinions at the Board meetings. All Independent Non-
executive Directors, except as disclosed in this Annual Report,
do not have any business with or financial interests in the Group
and confirmed their independence to the Group pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Non-executive
Director and two Independent Non-executive Directors. A majority
of the votes in the Remuneration Committee are exercisable by
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee does not
deal with the remuneration of Non-executive Directors which shall
be a matter for the Executive Directors of the Board. No Director
or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection
with his or her own remuneration. The Committee also consults
the Chairman about their proposals relating to the remuneration of
other Executive Directors and has access to professional advice if
considered necessary. The Committee consulted the head of human
resources in respect of human resources policy and market as well
as other company information.

The meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall normally be
held not less than once a year to review and approve principally
the remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company. As
recommended by the Committee and approved by the Board, the
Committee, currently chaired by Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho, has
delegated to the CEO the authority to approve the remuneration of
all the employees of the Group below the rank of Executive Director.
Policy related remuneration schemes will be decided by the
Remuneration Committee. No remuneration has been paid to Non-
executive directors.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

e To determine the framework and broad policy for the
remuneration of Directors, senior management and general
staff

e To establish guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management

e To approve the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors (including Non-executive Directors) whilst ensuring no
Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration

e To determine the remuneration of Executive Directors including
benefits in kind, pension right and compensation payment

e To review and approve the compensation arrangements
in connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to
Executive Directors and senior management to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not
excessive

e To review the criteria for assessing the performance of the
Executive Directors and/or senior management which should
reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets

e To determine the annual performance bonus for Executive
Directors and review the annual performance bonus for senior
management achievements against the performance criteria
and by reference to market norms
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Remuneration Committee (continued)

e To review and/or make recommendation to the Board on the
matters relating to share schemes under Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules

e To engage such external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Remuneration Committee on issues as it considers
necessary

In 2024, the Remuneration Committee confirmed the remuneration
policy for the Executive Director, assessed his performances as well
as reviewed his employment contract with the Group. They also
delegated the CEO the authority to approve the remuneration of
senior management and all other employees of the Group. Details
of remuneration of Directors and the senior management are set
out in notes 11 and 36(b) of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements section.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the
Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out
below:

%Mia%%ﬁ

BEMRAULI7TERTHRD A EEES
HETRNR SOESSREEE

e HFEMEEESRAETENSENMNEEHX
BE ZEE2RHEHBERHER

A2024%F  HFNEESCERAITES BN
BE - FEERBRENEEAEBNERE
o BENRCETFTHARES  LUBEBR
AEBSRAEBEAEREME2EBET 2 FM -
EERSREEB M EENGSMBR
KMFE11R36()R ©

HZE2024F 12831 A L EERSEEE D
ZOREEERENMSEINT :

REH

Number of
Remuneration bands persons
B < %5 AH
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/& 7t £2,000,000/& 7T 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7t £2,500,00078 7T 2
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 7T £6,000,0008 7T 1

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix D2 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes 10 and 11 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Non-executive Director
and two Independent Non-executive Directors, with a majority being
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee generally
meets before the annual general meeting, or at other times as
required by the Chairman of the Committee. The Committee will
nominate such candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly
review the composition of the Board as well as make suggestions
on any change that may be required.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

° To review the structure, size and composition of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate
strategy

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

e To identify and nominate candidates to the Board for it to
appoint or to recommend to shareholders for election
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Nomination Committee (continued)

e To regularly review the time required from a Director to perform
his responsibilities

e To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer as well as the senior management

e To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the
policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy to set out the criteria
and process in the nomination and appointment of Directors, and
to ensure the balance of skills and experience and diversity of the
Board and the Board’s continuity.

The ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of the
Director rests with the entire Board; the Nomination Committee has
been delegated the responsibility and authority to assess and select
potential Director candidates.

In assessing a Director candidate’s suitability, the Nomination
Committee will consider, among other things, reputation for
integrity, qualifications, skills, knowledge, experience, willingness
and ability to devote adequate time to discharge his duties as
Director, independence, diversity, etc.

The Director nomination procedures and process are set out in
the Company’s nomination policy (which can be found in the
Company’s website), which are summarized below:

° The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon
receipt of the proposal on appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details) of the candidate,
evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out in
the nomination policy to determine whether such candidate is
qualified for directorship.

e |f the process yields one or more desirable candidates, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board should rank them by
order of preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable).

e The Nomination Committee should then recommend to the
Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.
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Nomination Committee (continued)

e For any person that is nominated by a shareholder of the
Company for election as a director at the general meeting of
the Company (please refer to the Company’s website for the
relevant procedures), the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship.

e  Where appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the
Board should make recommendation to the shareholders in
respect of the proposed election of director at the general
meeting.

The Company also recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. In this
connection, the Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy (which
can be found in the Company’s website) to set out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. All Board appointments
will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against appropriate criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

The Company commits to selecting the best person for the role.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

See the paragraph headed “Board Composition” for the composition
of the Board.

In 2024, the Nomination Committee reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the nomination procedures, the process
and criteria to select and recommend candidate for directorship and
the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee considers
that the current Board composition has provided the Company with
a good balance and diversity of skills and experiences appropriate
for the business of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises one Executive Director,
two Non-executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive
Directors. It shall meet at the request of any member of the
Committee and its meetings will be facilitated by the Finance
Director, who will also participate in the discussion.

The Investment Committee, currently chaired by Mr. Wang Wah
Chi, Raymond, will evaluate and approve any strategic investment
of US$2 million or less. Any strategic investment exceeding
that amount will be proposed by the Committee for the Board’s
approval. The Committee is authorized, at the expense of the
Group, to seek external professional advice it considers necessary
and to arrange external advisers to attend its meetings. The
Committee will also periodically report the status and performance
of investments to the Board.

The main duties of the Investment Committee are as follows:
e To assist the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities
in relation to investment activities (excluding treasury or cash

management)

e To assist the Board with all of its policy setting responsibilities
related to investment

e To establish and document the basic investment principles and
beliefs held by the Committee as well as the Code of Conduct
for avoiding possible conflict of interest

e To have all necessary access and authority to seek information
from management to fulfill its objectives, duties and responsibilities

e To review the appointment of external professional advisers
e To review and monitor investment performance

e To review and advise on additions to and dispositions of
existing investments

e To review annually the terms of reference of the Committee and
to recommend to the Board any required changes

e To submit an annual work report to the Board summarizing the
Committee’s activities, findings, recommendations and results
for the past year

No investment committee meeting held during the year under review
since there were no proper investment plan and strategies.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Non-executive Director and is chaired by
Mr. Chan Chi Kong (“Mr. Chan”). Mr. Chan is a fellow member of
each of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, The Chartered
Governance Institute and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute, and a CFA charter holder of The Chartered Financial
Analyst Institute. Mr. Chan has substantial experience in auditing,
accounting, corporate finance, investment, company secretarial
practice, business development and general management. He held
chief financial officer and various senior management positions in
companies whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Chan meets the requirement of having appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules for
the purpose of such appointment.

The Audit Committee meets not less than twice a year to review
and discuss the internal audit findings, internal controls, corporate
governance, interim and annual consolidated financial statements
respectively. It may hold additional meetings from time to time to
discuss special projects or other issues it considers necessary. The
independent auditor and internal auditor of the Group may request a
meeting if they consider it necessary.

The Audit Committee will conduct, on behalf of the Board, annual
review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff for the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and training programs and budget.

The authorities of the Audit Committee include (i) investigating any
activity within its terms of reference; (ii) seeking any information it
requires from any employee; and (iii) obtaining outside legal or other
independent professional advice if required.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the independent auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
independent auditor, and deal with any question of resignation
or dismissal of that auditor

e To review with the Group’s management, independent auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s policies and
procedures regarding risk management and internal control
systems, and any statement by the Directors to be included in
the annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board

e To review independent auditor’s independence, objectivity,
effectiveness of the audit process and the scope of the
independent audit including the engagement letter, prior to
commencement of audit
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Audit Committee (continued)

To review the annual, quarterly (if any) and interim financial
reports prior to approval by the Board and liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the independent auditor

To evaluate the cooperation received by the independent
auditor; obtain the comments of management regarding the
responsiveness of the independent auditor to the Group’s
needs; inquire the independent auditor as to whether there
have been any disagreements with the management which
if not satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a
qualified report on the Group’s financial statements

To seek from the independent auditor, on an annual basis,
information about policies and processes for maintaining
independence and monitoring compliance with relevant
requirements, including provision of non-audit services and
requirements regarding rotation of audit partners and staff

To review and monitor the scope, effectiveness and results
of internal audit function, ensure co-ordination between the
internal and independent auditors and ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group

To discuss with management the scope and quality of systems
of internal control and ensure that management has discharged
its duty to have an effective internal control system including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programs and budget

To review the findings of internal investigations and the
management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements of
laws, rules and regulations

To consider other topics, as defined by the Board

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2024 to review and discuss the financial results and
reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control system and risk management review and process, to
evaluate the effectiveness of internal audit function by reviewing the
work performed by the outsourced internal audit consultant and to
re-appoint of the independent auditor of the Group.

=

TRERBEE

BREEE (&)

ERXESESHENERNFE  ZE (W
B)RTHBBHRER REESSNSH
EEEREN MZEESLAEBIERE
MEFgamEL MR

AEBUZYMREEERSENES
WEEEEUARB I REAE EALER
FENRR ERBURHMBEHEEE
BREEMNZR D5 - UBCEEERRER
1M 48 24038 37 A% BUAM i AN 55 [ Y B 7 Rk B
HAERESRNKRSE

BEBERBULBMEHBAES B
K BE 2R A8 ST AR BE AR E T R AR B9 BOR
BFNESR  BEEEGRERMHUFBLRBER
BERTEMSRNERAREINREIR
SE

WA RERABELBEN SIS - WA
FR BERABRBLZBMERERT
LUR BRARELHEREEHERILNA
SEAFRE ML

HEREHNAMEENEERER - )
kR EEECEITHBERRANIMER
A BARN  BEREER S RUKE
BAEBWERKERMNEEES T HEIE
ENAERARAEN

BEEAMERTHABTARITSRBERR
MEBEE IR AP B R OER ~ RAIRSK
PIERNABAEERREEEND R

ZREETEREMNHMER

BEREESTHNEIL2024F12A31ALEEY

T=

REE  BHRNRARENYBEEER

WE - WBHMERETTRNEF - AIWEEE
ZokEREEFEMNERET BHMNEAIE
AR B T AE LARF (5 AR E St B RE O B S ME AN
BIEARKENE L ZHE -

RFIFERARAT |

2024 R 51



TXE

B

wE

Audit Committee (continued)

As the Audit Committee is also responsible for corporate governance
duties, the Committee performed the following duties during the year
ended 31 December 2024:

e To note the amendments to Corporate Governance Code under
Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules from time to time in particular
in the area of risk management, and to review the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to ensure
compliance

e  To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management

e To review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements

e To review and monitor the Code of Conduct applicable to
employees and the Directors

e To review the compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report

ESG Task Force Committee

Pursuant to Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules, an ESG Task Force
Committee was established in 2021 under the delegated authority
of the Board. The ESG Task Force Committee was chaired by
the Executive Director of the Company working on promoting
and implementing various activities and measures regarding
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) matters. The
Committee members include the Company Secretary, the Human
Resources Director, heads of various operational departments and
Corporate Communication Manager. The Committee meets at least
once annually and a separate ESG Report has been published on
the same date as this Annual Report. During the year under review,
the Directors and members of the ESG Task Force Committee had
received a formal training on anti-corruption.

The main duties of the Committee are as follows:

e Formulate and review the Group’s responsibilities, visions,
strategies, frameworks, principles and policies of ESG related
issues and implement relevant policies;

° Set, implement and oversee ESG relevant targets, key
performance indicators and measures that align with the
Group’s business model and effectively monitor the progress;

e Identify ESG related issues arising from external factors;

e  Organize and monitor staff trainings related to ESG matters;

e Assist in the preparation of the Group’s annual ESG report
and submit it to the Board for their review and approval for
publication; and

e Report any new development of matters with its terms of
reference to the Board when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Accountability and Audit

Financial reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the consolidated
financial statements of the annual and interim reports. The Directors
have prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis, with supporting assumptions or qualifications as
necessary. When the Directors are aware of material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, such
uncertainties will be clearly and prominently set out and discussed
at length in this Corporate Governance Report.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The Group’s independent auditor is Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young
is responsible for auditing and forming an independent opinion on
the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements. Apart from
the statutory audit of the annual consolidated financial statements,
Ernst & Young was also engaged to perform a review on the
condensed consolidated interim financial information of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2024 as well as advise the Group
on taxation and related matters.

The fees payable by the Group to the independent auditor in
respect of audit and non-audit services (including tax advisory
service) provided by them for the year ended 31 December 2024 are
US$155,000 (2023: US$155,000) and US$89,000 (2023: US$68,000)
respectively.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board
on governance matters and should also facilitate induction and
continuous training of Directors. In 2024, the Company Secretary
has undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training
which exceeded the requirement of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has full access to the advices and services of the
Company Secretary.

Diversity of workforce

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total workforce of 315
employees, of which 67% (211) are males, and 33% (104) are
females. Among the senior management team of 5 members, 4 of
them are males and the remaining one is female.

While we believe our future employee recruitment should
predominantly be based on merit and do not consider it appropriate
to set any target gender ratio for our workforce, we recognize
and embrace the benefits of having a diverse workforce, and will
continue to enhance the diversity of our workforce, subject to
availability of suitable candidates.
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Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

Shareholders’ rights of the Company are at all times highly
regarded by the Group. The Group will make sure the Company’s
shareholders know how to exercise their rights. The Group provides
effective channels for the Company’s shareholders to communicate
their ideas to the Group and exert their rights.

General meetings can be convened on the written requisition of any
two or more members of the Company (or, in the case of a member
being a recognized clearing house (or its nominee) any one member
of the Company) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company.

The requisition shall be deposited at the principal office of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to
have such a principal office, the registered office, specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionist(s).

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened
by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

The Company amended the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company in order to bring the same in line with
the recent amendments to the Listing Rules and Companies Law of
the Cayman Island, and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) in 2014.

With regard to general enquiry, a shareholder may contact the
Company’s Share Registrar directly. Information on proceedings
at general meetings, votes of members, proxies, dividends and
reserves, transfer of shares and other information are detailed in
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, which
is accessible for inspection at the Company’s Share Registrar,
through website of the Group or the website of the Stock Exchange.
The contact details of the Share Registrar is on page 178 of this
Annual Report. In the event that a shareholder wishes to put forward
a proposal to the Board or at a shareholders’ meeting, he may
put forth his enquiry in writing to the Corporate Communications
Section of the Group who will act on the subject matter accordingly.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholders Communication

The Company considers that communication with its shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and its shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy,
which is published on the Company website, reflecting mostly
the current practices of the Company for communication with
its shareholders. Such policy aims at providing the shareholders
and potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced
and understandable information of the Company. The Board will
regularly reviewed the policy and considered the effectiveness and
compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.

For the year under review, the Group has taken a proactive approach
to communicate with the investment community, for example,
institutional investors, analysts and retail investors. For the year
ended 31 December 2024, the Group conducted meetings and
conference calls with investors and analysts. To enhance the Group’s
profile among the general public in Hong Kong, interviews were
conducted with local media, and group visits to its principal office
were arranged with local universities and technology institutions.

The views of investors are invaluable to the Company. To improve
its communication with investors, the Company has been collecting
ideas from shareholders and feedback from the investment
community. The Company also appreciates the opportunity to meet
shareholders face-to-face. The Company’s Articles of Association
has accommodated the use of websites for communication with
shareholders since 2009.

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors, including (i) annual reports, interim
reports, notices of meetings, circulars and proxy forms which are
required under the Listing Rules. Shareholders can also choose (or
are deemed to have consented) to receive such documents using
electronic means through the Company’s website; (i) the annual
general meeting which provides a forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii) the Company’s
website which provides updated and key information on the Group
and offers a communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and stakeholders; (iv) media conferences and briefing
meetings with analysts to be held to update interested parties on
the performance of the Group; (v) the Company’s Registrar which
deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters;
and (vi) the Corporate Communications Section of the Group which
handles enquiries from shareholders and investors generally.
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Shareholders Communication (continued)

The Board has reviewed the shareholder communication policy and
considered that it is effective and properly implemented.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as at 31 December 2024,
Huada/CEC held about 28.27% of the Company’s shares, the Board
held roughly 0.53%, and the remaining approximately 71.2%, is
believed to be in public hands.

The website of the Group (www.solomon-systech.com) is also
updated constantly to inform investors and the general public of
the latest information of the Group, for example, the important
dates for shareholders in the coming year. Further information for
shareholders can be found on pages 178 to 180 of this Annual
Report.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in January 2019,
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, to provide stable and sustainable
returns to the Shareholders.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject
to the absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of
final dividend will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s operations and earnings, the
general financial condition of the Group, the cash requirements and
availability and any other factors that the Board thinks appropriate
from time to time.

The Company’s ability to pay dividends is also subject to the
requirements of the Listing Rules, all relevant applicable laws, rules
and regulations in Cayman Islands.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board has responsibilities for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems within
the Group are designed to help the Group achieve key initiatives,
and represent the Group’s efforts in protecting its physical assets,
information and technology. As maintaining an effective control
system is a shared responsibility of all in the Group, the Group is
dedicated to educating all employees via trainings to ensure they
understand the importance of internal control policies and adhere to
them.

To facilitate effective internal control system, the Group adopted
the Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.
The presence of risk management and internal control systems
empowers the Group to implement best business practices in
dynamic and challenging business environments.

The Group implemented the ‘Three Lines of Defence’ model as a
way of explaining the relationship between functions and as a guide
to how responsibilities of risk management should be divided:

° Under the first line of defence, operational management
has ownership, responsibility and accountability for directly
assessing, controlling and mitigating risks;

e The second line of defence consists of activities covered by
components of internal governance (compliance, financial
controller, quality, IT and other control departments). This
line of defence monitors and facilitates the implementation
of effective risk management practices by operational
management and assists the risk owners in reporting adequate
risk related information up and down the organization; and

e Internal audit forms the Group’s third line of defence. The
outsourced internal audit consultant, through a risk-based
approach to its work, provides reasonable assurance to the
Group’s board of directors and senior management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group takes proactive measures to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks arising from its recurrent and growth
businesses and from the constantly changing business environment.
The Group uses risk management matrix to determine risk level.
Each risk is evaluated by the likelihood of the identified risk and the
consequence of the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the required
management attention and risk treatment effort. All risks are ranked
and their treatment is determined by a combination of likelihood and
consequence according to a risk matrix, which takes account of risk
appetite. Operation units and management held regular meetings to
review the progress of risk treatment actions and the effectiveness
of the risk management.

The board oversees the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board reviewed and assessed twice a year the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems in audit
committee meetings for the year ended 31 December 2024,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions, by considering:

(@) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment;

(b) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems, and the work of its
internal audit function and independent auditor;

(c) the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the board which enables it to assess control of the
Group and the effectiveness of risk management;

(d) significant control failings or weaknesses that have been
identified during the period (if any). Also, the extent to which
they have resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies
that have had, could have had, or may in the future have,
a material impact on the Group’s financial performance or
condition;

(e) the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rule compliance;

() the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training program and budget of the Groups’ accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

(9) the proper handling and dissemination of inside information.

The Board also reviewed the Group’s operating and financial
performance against the financial budget on a quarterly basis while
senior management closely monitored the financial performance on
a monthly basis.

58

Solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2024

REREERAIBEE (F)

REFFRIEBE R - @5 - FFEANEEEL
FHNBREBZ AR TN E R RBIRG T
REVE A EBR - 25 5 B 68 ) [ B e 7 A el DA HE
TE BB K o 5518 [ B B At Bl A L PR Y AT BE
PERERRSE A& RRTME - ARFTRRRT
FRENEREERINAREHMENS D - fr
BRREETHES  YSTRARRE - R\
AREMEMZRNEASEERMEL G - X5
BEUNEEECHERNSRUETERABEEE
REHEEARBEBEENERME -

ExENEEERENAREENATESR

B

BZE2024F12A31ALLEE  EESFFEMNX
ETEZZEEERTHRAREERAITEEN
M BENE . BENERESURERE
EERE ZEMT :

(a) EXEABAMENBERENEZ LUK
AEERNHEBEZRIIMEREEEN

ok .
Be s

(b) EEEFEEEAREAMPEZRASGNT
%ﬁﬁﬁig'&mﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ§ﬁ%
VIAE S

(c) NESSEEERERNIRRERR
¥ HABESEFLAKENERERER
kEBEENBEREE

d) BRABRENEREZRRRABRNEAE
BEEECER) UREALEICREEAR
MERFBZSIBERNBRERE H MaFR
RABAUAEENMBERBALBREE
géT%EEEﬁ%Kﬂ%EEEWEﬁ

(e) AREEBUBRERET
ENRBFEERA

H EEzEH ADBHANUBRENE
B TEABERMER  ZIHENE
BEREBRZE R

(9 ZERENMEBRABHER -
ESENEEFUNBRERERLAEEER

kBB RE FARSRERETSREERS
ANERMHERR -

(EmRANR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The management is committed to improve the Group’s overall risk
management approach and strategy. They continuously monitors
the global business environment, industry development, as well
as internal processes, to ensure the existing risk management
and internal control systems can identify and manage risks and
opportunities effectively.

In 2024, the management reviewed the existing risk management
and internal control systems and certain modification of the system
have be implemented during the year under review. The Company
has engaged a consultant to tick off the assessment on Cyber
Security for vulnerability scanning and network infrastructure
penetration test. The management continues to review the adequacy
of its risk management and control framework and looks for
opportunities to make improvements and add appropriate resources
when necessary.

The Group has outsourced internal audit consultant, who will
prepare regular report to the Audit Committee. The outsourced
internal audit consultant provides an independent assessment of
the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems in accordance with the Code, and assists the
Audit Committee to conduct regular reviews of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, which include the
review of the effectiveness of financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. Different audit areas are
assigned with different risk ratings and an audit plan is formulated
accordingly so that priority and appropriate audit frequency is given
to areas with higher risks. The outsourced internal audit consultant
conducts regular financial and operational reviews on the Group and
reports directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee regularly.
The Group monitors the follow up actions agreed upon in response
to its recommendations.

The Finance Director, after consulting the outsourced internal
audit consultant updates CEO about the internal audit working
progress on a regular basis. The Audit Committee reviews the work
performed by outsourced internal audit consultant and summary
of major findings and control weaknesses, if any, at least twice
every year to ensure the effectiveness of internal audit function, risk
management and internal control system.

The Group has established and published a whistleblowing policy
and a system on anti-fraud for employees and third parties to raise
concerns in confidence, which complied with the recommended
best practice in the Code. In 2024, no incident of fraud or
misconduct was reported from employees or stakeholders that
had material effect on the Group’s financial statements and overall
operations.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

The Group also established policy on Protection of Proprietary
Information of the Group to ensure that the confidential proprietary
information, including business, technical, financial or personal
information that has significant value to Group are properly
protected.

The Board confirmed a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted and
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group in 2024 are effective and adequate and the Company
had complied with the Code Provisions.

The Board acknowledged the responsibility to review the effectiveness
of risk management and internal controls systems of the Group.
However, investors and shareholders are reminded that the systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the constitutional document of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2024.

Principal activities and geographical
analysis of operations
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 83.

The Board of the Company does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to US$11,000 (2023: US$14,000).

Share capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2024,
comprising share premium reserve of US$103,869,000 that is
subject to the regulation of Section 34 of the Cayman Islands
Companies Law and the Articles of Association of the Company, the
accumulated losses of US$102,320,000, totalling US$1,549,000 net
are available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Equity linked agreements - Share options
granted to directors and employees

Details of the share options granted in prior years are set out in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements and “The Share Option
Scheme” section contained in this Report of the Directors. No share
options was granted for the year.
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Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there is no restriction against such rights
under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December is set out
on page 174.

Purchase, sale or redemption of Company’s
listed shares

Save in respect of the options granted and/or shares issued by the
Company pursuant to its share option scheme (the details of which
are disclosed below), there was no purchase, sale or redemption
of the Company’s listed shares by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Permitted indemnity provisions EETFHNRBEMRK
Pursuant to the Company’s Articles, subject to the provisions of the RIBEANTER  EEREXHNRET 58
statutes, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out of ZEEWEREFEEAEEATMARSHMEE
the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred EREF (EEHBFRNFESERE) NEMEEH
or sustained by him as a Director in defending any proceedings, WHEAZHW—EAREZFE  RAQATWEED
whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given in his favour, EEREE AAFCSHRFEESHREE  UFEE
or in which he is acquitted. The Company has taken appropriate EEEAEBERR IBMAKEENZER
insurance cover to indemnify the Directors against possible claims Z&H1f - XA T EREMNEBE IR LR iE AR
and liabilities arising out of the Group’s business and activities. Z2024%F 12831 LB BEERBERKER
The relevant provisions in the Company’s Articles and the aforesaid HiBE#
insurance were in force during the financial year ended 31
December 2024 and as of the date of this report.
The Share Option Scheme BIRETE
The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share AR TIHR2013F58288 BITHWRRBERS
Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on 28 May B 34— 2 ([2013EEEE]) -
2013. Details can be referred to in note 26(a) to the consolidated 152 ERERE1582162BE NES MEHR
financial statements on pages 158 to 162 of this Annual Report. FK M FE26(a) °
Valuation of share options EBREEE
The Company uses Binomial Valuation Model to value the share ZARATHHA= E‘TE&%E—I—%’E&EE&HH&E’J
options granted. Details of the key parameters used in the Model and EE - AEEEAURERXNTEREZHERY
the corresponding fair values of the share options granted during the EZEZERHNBEREZAFTEFXEZREESH
year should be referred to in note 26(a) to the consolidated financial  #% ¥ 3% [f 5¥26(a) o 742024 5 [ 181 £ % H B8 %
statements. No share options was granted during the year 2024. The #£ - A2023F AT FHEHBE A T B IREFEB W
details of the share options granted to the respective parties during T :
2023 are as follows:
2023
Number
(in thousand unitg} Value
(& BE
(AAFAz3h) ST
Current directors BRES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TESL 3,000 63
Chan, Philip Ching Ho BREZ 800 17
Subtotal for Current directors BEEE/G 3,800 80
Ex-directors MES
Leung Heung Ying (i) REE() 800 17
Sheu Wei Fu (i) FHE X () 800 17
Subtotal for Ex-directors BIEE /5T 1,600 34
Senior management BREEE 500 14
Employees 8T - -
Total @st 5,900 128
() The share options were granted on 25 May 2023. As on the grant (i) %18 i IR # 202345 A 25E| ?‘i.‘ﬂ REH
date, the grantees were directors of the Company. The directors were H ARAABRQRAES -ZEECIRFBH

resigned with effect from 1 November 2023.
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Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2024  7A2024% 12831 H B8 7201388 R £ s+ 2

under the 2013 Share Option Scheme are as follows: ZHERENEBOT
Nurber of share options (in thousand units)
BRE®E (AT
Exercise price *Share price of
Lapsed/ for the share the Company
Held on Grant Exercised forfeited Held on options immediately before
1 January during during during 31 December  grantedper  the exercise/grant date
Name of Directors 2024 the year the year the year 2024 share of share options (note) Grantdate  Vesting Period/date Exercise Period
HKS HKS
SRERE
Haous FREEE/  RomE  SEERE i/ BaRHz
E2tB 1A1BHE  GRERE  EREAE HE 10BYBRE  RHZORE  WALARE (M) RHAE 5B/ ik
iy iy
Executive Directors
#iEz
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond 3,000 - - (3,000 - 0.840 NA/.790 1June 2021 1 Jung 2021 1 Jung 2022
1 to 31 May 2022 to 31 May 2024
W156R18 20156414 02056718
E0F5A31E FUE5R31A
3,000 - - - 3,000 0530 NA0.520 22 June 2022 22 Jung 2022 From 23 June 2023
to 20 June 2025
06728 2020567228 2023567238
E00556R20A
3,000 - - - 3,000 0463 NA/.455 25 May 2023 25May 2023 From 25 May 2023
to 25 May 2025
A23E5A258 22357258 B2023E57258
F00555R%A
Subtotal
gt 9,000 - - (3,000) 6,000
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUjES
Chan Philip Ching Ho 800 - - (800) - 0.840 NA0.790 1 June 2021 1 June 2021 1June 2022
RiZ o 31 May 2022 to 31 May 2024
215618 2156818 N0E6A18
F020%5R31A F004E5R31A
800 - - - 800 0530 NA0.520 22 June 2022 22 June 2022 From 23 June 2023
to 21 June 2023 to 20 June 2025
0265228 2002%6R228 B3GR
ENE6AE  ZANBECANAL
800 - - - 800 0463 NA/0.455 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 From 25 May 2023
to 25 May 2025
22358250 2023%5425H H023E5 A5
BN0ESRBRLE
Subtotal
it 2400 - - (800) 1,600
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Number of share options (in thousand units)

BRE®E (AT
Exercise price *Share price of
Lapsed/ for the share the Company
Held on Grant Exercised forfeited Held on options immediately before
1 January during during during 31 December granted per ~ the exercise/grant date
Name of Directors 2024 the year the year the year 2024 share  of share options (note) Grant date ~ Vesting Period/date Exercise Period
HKS HKS
2RERE
Moo EhEay/ HouE  GRERE fift/RiREL
FEL 1R1BRE  EMERE  EMEAE HE 10RMREE  RHZABE  WALARE (h) ik BEHA s
iy £
Senior management & others 4,960 - - (4,960) - 0.790 NAO.770 8 December 2021 8 December 2021 8 June 2022
BRERERLM to 7 June 2022 07 June 2024
A21E12A8A A21E1288R N2E6H8E
B0E6RTA B004E6RTH
7,440 - - (960) 6,480 0.790 NAQ.T70 8 December 2021 8 December 2021 8 Jung 2023
to 7 June 2023 o 6 June 2025
A21F12A8A A21E1288A 0236888
E203E6R7A B005E656R
20 - (250) - - 0530 NA0.520 22 June 2022 2June 2022 From 23 June 2023
to 21 June 2023 to 20 June 2025
020565228 1202065208 H2003E6 5238
Bo03E6A218  Eo05E6RAL
250 - (250) - - 0530 NA0.520 22 June 2022 22June 2022 From 24 June 2024
to 21 June 2024 to 23 June 2026
02065228 1202265228 2046 24R
BUE6R218  Z06E6ANAL
250 - - - 20 0.546 NA0.500 24 March 2023 24 March 2023 From 25 March 2024
to 24 March 2024 to 24 March 2026
A3E3FUR H023E3A2UA B0UEIAH
TUEIBUAE ZABEIRUAL
250 - - - 20 0.546 NA0.500 24 March 2023 24 March 2023 From 25 March 2025
to 24 March 2025 to 24 March 2027
NBE3RUA 12003535248 12025535258
B)0SEIRUR B2UTESRURL
1,600 - - (1,600) - 0.840 NAD.790 1 June 2021 1 June 2021 to 1June 2022 to
31 May 2022 31 May 2024
156318 W1E6A1RE N0E6A1AE
N20E5831H 2024%5831A
1,600 - (800) - 800 0530 NA0.520 22 June 2022 22 June 2022to  From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
N2E6RNA BANNE6ENE  HAE6BRE
0236821A 255632081
1,600 - (800) - 800 0.463 NA0.455 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 From 25 May 2023 to
25 May 2025
2023258258 ANESABE  HANESEBAE
A5E5A5R1E
Subtotal 18,200 - 2,100 (7,520) 8,580
it
Total
a3t 29,600 - 2,100 (11,320) 16,180

The weighted average share closing price of the shares immediately
before the date on which the options were exercised or the closing
price of the shares immediately before the dates on which the options
were granted (as applicable)
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Performance target and clawback mechanism
There is no performance target nor clawback mechanism attached
to the Options.

The Remuneration Committee is of the view that a clawback
mechanism is not necessary considering the lapse and cancellation
of share options under various scenarios has already been provided
for under the 2013 Share Option Scheme, which could adequately
safeguard the Company’s interests.

The Remuneration Committee has noted that the purpose of the
2013 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or to reward the
Grantees for their contribution to the Group and the 2013 Share
Option Scheme does not restrictively specify the contribution.

The Remuneration Committee has also considered that (a) under
the remuneration practice of the Group, the remuneration of the
Grantees (including that of the directors) include the grant of share
options to incentivise their performance and to make continuous
contributions to the growth and development of the Group; (b) in
relation to the directors, their respective remuneration packages
have been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee to be in
line with the industry practice and in recognition of their leading
roles and responsibilities towards the management and strategic
development of the Company; and (c) in relation to other Grantees,
their respective remuneration packages have been determined
having regard to their industry experience, tenure and roles with
the Group and contribution to the growth and development of
the Group. The Remuneration Committee, in recommending the
grant of share options, have assessed the Grantee’s contribution
to the growth and development to the Group from qualitative and
quantitative perspectives, having regard to a wide variety of factors
including financial and operational goals from time to time, and peer
and industry wide comparison in the prevailing circumstances, and
will make any such assessment as and when appropriate.

Based on the above, the Remuneration Committee is of the
view that the share options granted to the Directors and senior
management during the year ended 31 December 2023 without
any performance target is market competitive and aligns with the
purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme.

Financial Assistance

The Group has not provided any financial assistance to the Grantees
to facilitate the purchase of Shares under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme.
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The Group’s environmental policies and
performance

Other than financial performance, the Group believes that a high
standard of corporate social responsibility is essential for building
up a good corporate and social relationship and motivating staff and
creating a sustainable return to the Group. We are committed to
contributing to the sustainability of the environment and community
in which we conduct business and where our stakeholders live. The
Group’s ESG Report for 2024 has been published on the same date of
this Annual Report and has been published separately on the Company’s
website at www.solomon-systech.com and the website of the Stock
Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk.

Relationships with employees

People are the Group’s most valuable asset. The Group believes
in communicating with staff and giving them training and career
development opportunities. It also recognizes good performance. It
provides a variety of activities for staff to help them achieve work-
life balance. Remuneration packages are generally structured with
reference to prevailing market terms and individual’s qualifications.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related bonus. Share options may also be granted to eligible
employees of the Group.

Directors

Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were:

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Yuchuan

Mr. Wang Hui

Ms. Liu Fei (appointed on 13 May 2024)

Dr. Kang Jian (resigned with effect from 13 May 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Kong

Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho

Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing
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In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Wang Hui, Ms. Liu Fei and Dr. Chan Philip Ching
Ho will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
Mr. Wang Hui, Ms. Liu Fei and Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director of the Company or
an entity connected with a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 26 to 34 of this Annual Report.
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Directors’ interests

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares
of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV
of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

of Listed Companies were as follows:

EEER

R2024F 128310 ' BESRITBAHRAR
AREABEE(EER R E S R ERG)HN R
BREEROTEBECRRERSRPEK
PIEXVEREIS2MFRMEAR R A AFENETH
BE EARBETRITAZESETIESRS
MEREFHMERAD T RBIMNESER KR
LU

% of the
issued share
capital of the

Ordinary shares in the Company as at
31 December 2024
2024512 AXDALER

Share Company
Position Shares Options" Total EARDFE
BREMR B BRgo @it BORAEAL
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (CEO) TEREE(THAR) Long H#& 5,600,000 6,000,000 (i) 11,600,000 0.46%
Non-executive Directors FYTES
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman) EE%EE(XR) Long #& - - - -
Mr. Wang Hui IBELE Long ##& - - - -
Ms. Liu Fei (appointed on 13 May 2024) ~ &¥x+ Long #& - - - -
(R2024F5 B 13REZ1E)
Dr. Kang Jian (resigned with effect from ~ E#l#EL Long #& - - - -
13 May 2024) (R2024F5813 A BHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Mr. Chan Chi Kong FrEE Long ##& - - - -
Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho BREZHET Long ##& - 1,600,000 (i) 1,600,000 0.06%
Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing BERELT Long #& - - - -
Notes: BEt -
(i)  Share options granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme with more (i) ZEHEKREBRIFL013ERETE (FIERE
details on pages 62 to 65. 62FI658) 1R Z B IR FE -

(i)

(i)
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The 800,000 share options of the Company granted to Dr. Chan Philip
Ching Ho on 22 June 2022 have been vested are exercisable from 23
June 2023 to 20 June 2025, and another 800,000 share options of the
Company granted to Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho on 25 May 2023 have
been vested and are exerciseable from 25 May 2023 to 25 May 2025.

The 3,000,000 share options of the Company granted to Mr. Wang Wah
Chi Raymond on 22 June 2022 have been vested and are exercisable
from 23 June 2023 to 20 June 2025, and another 3,000,000 share
options of the Company granted to Mr. Wang Wah Chi Raymond on 25
May 2023 have been vested and are exercisable from 25 May 2023 to
25 May 2025.
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Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year, Directors
and Chief Executive Officer (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interests in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company and
its associated corporation required to be disclosed pursuant to the
SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its associated corporation a party to
any arrangement to enable Directors and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
associated corporation.

Substantial shareholders’ interests

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at
31 December 2024, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, being interests of 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

BrEXPRINEESN  REREMAEE  EER
THAR (BERSE2EBRFREISEUT
NFL)BEEAIERTFHITERBEESR
HERGIATREARBAQRAREAEER
Z R HEHER o

Br E PRI MEREMESHE @ BEAR
A HNBARSHABE B EMLHNE
P BAQAESRTRAR (BERE
ZEBRFEEISRATHNFR)FAERAF
A AEOLE AR RABBE R 0 HEEENE
AERIKA -

FTERRER

BBEEERPEKHEXVEEI6IEEEE
MEERRZEAMATT » 182024F12831
H> AQGRCEMNETIEERRWERS KA
B (EIRAQB B BITRAEES%SE L L
&) HEEZALYEENARQAREERT
BUARRER LIS o

Ordinary shares in the Company
as at 31 December 2024
R2024F12 831 B AR AEER

% of the

Number of issued share

Number of share options capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity Position shares held held Total Company

RRER at BEMR  FRROHE FSEREHE g BRAEE

BIRTEIL

Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd Beneficial owner Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.27%
EREBRERAT BREEEA #a

*China Electronics Limited Interest of controlled corporation Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.27%
HEEFERAR st EEHER i)

China Electronics Corporation (i) Interest of controlled corporation Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.27%
FEEFEEEEREERAR Pl EENER #e

Note: BaF

(i) To the best knowledge of the directors of the Company, Huada
Semiconductor Co., Ltd is a subsidiary which 58.07% hold by China
Electronics Limited, and China Electronics Limited is 81.66% owned
by China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”). CEC is a stated-owned
information technology conglomerate under the administration of the
central government of the People’s Republic of China.

English name is for identification purpose only

() BERAZEBHL EAFBEFRLIFAH
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no other
persons (other than the Directors) were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
as having interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company.

Management contracts

No contracts, saved for service contracts of the Director and
employment contracts, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company were entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases REE

— the largest supplier —ERARMHER

- five largest suppliers combined - HARMHEREET
Sales HE

- the largest customer —BAEF

— five largest customers combined - BREFEE

BREMFTIREE S 0 20245128318 © R
HE N BERPFEIBRA LB ETHEFNE
PR s MEHEMA L (BEERM EEE
NARDREEARDNVEDZRLE -

EEEH

BRESNRBESORERSHON  FAMBES
AEREAERAQAEHAEMNERND XK
MEBERTERHEH -

TEHREBREFR

rEEEIEHEBRLREFREAFENREBR
HEABMLEWT :

29.0%
73.1%

38.1%
74.5%

None of the Directors of the Company, their associates or any
shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in the major
suppliers or customers noted above.

Related parties and connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group entered
into certain transactions with related parties as defined under
the applicable accounting standards, which include transactions
that constitute connected/continuing connected transactions for
which the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with. Details of the related parties transactions
are disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.
The following transactions between certain connected persons (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements, if necessary,
had been made by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

70

Solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2024

BMEADFRZ2EE HBEASEARER (5
ESMABEBARRARANS% U EH) R EiE
ERERRIEFTHEEES -

EHLIRBERS

BZE2024F12A31HIEFER  AEBEEE
AETEAREABHB ST ETETRSE  EF
BREEREE FEREXSFYC BT LETR
ABERENRS BHAIRIBEINES
B R R M 5E36 o IR E R AISFE14AZ IR
BHET ZETEEAN (RLHHREAESR) EAE
ERETHTIRSECT IR, RIFEET -
EI'EZIK'AE)Em}f;tmﬁﬂua'ﬁﬁi«ﬁwa%ﬁmﬁ
MEE) o



N |

—

Connected transactions

HES, an indirect subsidiary of CEC, entered into a licence
agreement with each of Solomon Systech (China) Limited and
Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company) respectively on 29 October 2021 in connection with
the grant of licenses to the Group on the installation and execution
of certain Electronic Design Automation (EDA) tools for internal use
and development of the Group’s own products for a two years’
term from 30 October 2021 to 29 October 2023. The consideration
payable by the Group to HES amounted to CNY4,000,200,
among which, CNY2,000,100 was paid by 30 November 2021 and
CNY2,000,100 was paid by 30 November 2022. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 29 October
2021. On 30 October 2023, HES entered into a licence agreement
with each of Solomon Systech (China) Limited and Solomon Systech
(Shenzhen) Limited (wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company)
respectively with the same nature as the previous agreement for
a three years’ term from 30 October 2023 to 29 October 2026.
The consideration payable by the Group to HES amounted to
CNY6,250,000, among which, CNY2,050,000 was paid by 30
November 2023, CNY2,100,000 shall be payable by 30 November
2024 and CNY2,100,000 shall be payable by 30 November 2025.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 October 2023.

Continuing connected transactions

On 22 October 2020, the Group entered into an agreement (“2021
Products Sales and Distribution Agreement”) with CEACI, an
indirect subsidiary of CEC, under which CEACI would act as a non-
exclusive authorized distributor of the Group in Mainland China and
Hong Kong, and purchase IC and driver products from the Group
for the years 2021 to 2023 (“Sales to CEACI). The prices for the
products under the Sales to CEACI shall be determined fairly in
accordance with the costs, resources and technology requirements
with reference to market practices and prices and having taken into
account the technology and quality of the relevant products. Such
agreement was approved by the independent shareholders at the
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 4 December 2020.

On 6 May 2022, the Company and CEACI entered into a
supplemental agreement to revise the annual caps in respect of
the Sales to CEACI as set out in the abovementioned agreement.
The supplemental agreement was approved by the independent
shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 22 June
2022.

For further details of the continuing connected transaction on the
Sales to CEACI, please refer to the circulars of the Company dated
12 November 2020, 21 April 2021 and 7 June 2022, respectively.
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As the 2021 Products Sales and Distribution Agreement expired
on 31 December 2023, and the Company intends to continue
carrying out the existing arrangements with CEACI under the 2021
Products Sales and Distribution Agreement on sales and distribution
of the Products within the Territory as part of the Group’s usual
and ordinary course of business, the Company entered into the
2024 Products Sales and Distribution Agreement with CEACI (as
defined in the circular of the Company date 5 December 2023)
on 14 November 2023 to renew the arrangements under the 2021
Products Sales and Distribution Agreement for a term of three years.
Such agreement was approved by independent shareholders at
the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 20 December 2023. The
annual caps for continuing connected transactions for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2026 under the 2024 Products
Sales and Distribution Agreement are US$65 million; US$75 million
and US$85 million, respectively. Details of which have been set out
in the announcement of the Company on 14 November 2023 and
circular of the Company on 5 December 2023.

On 20 December, 2024 (after trading hours), Solomon Systech
Limited, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Testing Service Framework Agreement with Beijing
ChipAdvanced, pursuant to which Beijing ChipAdvanced agreed
to provide testing services in relation to IC products and systems
to Solomon Systech Limited, including but not limited to chip
probing, testing tooling and engineering services for a period from
20 December 2024 to 31 December 2026. The annual caps under
the Testing Service Framework Agreement for each of the three
years ending 31 December 2026 shall not exceed US$500,000,
US$750,000 and US$950,000, respectively. For further details,
please refer to the announcement of the company dated 20
December 2024.

The actual transaction amount for the year ended 31 December
2024 in respect of the above continuing connected transactions on
the Sales to CEACI and Testing service fee to Beijing ChipAdvanced
was set out:

HR2021FE REE R D #HH&EN2023F12
B31HERm MAATERAEEAEE—R
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021 FEMBEENRDIEHBEETNZHEEE=
F o B ECTN2023FE 1220 E T 2R=R
BRIARE LEBIREME - RIBE2024FER
HER D HEHE - BE2026F 128318 1E=1#
FESFENFERERSNEELRS A
G5EBXT - 7ThEBEXETNSSAEBEETT c HE
—SHBENAATN2023F11A14B8 2%
K 2023F 12 85H 2 @& °

M2024F 128208 (RSEEE) @R
BRAB (RQAZ2EMBLAR) Bt RTBZE
I A RSERTGE Bt EAFEBZRE
BERPARMEERATREEBICERERAGN
AR EFEEFRRRE AR AT H®
NIRRT B/ A2024F12H820H £2026
F12831H8 - B, £2026F 128318 L =@ F
EEZFE IEBREERBZETHNEE LR
2 BIFR1E#BE 500,000% T * 750,000 T &
950,000% T - HE—DSFHBHFSZHNRAEAL
FIN2024F 128208 2 2% -

EMEEFCEACIRAEREEFLTBEZ 2
EERESZNEE2024F12A31BLEEERN
ERTZESENT :

Actual

Annual Cap transaction

for the year amount for

ended the year ended

31 December 31 December

2024 2024

BZ2024% BZE20245%

12A31A Lk 128318 Lk

EENEE EENER

tREHE X5EH

US$000 US$000

Nature of Transactions REME TERT TEn
Sales to CEACI $HEFCEACI 65,000 43,171
Testing service fees to Beijing ChipAdvanced AIERBEEBEFILREZR 500 393

The aforesaid connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction have been reviewed by independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected transaction was
entered into (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, and (d)
the relevant transactions conducted in the year ended 31 December
2024 were within the annual cap.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, together
with the Group’s outsourced internal audit consultant and Audit
Committee, have conducted regular review of the continuing
connected transaction of the Group. The Audit Committee were
satisfied that the Group’s continuing connected transaction during
the year ended 31 December 2024 have complied with the Listing
Rules requirement in all respects.

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised)“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued an unmodified letter containing findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed for
the year ended 31 December 2024 in accordance with paragraph
14A.56 of the Listing Rules, and confirm that nothing has come
to their attention that causes them to believe that the continuing
connected transactions:

(i) have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(iii) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and

(iv) have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as at 20 March 2025.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has complied
with all the applicable Code Provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix C1 of the Listing Rules effective for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (“Appendix C1”). To maintain high
standards of corporate governance, the Company has adopted the
recommended best practices in Appendix C1 where appropriate.
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Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers

The Company has its own written guidelines on securities
transactions by Directors and relevant employees on no less
exacting terms than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in Appendix C3 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that
they have been in compliance with such guidelines during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

Compliance with laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, for the year ended 31
December 2024, the Group has complied, in all material respects,
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Business review and outlook

The business review and outlook disclosure of the Group for the
year as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622 of Hong Kong) are set out on pages 15 to 18 of this Annual
Report. The business review forms part of this Report of the
Directors.

Independent auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Ma Yuchuan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 March 2025
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Ernst & Young ZXKEFTEIESFR Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place ~ &HEMAFHEEBEI795E Fax f8HE: +852 2868 4432
ﬁj{ 979 King’s Road REdh— 2748 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Solomon Systech (International) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solomon Systech (International) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 83 to 173, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group had inventories with a carrying amount of US$13.4
million as at 31 December 2024. The Group performs regular
review of the carrying amounts of inventories to determine
if any write-down of inventories to net realisable value is
required after considering the ageing analyses of inventories,
relevant historical sales, usage reports and obsolescence.

The determination of net realisable value requires
management to make significant judgements and estimates
based on expectation about future market conditions.

The related disclosures of estimation uncertainty and balance
of inventory provision are included in notes 4 and 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

We evaluated management’s assessment of
whether the estimated net realisable values
of inventories declined below their carrying
amounts. Our procedures included obtaining
an understanding of and assessing the Group’s
processes over identifying and valuing obsolete,
damaged, slow-moving, excessive and other
potentially impaired inventory items for which their
net realisable values might decline below their
carrying amounts; evaluating the methodologies,
inputs and assumptions used by the Group
in determining the net realisable values of
inventories; and assessing the write-down of
inventories required by testing the ageing analyses
of inventories, sales made and materials used
subsequent to the end of the reporting period and
historical sales and usage reports.
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AUDITOR’S
B 2B AR E

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Plan and perform the Group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business units within the Group as a basis for forming an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and review of the audit
work performed for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Yat Kin.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27th Floor, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

20 March 2025
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

B F2024F 12H31H IEFE
2024 2023
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MiaE FEr E
Revenue SHER 5 113,440 153,151
Cost of sales $HE R (75,394) (106,813)
Gross profit EF 38,046 46,338
Research and development costs T 22 I BA 3% B AR (18,673) (17,801)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBAX (4,735) (3,288)
Administrative expenses THEX (10,033) (10,499)
Other expenses HAhpa sz 8 (212) -
Other income and gains - net Hing AR i - F58 7 1,582 2,282
5,975 17,032
Finance income - net REWRA - 5 9 3,982 2,470
9,957 19,502
Share of profits/(losses) of associates  FEGEZ A RER, (1B%) 18 144 (14)
Profit before tax FRBE Al & R 6 10,101 19,488
Income tax credit/(expense) FEHREE (FAX) 12 29 (45)
Profit for the year KEE R 10,130 19,443
Attributable to: FEAL -
— Owners of the parent - WNETE X =N 10,130 19,443
- Non-controlling interests - FERER - -
10,130 19,443
Earnings per share attributable to KATREBEZFEA
ordinary equity holders of the parent: EBENEREF
(expressed in US cent(s) per share) (L= 8KR25) 13
- Basic -z 0.4 0.8
— Diluted -5 0.4 0.8
The notes on pages 90 to 173 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
B Z2024F 12A31 AL FE

2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FEn ETT
Profit for the year REERH 10,130 19,443
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Ht2mEUWBA (B%)
Other comprehensive loss that may be REZEE Ht2M|E
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BABEHIER
periods: BmK:
- Exchange differences arising on -BREBNERREE
translation of foreign operations ZERER (228) (2,007)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZEHWR AL 9,902 17,436
Attributable to: FEAL -
— Owners of the parent - KD BEBA 9,902 17,436
- Non-controlling interests - EERER - -
9,902 17,436

The notes on pages 90 to 173 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SBOE1TSEMMERZEFE M BHMRMOAKILH
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TATEMEN

EAMBHRE

As at 31 December 2024

R2024%412831A
2024 2023
Notes US$°000 US$°000
MiaE FEr =T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Intangible assets BLERE 15 - -
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERSEE 16 5,480 4,836
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 17(a) 3,052 1,391
Investments in associates REENTNRE 18 905 761
Equity investment designated at fair BRAFEEA
value through other comprehensive Hitt 2 E BRI
income RiERE 20 1,161 1,161
Other receivables, prepayments and HEWER » FERR
deposits REI & 23 398 679
Total non-current assets ERBNEELES 10,996 8,828
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories & 22 13,357 27,920
Trade and other receivables, FEUWR R EAth FE LK
prepayments and deposits EARKE £ 23 31,611 31,817
Pledged bank deposits 2IRAIRITER 21 3,500 6,000
Cash and cash equivalents REeERBLEEY 21 104,242 80,339
Financial asset at fair value through BRAFEFTABERZ
profit or loss EREE 24 - 2,522
Total current assets MENVEERFT 152,710 148,598
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables FEAS R e E At FE A3 X 29 22,974 26,908
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RASTEER 30 - 1,657
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 1,412 985
Tax payable FESBRK 376 424
Total current liabilities REE B 24,762 29,974
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 127,948 118,624
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT WEERTE
LIABILITIES aE 138,944 127,452
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEME
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 1,903 521
Net assets EEFE 137,041 126,931
continued/...
/...
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As at 31 December 2024

K2024%125318
2024 2023
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MiEE FEn ETT
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of the  Z&RATHEE AEWL
parent s
Issued capital EETRA 25 32,193 32,166
Reserves & 27 104,848 94,830
137,041 126,996
Non-controlling interests EERER - (65)
Total equity A RE RS 137,041 126,931

The notes on pages 90 to 173 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

FE1TSEMNMERZSHF M BRMERMAKIL

On behalf of the Board
REREES

WANG Wah Chi, Raymond
FEX
Chief Executive Officer

1T IBAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

B F2024F 12H31H IEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
KRAREARE
(Accumulated
Equity losses)/
Exchange compensation Retained Non-
Issued Share Merger  fluctuation reserve  Fair value Other profits controlling Total
capital  premium  reseve  reseve  BAEE  reseve  resene (2HFE)/ Total  interests equity
BE  RBRE  AHEE  EXEE  ANER  AVEHE  EEBE  REMA  4nB  ERRER fRs
Notes Uss000 US§000 US§000 US§000 US§000 Us§000 Us$000 Us$000 Us§000 Us§o00 Us§'000
it i Tin Tin e e e e e e 51 i1
At 1 January 2023 HBE1A1A 32,149 78,062 2,082 934y 16,383 1,019° 20° 174 100249 (65) 109,184
Proftfor the year ERiEd - - - - - - - 19443 19443 - 19443
Other comprehensive income/oss) ~ EREM2EUN/
for the year. (68):
- Exchange differences arisngon - EESHEREEE
translation of foreign operations LEREE - - - (2,007 - - - - 2,00) - 2,007)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EHA/ (F&) &3t - - - 2,007 - - - 19,443 17436 - 17,43
Equity-settied share option REEREH
arrangements 2% - - - - M4 - - - 4 - 4
lssue of shares upon exercise o TEREAZTRA
share options 2 17 30 - - (10) - - - 3 - 3
At 31 December 2023 and H02BE12831BR
at 1 January 2024 A24E1R1R 32,166 78,092 2,082 2941y 18,647 1,019 20 2299 12699% (65) 126,931
Proftfor the year Enigl - - - - - - - 10,130 10,130 - 10,130
Other comprehensive incomefloss) ~ EAER2ENN/
for the year: (B8):
- Exchange differences arisingon - BESNEREEE
translation of foreign operations EREE - - - (229) - - - - (228) - (228)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) ~ 2EHA/ (B &3t - - - (229) - - - 10,130 9,902 - 9,902
Equity-settled share option RAE&REH
arangements 2% - - - - 6 - - - 6 - 6
Issue of shares upon exercise o TEREAR TR
share options 2% a 163 - - (53) - - - 187 - 187
Transfer of equity compensation RERETS/ %/ 5h
reserve upon the cancellation/ il hREs G
lapsefforfeture of share options L - - - - (384 - - 384 - - -
Dissolution of a subsidiary | DBk - - - - - - - - - 6 [
At 31 December 2024 202412831 B 32,19 78,255 2,082 (3,169)" 18,216 1,019° 20 8,215 137,041 - 137,041

The notes on pages 90 to 173 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

SBE1TSEMNMERZESHFEMBMRMAKIH

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of US$104,848,000 (2023: US$94,830,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

* ZEBEBEETESSHE104,848,000E 5T (20234 1 94,830,000E t) HN G S M BAMRIRE o
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HERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2024
B F2024F 12H31H IF F &

2024 2023
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MisE FEx FE=x
Cash flows from operating activities RETHZEHERE
Profit before tax BRF AR A 10,101 19,488
Adjustments for: R
Finance costs I B B AR 9 134 77
Share of (profits)/losses of associates EiEgE QT (Fig)
BX 18 (144) 14
Interest income B U A 9 (4,116) (2,547)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEVE BENRREN
plant and equipment Uk & 6 (36) (3)
(Reversal of provision)/Provision for BEFRFHETE (BE
obsolete or slow-moving inventories, E#) BEFE
net 6 (3,978) 1,211
Depreciation of property, plant and M HBREE
equipment i 6 1,589 1,387
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 6 1,433 1,391
Equity-settled share option expense P& 75 RE 5 3R A 6 6 274
Loss on termination of lease HwILHERX 17¢ - 11
Loss on dissolution of a subsidiary FAREEEBX 109 -
5,098 21,303
Decrease in inventories FERD 18,541 17,995
Decrease in trade and other receivables, FEUWR K H M EWRER
prepayments and deposits EAREIT 2R 487 16,783
Decrease in trade and other payables AR E A ET R
W (3,934) (18,273)
Cash generated from operations KEELEMRE 20,192 37,808
Hong Kong profits tax refunded REEBRE - 75
Overseas income tax paid MBI FBR (19) -
Interest paid AR E (134) (77)
Net cash from operating activities RETHEENESFE 20,039 37,806
Cash flows from investing activities RETHZEHERE
Purchases of items of property, plantand BEY¥% - KE
equipment REE 16 (2,254) (1,087)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H &) - #38
and equipment REE 52 4
Proceeds from reduction in investment in  REZE RATNRERD B
associates - 193
Decrease/(Increase) in financial asset at RAFEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss SMEERD (LM 2,522 (2,522)
Interest received B WFE 4,116 2,547
Net cash from/(used in) investing RETHES (ER)W
activities REeFHE 4,436 (865)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

B F2024F 12H31H IEFE
2024 2023
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MisE FEx FEx
Cash flows from financing activities BMETH2EESRE
Release of pledged bank deposits BESIEANBITER 2,500 41
Proceeds from issue of shares upon BREEBITERESR
exercise of share options 25 137 37
Principal portion of lease payments HENRHOERSIHH 33(b) (1,245) (1,425)
Drawdowns of bank borrowings TR ITE R 33(b) 1,261 1,657
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITER 33(b) (2,918) (1,421)
Net cash used in financing activities RMETEFEANRESTHE (265) (1,111)
Net increase in cash BeRBREEEWF
and cash equivalents i 24,210 35,830
Cash and cash equivalents FNRERBES
at beginning of year ZEY 80,339 45,556
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXRE8) o2& FH (307) (1,047)
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRES
at end of year £EY 104,242 80,339
Analysis of balance of cash and cash ReENBELEEYNEE
equivalents DA
- Bank balances and cash -BITEBRES 104,242 80,339
The notes on pages 90 to 173 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
FIOE17T3EMNM T AZERE M KRR VA KIBMD ©
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1. General information

90

Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its subsidiaries are
fabless semiconductor companies specializing in the design,
development and sales of integrated circuits (“IC”) products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including electronic shelf-
labels (ESLs), wearables, healthcare devices, smart home
devices, as well as industrial appliances etc.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
November 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability
under Cap. 22, the Cayman Islands Companies Law (Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised). The address of its
registered office is P.O. Box 31119, Grand Pavillion Hibiscus
Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman KY1-1205 Cayman
Islands (with effect from 31 December 2024) and the address of
its principal office in Hong Kong is Unit 607-613, 6/F Wireless
Centre, 3 Science Park East Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company has been listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 8 April 2004.

Information about subsidiaries

Please refer to note 19 to the financial statements for the
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries.

Accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for a financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income and a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss which have been
measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in US dollars
(“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2024. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
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2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities of the
subsidiary, any non-controlling interest and the exchange
fluctuation reserve; and recognises the fair value of any
investment retained and any resulting surplus or deficit in
profit or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

1)

2. S5t EE (&)

2.1

2.2

LA ()
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REERARRE S #FE S WD EM
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Z AT B2 E WA AR Z
BERASEEZEHERAREERRE
FRENHREEENR P ERBERER
REEF (MBEA) -

B BEZ2H

REEC RAHE 2 M BER B IR
MT BT 2B R BHREER

Amendments to HKFRS 16
BB KRG ERFE165E 2185

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments”)

BBETTERBIR 2B

Amendments to HKAS 1
BAEGTEREIR 2B

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements

BRI ENETEREBUBERE
AR BT 2 18F]

REFBEZH

BENTHE-RBEHIER

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

E#HBWHESE
Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (the “2020
(Mr'2020% 1877 1)

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

B 2R B R & ([2022F 85T 1)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(@) Amendments to HKFRS 16 specify the requirements
that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease
liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction
to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right
of use it retains. Since the Group has no sale and
leaseback transactions with variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate occurring
from the date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

(b) The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements

(c)

for classifying liabilities as current or non-current,
including what is meant by a right to defer settlement
and that a right to defer must exist at the end of
the reporting period. Classification of a liability
is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement. The amendments
also clarify that a liability can be settled in its own
equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for
as an equity instrument would the terms of a liability
not impact its classification. The 2022 Amendments
further clarify that, among covenants of a liability
arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability
as current or non-current. Additional disclosures are
required for non-current liabilities that are subject to
the entity complying with future covenants within 12
months after the reporting period.

The Group has reassessed the terms and conditions
of its liabilities as at 1 January 2023 and 2024 and
concluded that the classification of its liabilities as
current or non-current remained unchanged upon
initial application of the amendments. Accordingly, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 clarify the
characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and
require additional disclosure of such arrangements.
The disclosure requirements in the amendments
are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance
arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows
and exposure to liquidity risk. As the Group does not
have supplier finance arrangements, the amendments
did not have any impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements. The Group intends to apply
these new and revised HKFRSs, if applicable, when they

become effective.

2. BETBE (&)

2.3 ERMEHRERNEEHBREE
Ll

FEBUBEBERERPEATIE
8 B 1) R AE RV ARAE R B B B 1S 3R
HEL  AEFERNZEKETESR
BB EENERREAZEETE
B BREER (MBEA) -

HKFRS 18
BEMBREEDFE185

HKFRS 19
BRMBHERAE10%

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

ERMKRELEAFIRREBYB
REAERNETH 28T

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and
HKFRS 7

BBV KEREEREIRR
EBMEHREERETIR Z1BF]

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

ERAVMEREENFI0REEEBST
AR ZE285% 2 1E 5T

Amendments to HKAS 21
BB ERE215E 2 185]

Annual Improvements to HKFRS

Accounting Standards — Volume 11

BB BIREER 2Rz FE
HE—-F117F

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements?®

2R EFEH I Z

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures?®

BABBEEMAIHE LA - K E

Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial
Instruments?

EM TR EEEZ 557

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent Electricity?

B R AR ERBERLE BB & A?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

REEFHABEXNSET RN EEL EXTE’

Lack of Exchangeability’
7= R S

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 72

BRMBRELENE 1S - BBMBHMERNETR BBUBRESE
RIZEOsE - BAMBMEEAEI10E R BB ERETIR 2552

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January !

RZZB-AF-B-HRZEMA

2025 NEERBEN

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 RIZEBE-ZRF-A—HZZEHR
2026 WEEBBENR

8 Effective for annual/reporting periods beginning on or after 1 ¢ RZE-tLtF-A—HRzEHRK
January 2027 WEE,/REHBEN

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for 4 EABEREEENAE  EESW
adoption B 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATEb ’F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
e M EmRME
2. Accounting policies (continued) 2. BTBEK (8)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

2.3 BEAEHRERDEBABRESR

Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

HKFRS 18 replaces HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements. While a number of sections have been brought
forward from HKAS 1 with limited changes, HKFRS 18
introduces new requirements for presentation within the
statement of profit or loss, including specified totals and
subtotals. Entities are required to classify all income and
expenses within the statement of profit or loss into one
of the five categories: operating, investing, financing,
income taxes and discontinued operations and to present
two new defined subtotals. It also requires disclosures
about management-defined performance measures in a
single note and introduces enhanced requirements on the
grouping (aggregation and disaggregation) and the location
of information in both the primary financial statements and
the notes. Some requirements previously included in HKAS
1 are moved to HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes
in Accounting Estimates and Errors, which is renamed
as HKAS 8 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements.
As a consequence of the issuance of HKFRS 18, limited,
but widely applicable, amendments are made to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS 33 Earnings per Share
and HKAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting. In addition, there
are minor consequential amendments to other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 18 and the consequential amendments to other
HKFRSs are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2027 with earlier application permitted.
Retrospective application is required. The Group is
currently analysing the new requirements and assessing
the impact of HKFRS 18 on the presentation and
disclosure of the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 19 allows eligible entities to elect to apply reduced
disclosure requirements while still applying the recognition,
measurement and presentation requirements in other
HKFRSs. To be eligible, at the end of the reporting period,
an entity must be a subsidiary as defined in HKFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements, cannot have
public accountability and must have a parent (ultimate
or intermediate) that prepares consolidated financial
statements available for public use which comply with
HKFRSs. Earlier application is permitted. As the Company
is a listed company, it is not eligible to elect to apply
HKFRS 19. Some of the Company’s subsidiaries are
considering the application of HKFRS 19 in their specified
financial statements.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

96

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 clarify the date on
which a financial asset or financial liability is derecognised
and introduce an accounting policy option to derecognise
a financial liability that is settled through an electronic
payment system before the settlement date if specified
criteria are met. The amendments clarify how to assess the
contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets
with environmental, social and governance and other
similar contingent features. Moreover, the amendments
clarify the requirements for classifying financial assets
with non-recourse features and contractually linked
instruments. The amendments also include additional
disclosures for investments in equity instruments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial instruments with contingent features.
The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with an
adjustment to opening retained profits (or other component
of equity) at the initial application date. Prior periods
are not required to be restated and can only be restated
without the use of hindsight. Earlier application of either all
the amendments at the same time or only the amendments
related to the classification of financial assets is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
and in HKAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 was removed by the HKICPA.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATEb ’F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
e M EmRME
2. Accounting policies (continued) 2. BTBEK (8)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

2.3 BEAEHRERDEBABRESR

Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 21 specify how an entity shall
assess whether a currency is exchangeable into another
currency and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate
at a measurement date when exchangeability is lacking.
The amendments require disclosures of information that
enable users of financial statements to understand the
impact of a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier
application is permitted. When applying the amendments,
an entity cannot restate comparative information. Any
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments shall
be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained profits or to the cumulative amount of translation
differences accumulated in a separate component of
equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting Standards
- Volume 11 set out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS
7 (and the accompanying Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7), HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7. Details of
the amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

e HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures: The
amendments have updated certain wording in
paragraph B38 of HKFRS 7 and paragraphs IG1,
IG14 and 1G20B of the Guidance on implementing
HKFRS 7 for the purpose of simplification or achieving
consistency with other paragraphs in the standard
and/or with the concepts and terminology used in
other standards. In addition, the amendments clarify
that the Guidance on implementing HKFRS 7 does
not necessarily illustrate all the requirements in
the referenced paragraphs of HKFRS 7 nor does it
create additional requirements. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

e HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: The amendments
clarify that when a lessee has determined that a lease
liability has been extinguished in accordance with
HKFRS 9, the lessee is required to apply paragraph
3.3.3 of HKFRS 9 and recognise any resulting gain
or loss in profit or loss. In addition, the amendments
have updated certain wording in paragraph 5.1.3 of
HKFRS 9 and Appendix A of HKFRS 9 to remove
potential confusion. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

98

Reporting Standards (continued)

e HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements: The
amendments clarify that the relationship described
in paragraph B74 of HKFRS 10 is just one example
of various relationships that might exist between the
investor and other parties acting as de facto agents
of the investor, which removes the inconsistency
with the requirement in paragraph B73 of HKFRS 10.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

e HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: The amendments
replace the term “cost method” with “at cost” in
paragraph 37 of HKAS 7 following the prior deletion of
the definition of “cost method”. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any impact on the Group’s financial statements.

2.4 Material Accounting Policies

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee,
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments
in associates.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments in associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets include an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss or other comprehensive
income, as appropriate.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value
of the Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investment and certain
financial assets at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset and liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of
cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

or

(b)

(i)

(i)
(i)

the

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it

is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:
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Freehold land KA FERE L i
Building BF
Leasehold improvements HEMEEE

HRE BEERE
BArRERERE
HERERERE

Furniture, fixtures, licenses
and equipment

Machinery and laboratory
equipment

Motor vehicles RE

Not depreciated

RFINE

2%

20% or over the lease period,
whichever is shorter

20% IR (R EE R 2EE)
33.33%

12.50% to 33.33%

33.33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Patents and intellectual property

Purchased patents and intellectual property are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of no
more than eight years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leased properties 2 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

()

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). Lease
payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs.
Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established
by regulation or convention in the marketplace, are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments) (continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as finance income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established,
except when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a
recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which
case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income. Dividends on the equity investments are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment occurs if there is a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
2.4 ERETHR (F)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 360 days past due. The Group
has rebutted the 90 days past due presumption of default
based on reasonable and supportable information,
including the Group’s credit risk control practices and
the historical recovery rate of financial assets over 90
days past due. However, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
into account any credit enhancements held by the Group.
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
structured products, to hedge its foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instrument is initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivative is taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials and
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value and held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, and short-term deposits as defined above,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
When the Group expects some or all of a provision to
be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any
reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the period that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.

118 Ssolomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2024

2. S5t EE (&)

2.4 EXREFHEH)

&% (8

HREREEENRAERS RS
RETEH YR TBUREAEHE
AR HE AR IEL
BIREE R o KR WIELER
HEERESREBREHRFME - TR
A BEE 2 4 FE SR BUR A 7] U = 2 5P
FEAELERIBEENBRT T UM
E’%‘ [

FEEBBREERBBUBREERF
EEEHENARERABERNE X
IR EM AR EMNEE O HEM
MR (RER)ERER -

BEAREBEUSEHTERNTEE
MR EEEENRHEESEIEE B
IESER IR & A SRR IR B BB E) —
BB E — R ER RN SRR
HBERERBELEN RRENEE
FELAHEYGFEN  BIRFREES
BANSHBEEEREERRKERE
ERGEEEEsTRARBERENRZ
FRiSTiiaE - REER THE ERIELE
BIIEBET THEH -

B RG

BAHEREERESSWEEER
BENE—UMIREE  BEQF
B - MAEMEE AR A
RERNZAGEEBRIBWA » LU
AR HENERER A -



2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) Sale of proprietary integrated circuits products

Revenue from the sale of proprietary integrated
circuits products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the proprietary
integrated circuits products. Some contracts for the
sale of proprietary integrated circuits products provide
customers volume rebates. The volume rebates give
rise to variable consideration.

(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided
to certain customers once the quantity of
products purchased during the period exceeds a
threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely amount
method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for
contracts with more than one volume threshold.
The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily
driven by the number of volume thresholds
contained in the contract. The requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration
are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

120 Ssolomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2024

2. BETBE (&)
2.4 EXRRHKE (H)

W TR (B0
#5

(@)

H e A

BA W s (B

ERERERERWEE

EREREREMRBEENRAR
AERTIRERZEFRERD
—RAXNEEEREREM
o MoEREREREMHEE
BHRHEFHER - #tER
Ml RATRERE -

U

HEMH

ETEF—BERBEREE
mBBSNREHE 7
RERRMEPMER -
RIEET A RRE H A
ZRE RE-—HEAREZH
ENENERABRTES
BAOEFE mMEBBE—@
REBENSNAIRAR
MEELENE - FIER
RERATEAESEN
FARETBRERSNTRE
ENREHE - TENE
HETHRS ERE F LU
A 3SR B R SR E 40
BRARKREME -

FMEWARARSH T ENFARFR
2 (38 ) B8 I B A i 5T AR R
TWAERBRESHEEREDFE
BIFIR - BRI RERFTHER o

PR S U AR 37 R BR LA B RR IR FY RE
PR - I 7T AR S AR B A Al 2 7T e
ERATEERREBVA 2 EFHEER
Seih B i T LURERR o



2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the
Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in
the form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services in exchange for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”). The cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted. The fair
value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 26 to the
financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The liability is recognised for the fair value of cash-settled
transactions. The fair value is measured initially at the
grant date and at each reporting date up to and including
the settlement date (note 26). The fair value is expensed
over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a
corresponding liability. The cumulative expense recognised
for cash-settled transactions at the end of each reporting
period until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of awards that will ultimately vest.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China and overseas are required to participate
in a central retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central retirement benefit scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employers’ existing level of
contributions can be reduced by contributions forfeited by
the employers on behalf of those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Forfeited
contributions totalling US$1,000 (2023: US$9,600)
were utilized during the year ended 31 December 2024
to reduce contributions and of US$4,200 forfeited
contribution was available as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
US$4,200) to reduce future years’ contributions.

Under the central retirement benefit scheme to which the
Group’s subsidiaries operating in Mainland China and
overseas are required to make contribution, no forfeited
contributions will be used by the employers to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated
as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment
of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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2.

Accounting policies (continued)

2.4 Material Accounting Policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than US$. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into US$ at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into US$ at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve except
to the extent that the differences are attributable to non-
controlling interests. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount in the reserve relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into US$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

3.1 Financial risk factors

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2024, the Group is exposed to fair
value or cash flow interest rate risk in relation to the
interest-bearing bank borrowing of the Group with fixed
interest rate. The Group currently does not have any
interest rate hedging policy. However, management will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures primarily arise from revenue and other income
generated, and cost and expenses incurred by operating
units in currencies other than the Group’s operating units’
functional currencies. For the Group’s operating units’
that have the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) as their functional
currency, their foreign currency transactions during the
years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, and the units’
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period were
mainly denominated in US$. As HK$ is pegged to the US$
within a narrow band, the Group does not expect any
significant movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rate.
Accordingly, management considers that the Group’s
foreign currency risk exposure for HK$ is not significant.
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3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. i EREE 2 FERKA
and fair value hierarchy of financial FEERR (&)
instruments (continued)

3.1 BBEREE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 December.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

As at 31 December 2024

FERR

FEBEERERIREEVENE=
FETRS - BRAKENBE -
BREEEGRTETRENEP L
BRFEERERFE  HAFEE - I
I AEBSFESETERIRER
HER - EFAEYRRRARY NE
j( o

REEBRREFATH

TRETNTERTEBEFEEBREN
FEREENGARERARKOD » ZE
ERXFEERNBENTHEE (B
FEMEEEETVENRALE
H) o URBE12B31BEER D
é':\,*a c NS EESREENIRER
E o

7A2024%F12A31H

12-month
ECLs
1218 A Lifetime ECLs
BHEEFE ERABHEEFE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RE HoRE #ImEr W EE @t
US$’000 US$°000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000
TERT TERT TERT TERT TERT
Trade receivables* e - - - 20,087 20,087
Financial assets included in ~ FT& Rk EMEKZRA
deposits and other receivables MEFEE
~ Normal** —FE~ 8,477 - - - 8,477
Pledged bank deposits EEANRITER
- Not yet past due - RiBH 3,500 - - - 3,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
- Not yet past due - KRiBH 104,242 - - - 104,242
116,219 - - 20,087 136,306
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3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. i EREE 2 FERKA
and fair value hierarchy of financial FEER (&)
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BH¥RAEMEZE (&)
Credit risk (continued) FERK (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) REREERFETH ()
As at 31 December 2023 72023%F12831H
12-month
ECLs
1218 A Lifetime ECLs
BHEEESE ERREHEEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E1RE FoRER EIWER  BLHEE @t
US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 US$'000
EY EY in ES E
Trade receivables® ez - - - 17,415 17,415

Financial assets included in 3] € R EMEKZRA
deposits and other receivables HEBEE

- Normal** —EE* 9,550 - - - 9,550

Pledged bank deposits BEANRTER

- Not yet past due - XBH 6,000 - - - 6,000

Cash and cash equivalents ReERAELLEEY

- Not yet past due - RBH 80,339 - - - 80,339
95,889 - - 17,415 113,304

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * BEAEEEWRFUREBERABE
simplified approach for impairment, information based on EEATREEBNER  RUHR
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 23 to the financial EL R
statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits v HESHNEMERRTESNERE
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when ENEREBERIMEWES[ T
they are not past due and there is no information indicating Bl WHRAEEXRARPHER
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit BEMEENEARREZRE M-
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of S cREENEAEERRSE
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. [ AT -

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, AEEHteREE (BERERE

which comprise cash and cash equivalents and other SEEYREMERR) WEERR

receivables arises from default of the counterparty, with a ARXRGEHBTEAMELE  BRaEKRA
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these ERZETANKREME-
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and HRAEEEEERTREETEN

creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for FZFETRE  BEEFERER -

collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by RBEHRR > AEEREETEES
customer/counterparty. At the end of the reporting period, PR RAEENESERKE
the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as 39% Fo D RIE39% (2023%F 1 28%) Kk

(2023: 28%) and 72% (2023: 70%) of the Group’s trade 72% (2023%F : 70% ) AEWAES

receivables were due from the Group’s largest debtor and BAEBAREREHANKIE - K

the five largest debtors, respectively. Further quantitative SEELBEZRWFENEERR

data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk i O BV — 20 2L BUIE I B R B R

arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 23 to FHaE28 ©

the financial statements.
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3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
Management reviews and monitors the Group’s working
capital requirements regularly.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

-

3. UKERERE XA FERRD
FEERE (&)

3.1 BBEREE (&)

B R

AEEEEREFEERIABEHN
RERRELEEY  UMESFEEN
CERHESYERRSRERIN
TR EEETHEARERAER

RB|ERKR - AEBZSORERM
REENEREEINHBEREAS W

undiscounted payments, is as follows: T
2024
No fixed term 3 to less
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
REEEN
ERER/ BAED
REREE HRIEA M2{8A 1E58 @t
US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
ES e ES e E
Financial liabilities included in AR EMEA A
trade and other payables Hemes 6,316 7,535 - - 13,851
Lease liabilities REaE - 261 1,302 1,986 3,549
6,316 7,796 1,302 1,986 17,400
2023
No fixed term 3to less
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months  1to 5 years Total
REEEN
B2/ 3EAZY )
REREE HR3MEA R12f8A 1258 @t
US$'000 US$'000 US$000 Us$'000 US$'000
ey E Ee e Es
Financial liabilities included in SR SR
trade and other payables Hemas 6,766 8,610 - - 15,376
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ ®{T:EER - 1,663 - - 1,663
Lease liabilities HESHE - 271 708 573 1,552
6,766 10,544 708 573 18,591
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3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. I EBREE  2FERAD

and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1

3.2

Financial risk factors (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to
owners of the Group.

Fair value

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amount that

FEERG (&)

3.1 BBEREE (&)
EXEH

AEEEAEENEZEERRER
EEFEKENENLESBENE
REER DXFHEBRRBRRAIE
RAEE-

AEERBELSEREZICREBEEE
HERESHEENAREEREE -
BESIABRELRERE  FEERE
BEERTFRERNBETHRG - RE
Z2024%12A831H K2023%F12 431
HIEEE BEATEBE  BEXGE
FA KRB EEE o

AEENEANBARRRDER ARG

*—-»— 3¢

B fm ©
3.2 A¥{E

BREREESEMBINAFENSHBT
B AEEERTANREEMNA

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: FEMT :
Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AYE
Financial assets tRHEE 2024 2023 2024 2023
US$'000 Us$:000 US$°000 Us$'000
R TER TER R
Equity investment designated RAVEETTAHM
at fair value through other ZHBANEE
comprehensive income 1,161 1,161 1,161 1,161
Financial asset at fair value through ~ BAFEFABZEZ
profit or loss SHEE - 2,522 - 2,522
1,161 3,683 1,161 3,683
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3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.2 Fair value (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits, trade
receivables, trade payables, financial assets included in
deposits and other receivables, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, the current portion of
interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income has
been estimated by observable prices or rates of sale of
similar assets. The fair value of other unlisted investment
has been estimated based on the surrender values, which
are calculated and quoted by the issuer. The directors
believe that the estimated fair value which is recorded in
the consolidated statement of financial position, and the
related changes in fair values, which is recorded in other
comprehensive income, are reasonable, and that it was the
most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

3. iIkEKRERE A FERA
SEEEAKR (&)

3.2 A¥E (/)

EEECHMRENRASEEY -
BERRTER - BRE - BAR -8
BEFRKRHEMERRTHNERE
EBEAAEMEMREETIER S
MNEMEE  FFRBRITERNRBIE
INAFEERERESEML - £
ERHRELTAREREAZINE -

TRMEENRSENAFEERAER
S5 (MFRARFRHEE) REA
REPRBEEZTANEEARK-

AT A AR A RE 5T A FEE -

URAABEFT ARMEEBANIFE
FHRERENQAIAEBE  BUBE
ERFEUEENEESRMGEE - Hib
FLTRENAABEERBERITA
AEUREBNRREERGEN - E
ERR  KEMBRRRPRENME
SRABEURAABENEEEH
(RARMGEWE) REEN XA
ERBEEHABRAENEER-
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3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.2 Fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2024

3. X ERERE  AFERRD
FEERE (&)

3.2 A¥E (/)
NP EERSE

TRHABTAEEERMTANAARE
B ERR

EERAFEE
7A2024%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

AV EERA
Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AR EE TABRE
mHHRE BAHE BARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E1ER) (2FE#) (33ER) At
Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000
R R TEn S
Equity investment designated at fair &2\ FEE A Hfb
value through other comprehensive ~ ZEWAHIRE
income - 1,161 - 1,161
Financial asset at fair value through ~ BAFEFABZEZ
profit or loss tWEE - ~ S -
- 1,161 - 1,161
As at 31 December 2023 72023F12831H
Fair value measurement using
AFEHEAA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RER R TABR
mi5HE BARE BARE
Level 1) Level 2) Level 3) Total
(E1ER) (%2R (3B ast
Us$000 Us$000 Us$000 Us$'000
TR TR R R
Equity investment designated at fair AV EE AEA
value through other comprehensive ~ ZEWAMRE
income - 1,161 - 1,161
Financial asset at fair value through ~ BAFEFTAEEZ
profit or loss tREE - 2,522 - 2,522
- 3,683 - 3,683
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4. Significant accounting estimates and

judgements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining
the provision for income taxes. Determining income tax
provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

10 THE CONSOLIDATED FIN

4. BARETEHERHE

EARAEBEMBHRRE  EEEANFHE
FEME/WA BX -EEREEZR
SEEREMERKERSIAREERE 2
B~ A RBR - ARZSEHRR KRG 2
THREMNEEREARANIHECEE
FEERAEFHERAE -

H

REMAEBETHRBRED BRI RM
FTVESTRERS  BEEECFHEITBR
RTCHACHEBREENTE 2 EHW
T

Frig®t

FEBATZEREEEHNREH - B
EFSHBEYRERHE - BEMSEHR
BESYRUETRE 2 ARBEAFBER
BIRR AR R H i - AEEFEFMER
SNRBLE  WHEBRLGIAREG -
PEHEBRZERZ NBIETBEURRE
BBE  REREMNZHREL-

Rt T RERR

RBERRBTEARR 2 EEZBRBR KA A
ATAEEMZEERR  S/T —EMK
FEANEERAGERABERERARZN
Bk FRT XA o
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4. Significant accounting estimates and

judgements (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit using key
assumptions such as budgeted revenue growth rate and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment at 31 December 2024 was US$5,480,000
(2023: US$4,836,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged analyses of the Group’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of goods
and management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, write-down of inventories will be made when the
estimated net realisable value of inventories declines below
their carrying amount. Due to changes in technological, market
and economic environment and customers’ preference, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. As
at 31 December 2024, the carrying amount of inventories was
US$13,357,000 (2023: US$27,920,000).
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BR T 18 5 Bl 5,480,000 T (2023%F
4,836,000 7T) °
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Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available or when it needs to
be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as
market interest rates when available.

Segment information and disaggregation
of revenue

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
design, development and sales of proprietary IC products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including electronic shelf-
labels (ESLs), wearables, healthcare devices, smart home
devices, as well as industrial appliances etc.

The Group has been operating in one single operating segment,
e., the design, development and sales of IC products and
system solutions.

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the Executive Directors and senior management led by
the Chief Executive Officer. The Executive Directors and
senior management reviewed the Group’s internal reporting
as a whole to assess performance and allocate resources.
A management approach has been used for the operating
segment reporting.

Sales amounted to US$113,440,000 and US$153,151,000 for
the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group mainly
operates in Hong Kong. During 2024, the Group’s products
were mainly sold to customers located in Hong Kong, Mainland
China, Taiwan, Japan and Europe.

4.

BH Fq¥

%%Eﬁ%iﬁ%ﬁﬂ‘i’{

BA 2 &5t & & H i (&)

At TREREE (&)
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5. Segment information and disaggregation
of revenue (continued)

5. 7MERREEED E (&)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated (a) BFHBZEIENEFEHWE
by geographical markets
2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
Hong Kong 0 63,532 83,465
Mainland China R K P 4,895 2,224
Taiwan =0 18,744 16,812
Europe BUM 19,785 24,662
Japan HZ 6,107 22.410
Korea B2 179 188
South East Asia R 48 154
USA E3E 60 3,139
Others Hith 920 97
113,440 153,151

Sales are classified based on the places/countries in which

customers are located.

(b) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated

by product types

HERREFHELE BRI -

(b) RERBEEIENEFENKE

2024 2023

US$’000 US$’000

FEr FET

New Display ICs B ERICs 59,063 72,167
OLED Display ICs OLED#ERICs 16,335 15,887
Mobile Display and Mobile Touch ICs B E)F8 T~ KB EIfEIEICS 24,151 59,125
Large Display ICs REFETRICs 13,891 5,972
113,440 153,151

(c) Revenue from contracts with customers that was

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of FEHWE

the reporting period

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that was

included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the

reporting period:

(c) EENBETHRIRETBEHINE

TRETRBEHRINBSEANER
THEIABEARERANNREESHE

2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FEr FET
Revenue recognised that was RBEHNESEENEET
included in contract liabilities WERRNKZESEE !
at the beginning of the reporting
period:
Sales of ICs $HEICs 941 6,832
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5. Segment information and disaggregation
of revenue (continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

%A%ﬁﬁﬁmﬁ

THERNREEE D E(H)

Non-current assets (d) FERBEE
2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FEx EH
Hong Kong B8 2,599 1,403
Mainland China A B AP 5,145 3,953
Taiwan 8 1,693 1,632
9,437 6,988
Non-current assets are listed based on the locations of IRBEE(FBEEHEE) DR
assets which exclude financial assets. BEENFEMTUNE -
Capital expenditures (e) EXRBEX
2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
Property, plant and equipment L EIN Jﬁﬁ%&?&ﬁ
Mainland China e EPNES 1,825 759
Hong Kong &E 200 328
Taiwan =y 229 -
2,254 1,087

Capital expenditures are listed based on the locations of
assets.

Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the largest
customer was located in Hong Kong and the second
largest customer was located in Europe. Sales to them
were US$43,171,000 and US$16,857,000, respectively,
which individually accounted for over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
largest customer was located in Hong Kong, the second
largest customer was located in Europe and the third
largest customer was located in Japan. Sales to them
were US$56,534,000, US$22,565,000 and US$22,410,000,
respectively, which individually accounted for over 10% of
the Group’s total revenue.

Performance obligation
Sale of integrated circuits products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of
the products and payment is generally due within 30 to
90 days from date of delivery. Some contracts provide
customers with volume rebates which give rise to variable
consideration subject to constraint.

(f)

(9)

RFIFERARAF

gizlxﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁiﬁéﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁi&%uﬂ

%)5115%?;% : %‘k%ﬁﬁﬁ(\‘lﬁ&
N o H 85 & 8 2 5l 43,171,000
8

&ﬂ4wom%n’iﬂm$$l@
HEEEB10% °

BREE
HERHERER

EXNEREREMTEITENE
e 17‘TAE“$*T§HEI1§30§903EW
M —LAEA/FFRETHER
n EEHRTZRHNTEHE -

tEE
T%
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6. Profit before tax 6. R A0 F
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBOBRBADERDE&NR(GFA) T
(crediting): FIRIBEREE
2024 2023
Notes Us$’000 US$’000
MisE FEx EP

Cost of goods sold HE KA 78,575 104,982

Product engineering costs ERIBHEAK 1,784 2,642

(Reversal of provision)/provision BRERFHTEN (BHE

for obsolete or slow-moving ) BE RE

inventories, net 22 (3,978) 1,211
Depreciation of property, plant and VI3 - EBERFZE

equipment? e 16 1,589 1,387
Depreciation of right-of-use assets* FREEETE" 17 1,433 1,391
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEVE BER

plant and equipment* REIEE ks 7 (36) )
Loss on termination of lease #HIFHEEX 17(c) - 11
Lease payments not included in the HEXHTERERE

measurement of lease liabilities HEABEBEZTE 17(c) 8 46
Impairment loss/(reversal of HittEWR KT £ RE

impairment loss) of other BB (E#)~

receivables and deposits*® 23 25 (120)
Impairment loss/(reversal of FE W FOR B B 1B

impairment loss) of trade &E (E#)~

receivables* 23 78 (91)
Loss from dissolution of FRRIEFERL

a subsidiary* 109 -

Foreign exchange differences, net* HNIE ZEBE R AR (1,086) (1,380)

Auditor’s remuneration % ST BN & 155 155

Employee benefit expenses (including EE®RAEX (BEES

directors’ emoluments (Note 11)): B (FFEE11)) -
- Salaries, allowances, bonuses -5 RRL BAKR

and other benefits HiER 23,226 21,440
- Equity-settled share option - UEREEN

expense AR AR 6 274
- Pension scheme contributions - RIREFT B

(defined contribution (REMHE)

schemes)** 392 375
- Termination benefits - #RIETER 68 46

23,692 22,135

* The balances are included in “Other income and gains — net” for * ERASRAE S RERREEEMS S
gains/reversal of impairment loss and “Other expenses” for losses Bt AGEEERAEMBRARKE -
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. FREIRIHEMmEAXR] -

*  There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by o ERRNBRR T EEEEEREEMAE
the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of BB EHTKF -
contributions.

# Depreciation of property, plant and equipment for the year of # RERYE - 35K REITEG65,000%
US$665,000 (2023: US$620,000) is included in “Cost of sales” in JT(2023: 620,000 T)E st AR S iEFE &
the consolidated statement of profit or loss A $H & AN

#  Depreciation of right-of-use assets for the year of US$132,000 #OREFREAEEENE132,000%
(2023: Nil) is included in “Cost of sales” in the consolidated (2023: BT AGRE BB RAHERS

statement of profit or loss

138 solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2024



7. Other income and gains - net

7. Hftli AR m — FHE

2024 2023

US$°000 US$’000

FEr FEx

Government grants* BT w8 B~ 440 677
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE BERSEE

plant and equipment 1H B k& 36 3

Reversal of impairment loss of trade SRR O B 1 [ 4%

receivables - 91
Reversal of impairment loss of other Hith W R 5T € RE

receivables and deposits E518 | 3 - 120

Foreign exchange differences, net INEEFEFRE 1,086 1,380

Others Hith 20 11

1,582 2,282

* Various government grants have been received for the Group’s * FR - AEENHAREECESSEBF

research and development projects during the year. There are no
unfulfilled conditions relating to these grants.

Other expenses

#o

8. Hibhix

ey WRARELERABRNRBITR

2024 2023
Us$’000 US$’000
FErx FErx
Impairment loss of trade receivables FEW SR E R B 78 -
Impairment loss of other receivables and HitEWR R T SRERIE

deposits 25 -
Loss from dissolution of a subsidiary FRATEEEBKX 109 -
212 -

Finance income - net 9. REWA-— F&
2024 2023
US$°000 US$’000
FEx EH
Interest income RE WA 4,116 2,547
Interest on bank loans RITERVFE X H (6) (14)
Interest on lease liabilities HEEENFAEXH (128) (63)
3,982 2,470
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10.Five highest paid employees

One (2023: one) of the five highest paid employees of
the Group is a director of the Company, details of whose
emolument are set out in note 11 to the financial statements.

Details of the emoluments for the year of the other four (2023:
four) highest-paid employees who are neither a director nor
chief executive officer of the Company are as follows:

10. 58 BEFMES

AEEBLERESHFATBE—F (2023
F:—R)AQAES HHESCSRUHK
HRARMEETTRER ©

BT 2MBIFEESRIFTHAR (2023
F OB RSHFALHMENT :

2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FEr FET

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and e RoERE -
other benefits TEALFI H AL F 629 610
Discretionary bonuses EIBTEAL 410 425
Contribution to pension scheme ARG EIE R 34 29
1,073 1,064

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FEERTHRERESHFEENTHEE
mE

Number of individuals

Emolument bands (HK$) AB

eeEeE (Bx) 2024 2023
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 2 2
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 2 2

140 Ssolomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2024



1.

Directors’ and chief executive’s NEERTHEAZME
remuneration

RIEEHmRBREB DT EHE 5383(1)
(@~ d c)kROERAT (HEEEN=
BER) RO E N EAEE 2 EERIT
BAHMSIT :

Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)
(@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2024

HZ2024F12A3ALEEES S

Salaries Pension
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind® contributions paymentf? Total
Fek Bhe
fie HiERO HE 3 REHXO @t
US$000 US$°000 US$°000 US$’000 US$’000
Txn Fxn ST Txn ST
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Chan Chi Kong BR& %t 31 - - - 31
Kwok Hoi Sing =35 28 - - - 28
Chan Philip Ching Ho RES 34 - - - 34
93 - - - 93
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Ma Yuchuan B - = = = =
Wang Hui I - - - - -
Kang Jian (resigned with effect Bl (BRFRIA
from 13 May 2024) 2024%5A13H
£H) - - - - -
Liu Fei (appointed on 2% (W2024%
13 May 2024) 5A13AEZM) - - - - -
Executive Director BTES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond 1% - 687 15 - 702
93 687 15 - 795
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s

remuneration (continued)

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2023

HE2023F12A31ALEEES 2%

N ESRITHRARNE ()

Salaries Pension
and benefits scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind®  contributions payment Total
‘ HER R Bihe K
He =8 il HE LS R0 &gt
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
TER TEn TEn TEn S
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Chan Chi Kong (a) Fik(a) 8 - - - 8
Kwok Hoi Sing (a) 8 () 7 - - - 7
Leung Heung Ying (b) 225 (b) 27 - - 32 59
Sheu Wei Fu (b) X (b) 25 - - 32 57
Chan Philip Ching Ho REZ 34 - - 32 66
101 - - 96 197
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Ma Yuchuan B3I/ - - - - -
Wang Hui I - - - - -
Kang Jian Bl - - - - -
Executive Director BiTES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TEL - 680 14 78 772
101 680 14 174 969
Notes: T :

(a) Appointed on 1 November 2023

(b) Resigned on 1 November 2023
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11. Directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration (continued)

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by
the Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group (2023: Nil). During the year, there was no
compensation for loss of office was paid by the Group to the
directors (2023: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2023: Nil).

(i)

(ii)

Benefits in kind include leave pay, insurance premium,
termination benefits and other allowances.

This represents the amount charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss under the requirements of
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment. During the current and
prior years, certain directors were granted share options,
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which
are set out in note 26 to the financial statements. The
fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.

S Tt

N EERTHRARME (F)

FR AEEBECHHRENESHE
EEMAREBRMANEERNER
(2023%F : &) - FR > AEEUELNHE
EEBEE (2023F 1 &) o

FAMEEERNESRERNETMHSH
ZHE (2023%F : #) o

U]

(ii)

RFIFERARAF

HttgfEmBRPTE - RIRE
RIEREA R HAlRE o

Ut T3 AR 15 8 B 1% 3R &5 HE A 5825%
RO AR IR EMT AR ERS
TNTE RAFERBESFE
ETESREARANERETS
REBTEENWRBERBRE
HE-SHFBHNY B RRMTE
26 - ZEHENQIABECRER
HARGEEERER  RIREA
BE MAFEMBRKAEEN
THET A LMESEHREAMITH
REBNHFHRE -
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12. Income tax

e P TR R M

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made in the
current period as the Group has available tax losses brought
forward from prior periods to offset the assessable profits
generated during the current period. Hong Kong profits tax
had been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the prior years.
Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at
the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

12. FRB8 %

AEBERBER B UEFE 2B ARE
BIEA AR ERNESE 2 BRBEF -
B EERFEEBREHEE - BB
NEHERTFREBELENMETERB
A IE16.5%ET 1R ° BINREH AR AR
SENEEREREZRE 2E A Rt
EO

2024 2023
US$°000 US$’000
FTER E

Current — Hong Kong and Elsewhere: ENH#i —&&KEH
(Credit)/charge for the year FR(ER),ZH (29) 45
Total income tax (credit)/expense FRe®i (E#) B #%E (29) 45

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax
rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled and/or operate) to the tax

BRARKAERBEERR (RAARAEKX
HOMBARAEREERER, SEEE
By R E B ZR) 5T & B BRBE AT 5 F B B E B8
XREAEEERRRGFENHIRMZY

expense at the Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

BRI :

2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
Profit before tax BR A1 g 10,101 19,488
Income tax calculated at a tax rate Fri5%i1%16.5%
of 16.5% (2023: 16.5%) (20234 : 16.5%) 5T & 1,667 3,216
Difference in tax rates for other HBEZEBEN
jurisdictions BEER 188 (242)
Losses attributable to associates BENTIWEX (24) 2
Income not subject to tax BERT N (2,749) (1,907)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR X 1,733 1,924
Tax losses utilised from previous fFAULEFHEBE
periods 8 (930) (3,656)
Tax losses not recognised AERFIEE B 2,655 2,260
Effect of additional tax deduction MEREERBAIMEHNR S
enacted by tax authority (2,565) (1,504)
Others Hi (4) (48)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective RAEBEERHRERTE 2
rate BEMX (29) 45
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13. Earnings per share

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The basic earnings per share for the year is calculated
based on the Group’s profit in 2024 attributable to owners
of the parent of US$10,130,000 (2023: US$19,443,000)
and the weighted average number of 2,496,128,581 (2023:
2,495,151,529) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is calculated based on
the Group’s profit for the year attributable to owners of
the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year after adjusting for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

The information related to the weighted average number of
ordinary shares is as follows:

B BHRRME

13. BlR&EF
(a) BRELRER

BERELRBIAEZRERAQANE
B AR AREBER2024F 2@ A
10,130,000 Jt (20234 : 19,443,000
EX)RAFRESRITEERMNE
¥ 15 812,496,128,581% (20234 :
2,495151,529/%) 515 o

(b) BREFRF

BRBERNDREARATARFEDN
BEANRGASBEEN RS HRFRNFR
FEBEMELENCRITERRE
HARRZNMEFIEERBEE -

EERMETHENERERFIRD
T

Number of shares

RADEE

2024 2023

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue
Effect of dilution — weighted s
average number of ordinary

shares: share options

s
B R

W
BN

ERITEBRRNEFIH
E-SERME

2,496,128,581 2,495,151,529

Adjusted weighted average AETESRBERR
number of ordinary shares MARKSER
for diluted earnings per share IEFHERE

calculation

=

2,496,128,581 2,495,151,529

14. Dividend

No dividend for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 was
declared or paid by the Company. In addition, the Board resolved
not to propose a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2024.

14. R E

A AW RE BRI AT E E2024%2023
F12A31BLEEZRE -BE B2
RETEBEREE2024F128310 1k
FEZREKRE -
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15. Intangible assets

15. BEIL B E

Patents and

intellectual
Goodwill property Total
BRI R
BmE HEERE st
US$°’000 US$’000 US$’000
EPIm =TT ETT
31 December 2023 2023%F12A31H
Cost at 1 January 2023, net of 2023%F1 A1 8 RARER
accumulated amortisation E-Sg: ] - - -
Amortisation provided during the year & y#sH - - -
Exchange realignment bE A% - - -
At 31 December 2023 72023F12A31H - - -
At 31 December 2023 72023%F12831H
Cost N 2,317 21,517 23,834
Accumulated amortisation g F - (13,529) (13,529)
Accumulated impairment ZEHEE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
Net carrying amount ERTHEE - — _
31 December 2024 2024%F12H31H
At 1 January 2024 and MR2024F181HK
31 December 2024 2024%12H31H
Cost BAR 2,317 21,517 23,834
Accumulated amortisation Eg: 5] - (13,529) (13,529)
Accumulated impairment ZtEE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
Net carrying amount ERTEFEE - _ _

Amortisation expense of nil (2023: Nil) has been charged in
research and development costs.
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| A Bt FE 3R R M

. Property, plant and equipment 16. % - BEREHE
Furniture, ~ Machinery
fixtures, and
Land Leasehold licenses and laboratory Motor
and building improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
BE-
1 HENE EEXE- BER
kEF %E HURRRE ERERE RE st
US$°000 US$'000 US$°000 US$°000 US$'000 US$°000
T£n Txn Tin F£n T£n TEn
31 December 2024 20245128318
At 1 January 2024 R2024%181H
Cost A 1,731 2,705 7,094 14,834 156 26,520
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (305) (2,409) (6,068) (12,762) (128) (21,672)
Accumulated impairment 2 HE - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,426 296 1,015 2,07 28 4,836
At 1 January 2024, netof  R2024F1R1RHR
accumulated depreciation ZHRERAE
and impairment 1,426 296 1,015 2,071 28 4,836
Additions RE - 532 511 1,134 17 2,254
Disposals B - 2 - - (14) (16)
Depreciation provided during  FR{TE
the year (20) (236) (606) (700) (27) (1,589)
Exchange realignment ERAE - - (1) 4 - (5)
At 31 December 2024, net of #2024 12831 B
accumulated depreciation BREFHTERAE
and impairment 1,406 590 919 2,501 64 5,480
At 31 December 2024 R2024F12831H
Cost B 1,731 2,431 6,014 15,881 149 26,206
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (325) (1,841) (5,095) (13,380) (85) (20,726)
Accumulated impairment ZiTHE - - - - - -
Net carrying amount REFE 1,406 590 919 2,501 64 5,480

Depreciation expense of US$665,000 (2023: US$620,000) has
been included in cost of sales, US$95,000 (2023: US$95,000)
in research and development costs and US$829,000 (2023:

US$672,000) in administrative expenses.

T & & F665,0003 7T (20234 : 620,000
X)) BETAEERA ST AR KB
% [ 595,000 Jt (20234 : 95,000%
Jt) » 5T ATER & £829,0003 5t (2023
£ 1 672,000E7T) °

RFIFERARAF
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16. Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

16. Y155 - B RRE (F)

Furniture, Machinery
fixtures, and
Land Leasehold  licenses and laboratory Motor
and building  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE -
1t HEME EEfE- KER
kEF £ FURRRE ERERE "E H
Us$’000 US$°000 Us$000 US$°000 Us$ 000 Us$000
Ee ey E E ey E
31 December 2023 2023127318
At 1 January 2023 20231518
Cost AR 1,682 2,742 6,757 14,897 156 26,234
Accumulated depreciation ZiiTE 277) (2,446) (5,893) (12,417) (100) (21,133)
Accumulated impairment 2itRE - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount ERFE 1,405 296 853 2,479 56 5,089
At 1 January 2023, net of M2023F1 B1BEk
accumulated depreciation ~ BiHTERFE
and impairment 1,405 296 853 2,479 56 5,089
Additions NE - 176 568 343 - 1,087
Disposals R - - (1) - - ()
Depreciation provided during  FRITE
the year (20) (172) (486) (681) (28) (1,387)
Exchange realignment ERHE 4 ) 81 (70) - 48
At 31 December 2023, net of  A2023%F 12531 A
accumulated depreciation BREFHTERAE
and impairment 1,426 296 1,015 2,071 28 4,836
At 31 December 2023 12023%12831R
Cost 2N 1,731 2,705 7,094 14,834 156 26,520
Accumulated depreciation  RiH#7E (305) (2,409) (6,068) (12,762) (128) (21,672)
Accumulated impairment ZiTHE - - (11) (1) - (12)
Net carrying amount ERFE 1,426 296 1,015 2,071 28 4,836
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17. Leases

The Group as a lessee

The Group has leases contracts for various office properties
and motor vehicles used in its operations. Leases of leased
properties generally have lease terms between 1 and 3 years,
while motor vehicles generally have leases between 1 and 4
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets

17. HE
AEBERAAEEA

AEBEEHECRARPLIERAER
REXBEE - HENFXBAHBER/1ES
FoMAENBERBER1Z4F - — KM
5 ARENTBAKEENLINIATERER
DHEBEEE -

(a) EREEE
FEENEAEEERTIERAFE

and the movements during the year are as follows: BEWMT :
Leased
properties
HEME
US$’000
FET
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1H1H 1,802
Additions NE 740
Lease modification on extending lease term ERBEHZHEERT 497
Early termination of lease arrangement REPARIEEEERT (257)
Depreciation charge meE (1,391)

At 31 December 2023 and MA2023F12A31HK

1 January 2024 20241810 1,391
Additions NE -
Lease modification on extending lease term ERBHHERS 3,094
Early termination of lease arrangement RELILBEEEFT -
Depreciation charge e (1,433)
At 31 December 2024 R2024%F12A31H 3,052
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17. Leases (continued) 17. HE (&)

(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEAE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEEEBNREERAEESBM
during the year are as follows: T:
2024 2023
US$’000 USs$’000
TER E
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1HEREE 1,506 1,996
New leases S - 740
Lease modification on extending lease ERMBEHZHEET
term 3,094 497
Early termination of lease arrangement REBXRILHEEES - (246)
Accretion of interest recognised during REFERSEM
the year ®E 128 63
Exchange realignment IR (40) (56)
Payments INEN (1,373) (1,488)
Carrying amount at 31 December M12B31BEREIE 3,315 1,506
Analysed into: DWAT -
Within one year —FR 1,412 985
After one year but within two years —FE L L BMEUR 1,324 339
After two years but within three years MELEB=FURK 579 182
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEESEMNEHMRR DTN FEIRE
3 to the financial statements. MizE3IRE ©
The Group applied the practical expedient to all eligible H2023F12A31BEE» AEECD
COVID-19-related rent concessions granted by the lessors KB TEEFEZIEERMESER
during the year ended 31 December 2023. 20198 MESHEAE S AR °
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases (c) REZRERNBEEHOT :
are as follows:
2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FErx FET
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESERE 1,433 1,391
Expenses relating to short-term leases EHRHEZHEER 8 46
Interest on lease liabilities HESBMFEXH 128 63
Loss on termination of lease wIFHEBX - 11
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBFRERDHE I H 1,569 1,511
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18. Investments in associates

18. REMEQRRWRE

2024 2023

US$’000 us$’000

FEx FTEn

Share of net assets ELFEE 905 761

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

BEXNANFABROT :

Place of Percentage of equity
registration/ Particulars of attributable to the Company
incorporation registered capital/ ARRBEERBON
Associates and operation Principal activities issued shares
AR % SMER, BRI
BEnTF EEHE TEXH RANFE 2024 2023
Beijing LED Energy PRC LED system design RMB20,000,000 23.5% 23.5%
Management Technology ~#El and contract 20,000,000 A ¥
Co. Ltd. installation
T RERREENERA LEDZA#ZR TR
ARAA IER%E
Kitronix Limited Hong Kong Design, development,  HK$38,000,000 25% 25.0%
HEINERAF B manufacturing & 38,000,000 7T
distribution of LCD
modules
Rat o BB RER
PR EBTRES
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRAEPREFNHBHEL NI NEAEEES
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually B EREIHFEK :
material:
2024 2023
Us$’000 Us$’000
TER FER
Share of the associates’ profits/ ity NG PN
(losses) and total comprehensive (BX)R2EKE(HB)
income/(loss) for the year 144 (14)
Aggregate carrying amount of AEBREE QT
the Group’s investments in the RENREARZE
associates 905 761
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19. Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal

19. i B A 7
AKABREEHBLAAFMAMBROT -

subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of registration/

incorporation Principal activities and
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation Particulars of capital Interest held
tR ERRUBEREELY TEEBREELE RawE KRk
Solomon Systech Limited HK, LLC Design, development, sales of ICs 500,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each ~ 100%

BFNRARLR

Jing Guang Semiconductors
(Dongguan) Limited
REREYERERLR
Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited
SMME (R) BRAT

Solomon Systech Taiwan Limited

EMNERABRAF
Solomon Systech (China) Limited
FARE (PE) BRAF

&% ARLT

PRC, LLC
hE ARAT
PRC, LLC
hE ARATF

Talwan LLC
8% ERAF

PRC, LLC
hE BRAT

and system solutions, HK
Rt BE HERNERARE
?»}Lﬁ/)ﬁﬁ% ! E‘rﬁ

Manufacture of ICs, Mainland China

RERHERER - T8

Design and distribution of ICs,
Mainland China
RARAHERERRS 7B

Design and development of ICs, Taiwan

RARFRERERRS A2

Design and distribution of ICs,
Mainland China
FHRIBERERES TH

500,000,000k § REE 12T HEER

US$7,500,000 registered and paid up capital 100%

7,500,000 EHARARER

HK$16,000,000 registered and 100%
paid up capital

16,000,008 R EEMRC AR ER

5,000,000 ordinary shares of NTD10 each ~ 100%

5,000,000RERAR 0 EHNEER
US$34,000,000 registered and paid up capital 100%

34,000,000% EHMRHEER

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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20. Equity investment designated at fair

21.

value through other comprehensive
income

20.

BAVEEFAEMEZEHRK
mHRERE

2024 2023
US$°000 US$’000
FEr FER
Equity investment designated BAFEEFAEMEEKEN
at fair value through other RERE
comprehensive income
Club debenture BHES 1,161 1,161

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged
deposits

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
US$2,191,000 (2023: US$2,938,000). The pledged deposits
denominated in US dollars amounted to US$3,500,000
(2023: US$6,000,000) were pledged to banks to secure
banking facilities. The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

21.

RFIFERARAF

FEERARRERKMMME  RERE
AAHE R EE AP EEFARMEE
Log

BERBSEBYREEH
7K

RBEBR  REBUARE (AR
¥ ENBESRETEES2,191,000
£ 77 (20234 : 2,938,000% T) - LETT
FHE 2B MIFER S 458 43,500,0003 7T
(20234 : 6,000,000E 7T) @ B IHIRIT
ERERTHRERE - AREBTTERR
BAEEMEY  BIRE DR KENGME
EEGEHAR(EE EERNESER
EY)  AEBEEBRERBETIIESE
EHRTHBRARBLRAEMER -

RITERREZ B RITERNZREZZEHF
WAL - EMERFROHBRZIR
EMERATE  RFAEENNERETE
RME @ WIRE B WEHRE R FRFRR
WAE - RITEHRCSEFRITERFR
REBREFNRIT  MHEENTE -

| cocar s 153




22.

23.

Inventories 2. FE8
2024 2023
US$'000 US$’000
TER TER
Finished goods B 3,113 2,537
Raw materials and work in progress EMRRERSR 19,920 40,599
23,033 43,136
Provision for obsolete or slow-moving B FHES
inventories E’Jﬁé{% (9,676) (15,216)
13,357 27,920
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and ik }%F;ﬁijfﬁj\ﬁﬁ’iﬁzﬂxEUﬁ S BN AN E
included in cost of sales amounted to US$78,575,000 (2023: 78,575,000 T (20234 : 104,982,000
US$104,982,000). %7‘5) °
Movements on the provision for obsolete or slow-moving BREAFEFENRENEEINOT
inventories are as follows:
2024 2023
US$'000 US$’000
FEx FEx
At 1 January M1A1H ‘ 15,216 15,000
Scrap of inventories against provision FEREHIRER (1,562) (995)
(Reversal of provision)/provision for BREIFHTED
obsolete or slow-moving inventories, net (B EE ) BEFEE (3,978) 1,211
At 31 December MW12A31H 9,676 15,216
Trade and other receivables, 2. BB RHEMEWRNK B
prepayments and deposits MERET &
2024 2023
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MiE FEx FEx
Trade receivables FEU TR 12,421 12,477
Trade receivables from related parties BB 5 R 36 7,666 4,938
Impairment WERE (201) (123)
Trade receivables - net W — F58 19,886 17,292
Other receivables, prepayments and ﬁﬂtﬁ?ﬂﬁw FEARK
deposits HER 11,561 14,344
Prepayments to related parties B 5 TR 36 225 221
Impairment WERE (61) (40)
Trade and other receivables, FEYR R e LAt FRURER
prepayments and deposits EARKFTE
— current portion — & 31,611 31,817
Other receivables, prepayments and HEWR  AERE
deposits Hi
- non-current portion T ERE 402 679
Impairment RERE (4) -
Other receivables, prepayments and Eﬂﬂﬁgllil C FENRK
deposits, net, non-current portion AE - FE-FRY 398 679
32,009 32,496
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23. Trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits (continued)

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s trade receivables from
corporate customers were mainly on credit terms of 30 to 90
days. As at 31 December 2024, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice dates and net of loss allowance,

HEMBRERME

8. BURREMERR BN

AEE = (&)

A2024F 128318 AEBEH L EE
FrRUREEHEEA30FE90H - R
2024%12H831H  EWARUBZAHR
N BERENREMIOT :

is as follows:
2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FErx E
1-30 days 1-30H 14,278 12,102
31-60 days 31-60H 2,958 2,430
61-90 days 61-90H 1,917 1,257
91-180 days 91-180H 730 1,197
181-360 days 181-360H 3 -
over 360 days ##B3i8360H - 306
19,886 17,292

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

WK EREEBMNT

2024 2023

US$’000 US$’000

FErx FErx

At beginning of year REL 123 214
Impairment losses/ HE

(reversal of impairment losses) CREE ) 78 (91)

At end of year RER 201 123

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

BEKEAMERBREERETHRED
o UETEEMEREBRE - BEXRERA
BEMBEARANEEEFHEN D ANE
MRB(ANRMIPESR) - ZTERRTH
RMESER  ERKBEEUARRS B
AESHENBESZMN  BAMRRIARR
BERZFINEEMAXZEER - — R
= BURNEHEB-FELAFZH
ERBRER T UEHE -
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23. Trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2024

Expected credit

28 BURREMEWRR BN
AEET = (&)

LU 85 A S [ 5 A B A /B F 9 IR LR 1=

BREkE:

20245128318

Gross carrying Expected credit

loss rate amount losses
EHEEERE R E & FEHEEER
% US$’000 US$’000
Bokk FEx FEx

Past due Lng st
Current HRiBE . 18,109 -
1 to 30 days 1-30H ) 1,516 -
31 to 60 days 31-60H ’ 259 -
61 to 90 days 61-90H ) - -
Over 90 days HiB0H 99.01 203 201
20,087 201

As at 31 December 2023

Expected credit

M2023F12A31H

Gross carrying  Expected credit

loss rate amount losses
FEHEEFEER IREE FEHEEEE
% US$’000 US$’000
Bkt FERT FEn

Past due B
Current KiBHA 14,533 -
1 to 30 days 1-30H 2,310 -
31 to 60 days 31-60H 143 -
61 to 90 days 61-90H : - -
Over 90 days HiEB90H 28.67 429 123
17,415 123

*

The expected credit loss rates were less than 0.1%.

*k

Based on management's assessment, the expected credit losses
were minimal.

For financial assets included in other receivables and deposits,
an impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. As at 31 December 2024, the
probability of default applied ranged from 0.69% to 0.94%
(2023 ranged from 0.40% to 0.90%) and the loss given default
was estimated to be 100%. As at 31 December 2024 and 2023,
the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.
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23.

Trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits (continued)

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables and deposits are as follows:

EAMBERMNE

8. BURREMERR BN
AEE = (&)

AttERRRTSRESBERESDN
T

2024 2023

US$°000 US$’000

FEx FTEx

At the beginning of year RELD 40 160
Impairment losses/(reversal of HERE, (E#)

impairment losses) 25 (120)

At end of year RER 65 40

24.Financial asset at fair value through 24. AV EFFABRZZEREE

profit or loss

2024 2023

US$°000 US$’000

TER FTER

Other unlisted investment, at fair value: HMELEHmRE  UAAREFE - 2,522

25.

The above unlisted investment was structured product issued
by a bank in Mainland China. It was mandatorily classified
as financial asset at fair value through profit or loss as its
contractual cash flows are not solely payments of principal and
interest.

Lii3E EHIRE RN B AR ZRITHAR
MER RAEBMUEFREFL S ERE
DAREFABSZERMEE  HENHRE
5;.’%%3]2#1%3%&@‘2!&%&%%5&@%1&%%
RE o

Issued capital 25. B BITR A
2024 2023
Number of Number of
shares  US$’000 shares  US$’000
BRHEAE TER BRHEE EY
Authorised: ERE
- Ordinary shares of -SREE010BTH
HK$0.10 each EBR 5,000,000,000 64,433 5,000,000,000 64,433
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR
At 1 January 75§1 A1H 2,495,652,351 32,166 2,494,352,351 32,149
Exercise of share options ()  {TEEEREE() 2,100,000 27 1,300,000 17
At 31 December ®12831H 2,497,752,351 32,193 2,495,652,351 32,166

(i) The subscription rights attaching to 2,100,000 (2023:
1,300,000) share options were exercised at the
weighted average subscription price of HK$0.2116
(2023: HK$0.2181) per share (note 26), resulting in the
issue of 2,100,000 (2023: 1,300,000) ordinary shares
for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
approximately US$137,000 (2023: US$37,000). An amount
of approximately US$53,000 (2023: US$10,000) was
transferred from the equity compensation reserve to share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

() 2,100,000 (20234 : 1,300,000
) BREMTHNRBEUMET
BB ESRR0.21168 7T (20234 :
0.218178 7t) (Mi&F26) MR BEBET
i EHE£1T72,100,0000% (20234 :
1,300,0008%) &1 » HIMRE AAIEAR
€ B H 9137,000% T (20234 :
37,0005 7t) c RBERETFEEZ  —
% #953,0003 Jt (20234 : 10,000
T)MNSEHBEREREBERARMDE
EIR °
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26. A% 2 1 5 ¥R B =T 8
(a) W8RRAENB

26. Equity compensation scheme

(@) The Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting
held on 28 May 2013. The terms of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange. The 2013
Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period
of 10 years commencing on 28 May 2013, being the date
of adoption of such scheme by the shareholders of the
Company. The Board shall be entitled at any time within 10
years commencing on 28 May 2013 to make an offer for
the grant of an option to any qualifying participants.

The 2013 Share Option Scheme expired on 27 May 2023.
No further share options may be granted pursuant to the
2013 Share Option Scheme. The Company does not have
other share schemes. No share options were granted
during the year 2024. During the year 2023, the Company
granted a total of 5,900,000 share options, representing
0.024% of the weighted average number of shares in issue
for the year of 2023.

No service provider sublimit was set under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2024, the total number of outstanding
share options granted was 16,180,000 (31 December
2023: 29,600,000) with rights to subscribe for 16,180,000
shares of the Company (31 December 2023: 29,600,000),
representing 0.65% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company (31 December 2023: 1.19%).

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to
provide the participants (directors, employees, advisers,
consultants, agents, distributors, contractors, contract
manufacturers, suppliers, service providers, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, etc., of
any member of the Group) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
approval of the 2013 Share Option Scheme or 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the qualifying
participant concerned for a period of 21 days from the
date of the offer (or such longer period as the Board may
specify in writing). HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to
the Company on acceptance of the offer of the option.
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26. Equity compensation scheme (continued)
(@) The Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price of share option shall be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion in accordance
with the terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme. The
subscription price in respect of any particular option shall
be no less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (b) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant. The 2013 Share Option Scheme expired in May
2023.

The number of share options outstanding as at 31
December 2024 was 16,180,000 (31 December 2023:
29,600,000).

The following share options under the 2013 Share Option
Scheme were outstanding during the year:

EAMBERMNE

26. M A< RE o ¥R B =T & ()
(a) WA & (8D

2013 R ETERXRET » &
EEEABHBENTYBRENR
BBE - EMERBRENIBEERS
UTHRESE  @BRONRERE BB
EBXFEABERAIIWHE: &
(o) £ RER K B AISEE XA
EBX SR REXRAIFIRD
& - 20138 R &5 B2 M202355A8
25 -

M20245F 128318 » 4 $£16,180,000
BB MBI AR LT (2023512 A 31
H : 29,600,000%) °

£ 2013 RET B RITREBR
BHEWT :

2024 2023

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options
MEFHTEE  BREHE MmETHTEE BRERAE

HK$ HK$

BT BT
At beginning of year READ 0.684 29,600,000 0.705 27,150,000
Granted during the year FREREH - - 0.470 5,900,000
Exercised during the year FRETRE 0.504 (2,100,000) 0.218 (1,300,000)
Lapsed/forfeited during the year FRT 8, HE 0.814  (11,320,000) 0.649 (2,150,000)
At end of year REXR 0.616 16,180,000 0.684 29,600,000

The weighted average share closing price of the
Company's ordinary shares immediately before the dates
on which the share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2024 was HK$0.620 (31 December
2023: HK$0.489) per ordinary share.

During the year, movements in the number of share
options outstanding under the 2013 share option scheme
and the related exercise prices are as follows:

B ZE2024F12B31BLLFE £ B
EERETFAZANAQATEER
MEFHRTEASREER0.620
It (20235128310 : 0.489%8
JT) °

FR - BR2013BRERT BiE RITRE
BREHENEZBREBRBITEES
BT
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26. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

(@) The Share Option Scheme (continued)

Number of share options (in thousand units)
BREHE (UFfus)

26. M A< RE o ¥R A w1 & ()
(a) WERAEHE ()

Exercise Held on
price 1 January Forfeited 31 December
per share 2024
HK$ 20245
Grant date BRITER 1A1A Vesting period Exercise period
REAH BT B BEH L]
1 June 2021 0.840 3,000 1 June 2021 1 June 2022 to
20216418 2021F6A1A 31 May 2024
202256510 %
2024F5A31H
0.840 2,400 - 1 June 2021 to 1 June 2022 to
31 May 2022 31 May 2024
202156812 2022F6A1HE
2022%5831A 202458310
8 December 2021 0.790 4,960 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2022 to
2021E128H 7 June 2022 7 June 2024
202112880 % 202256580 %
2022%6A7H 2024%6A7H
0.790 7,440 8 December 2021 to 8 June 2023 to
7 June 2023 6 June 2025
20211238 % 2023F6A8HE
2023F6A7H 2025%6A6H
22 June 2022 0.530 3,000 22 June 2022 From 23 June 2023 to
202265228 2022%6F22A 20 June 2025
202356230 E
202556200
0.530 2,400 - 22 June 2022 to  From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
H2022F6A22F  H2023F6A823AZ
2023%6521H 2025%6520H
0.530 250 22 June 2022 to  From 23 June 2023 to
21 June 2023 20 June 2025
H2022F6A22F  M2023F6H23A%
2023F6A21H 2025F6820A IE
0.530 250 22 June 2022 to  From 24 June 2024 to
21 June 2024 23 June 2026
M2020E6A20F  H2024F6F24A%
2024F65218 2026F6523A 1E
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26. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

(@) The Share Option Scheme (continued)

10 THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL €
 HREMBHmRME

26. M%< 3 BN R & (&)

Number of share options (in thousand units)

BREZE (AT

(a) MR AETE (&)

Exercise Held on Lapsed/ Held on

price 1 January Forfeited 31 December

per share 2024 Granted Exercised during 2024

HK$ 120245 during during  the period 120245
Grant date SRTEE 1A1H the period the period BRE 125310 Vesting period Exercise period
RLAH BT BE  BRERE BREME 2/ NE b HREY s
24 March 2023 0.546 250 - - - 250 24 March 2023 to 25 March 2024 to
2023F3/24H 24 March 2024 24 March 2026
M2023F3A24HE  M2024F3A25R %
2024%3524A 202635248
0.546 250 - - - 250 24 March 2023 to 25 March 2025 to
24 March 2025 24 March 2027
M2023F3A240Z 1202563425
2025%3524A Z2027%3524R
25 May 2023 0.463 3,000 - - - 3,000 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 to
2025%5525H 2023%55250 25 May 2025
2023550250 2
2025F508250
0.463 2,400 - (800) - 1,600 25 May 2023 25 May 2023 to
2023F5A25H 25 May 2025
2023550250
2025E5825H

Total
@t 29,600 = (2,100) (11,320) 16,180

At the end of the reporting period, the total number of
share options which are exercisable under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme is 15,930,000 (2023: 28,850,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
16,180,000 share options outstanding under the 2013
Share Option Scheme during the year. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
16,180,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of approximately US$1,285,000
(before issue expenses).

No share option was granted in the year 2024. The fair
value of the share options granted during the year 2023
was HK$997,000 (HK$0.17 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of US$6,000 (2023:
US$274,000) during the year ended 31 December 2024,

RFIFERARAF

MNIREH R - RIBE20138E R AEFT &
] 1T 5 /9 B AR #E 42 8 A15,930,000
(20234 : 28,850,000) °

REBEER - AND TR 2201388
B% #E 5t & 18 Kk 17 1£16,180,00017 B8
RE-BERARTDBEEERERE
EHTHERTEBRESEHHT
16,180,000 1 7] B % & A MR AN
#91,285,0003 7T (FIBREEITE FHAT) ©

MR2024F AW EBEEBRE - R
2023 R AERHERENATES
997,00058 7t (E100.178 ) » H
REFRNE E2024F12831H L F
ERER B IR AR 526,000% T (2023
274,000%7t) °
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26. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

(a)

(b)

The Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Company uses the Binomial Valuation Model (the
“Model”) to value the share options granted. The key
parameters used in the Model and the corresponding fair

26. B A< R R & (F&)

(a) MM #ETE (&)

AAREA B EENX ([EKX])
SHEERENBRE - R2023FRE
RHBRENAFERERALENHN

values of the share options granted during 2023 are listed TESEHENT
below:
2023 2023
25 May 24 March
Date of grant & A 5H25H 3H24H
Number of share options ERHEREZE 5,400 500
granted (in thousand units) (A FAuzt)
Total share option value BREgE
- HK$’000 —FE&xT 887 110
- US$’000 equivalent - FEREE 114 14
Share price at date of grant (HK$) REBEWRE (Br) 0.455 0.500
Closing price immediately SERHBAIZWHE 0.455 0.580
before the date of grant (HK$) (&)
Exercise price (HK$) TEE (Br) 0.463 0.546
Expected life of options (years) IBARREMTEHRRE (F) 2 3-4
Annualised volatility FERIE 76.9%  77.2%-83.6%
Risk-free interest rate EE R R 3.64%  2.79%-2.84%
Dividend payout rate TRE = 2.33% 2.33%

The Binomial Valuation Model is used to estimate the
fair values of European share options. The fair values
calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain due to
the assumptions made and the limitations of the Model
used. The value of a share option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation
of the fair value of a share option.

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
continuously compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily closing share prices over the
last few years.

The Share Grant

There was no share award granted during the years ended
31 December 2024 and 2023.
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27.

28.

29.

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 87 of the
financial statements.

Deferred tax

At 31 December 2024, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of US$46,501,000 (2023: US$51,849,000),
subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also had unrecognised tax losses arising
in Mainland China of US$21,192,000 (2023: US$10,637,000),
subject to the agreement by the relevant taxation authority,
that will expire in five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax
assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses due
to unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.

At 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023, no deferred
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subjected to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China. In the opinion of directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future.

27.

28.

&a

1 15 35 3% 4

(GRS

AEBEMAFRUNFEZFBREZEFE
BRI BRRESTEAERBEBRA ©

EIEFR S

A2024512A318 AEBEEBE
4 By R 7B R B 1E B 18 546,501,0003% T
(20234 : 51,849,000 t) (B & B
BHEBRE) ZEHEBEVERHA
FIREELEBEN AT RRERTER
e AREBTEEPEAREEENRE
1R IE B5 1821,192,000% 7T (20234
10,637,000 7t) (B EEBR BHER
B) O ZEBEEBEEREFEARR A
AEREELEFEN DTN RREREF
o AREETERIRREZRHABERIR -
ENI BB ZEEERRELEHIEEE -

M2024%12 331 H K20235F12A318 -
8% 428 s, 24 52 [0 74 BB e 2 O B B 1 )
AR AR TR OB HO R EE W BRI RO PR A TR N B
WABLERE - EERH  ZEHWELF
ARARRABRERRD KBERA °

Trade and other payables 29. FE IR R H b FE S =X
2024 2023
Notes US$’000 US$’000
FiEE FEn EP
Trade payables i XREN 7,439 8,610
Trade payables to a related party B 5 R K 96 -
(@) 7,535 8,610
Accrued expenses and other payables TR R H AT FK 11,313 13,140
Contract liabilities EHNER (b) 2,647 3,282
Contract liabilities from a related party BELIaNEE 36(a) 167 456
Refund liabilities RREE 1,312 1,420
22,974 26,908
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29. Trade and other payables (continued) 2. ENRREMEAST(E)
Notes: 5t -
(a) At 31 December 2024, the ageing analysis of the trade payables () M2024F12H31H > B UABZRH
based on invoice dates is as follows: IR DMAT ¢
2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FxEx
1 - 30 days 1-30H 3,614 3,891
31 - 60 days 31-60H 2,266 3,529
61 - 90 days 61 -90H 1,131 765
Over 90 days #HiE90H 524 425
7,535 8,610
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average ENRAREBE—MRAEARNGEE -
term of three months.
(b) Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (b) EHNBENHEBNOT :
31 December 31 December 1 January
2024 2023 2023
12H31H 12A31H 1A1H
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
SFES EV EY
Advances received from WEE F 2 E R IE
customers
Sales of ICs $HEICs 2,647 3,282 6,346
Advances received from a W ER BB B 75 2 FE U R IE
related party
Sales of ICs $HEICs 167 456 4,224
2,814 3,738 10,570
Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver EHEBEEEARNEERERMEEZTEN
semiconductor products. The decrease in contract liabilities in I 0 2024 F R2023F ENE BRI ETERA
2024 and 2023 was mainly due to the decrease in advances RUEL 2 T FRIER D B3R ©
received.
30. Interest-bearing bank borrowings 30. |RITFFEER
At 31 December 2024, the Group had unsecured bank loans A2024F12A31H » AEE W H|BTE
of US$Nil (2023: US$1,657,000) in connection with a PRC K IF E X (20234 : 1,657,000E7t) BB
subsidiary. The bank loan as at 31 December 2023 was R BE KR+ 2R - A2023F12A31H
denominated in RMB, which had been settled during the year ZIMITEARCR2024FFRNEE  ERF
2024, which bore interest at a rate of 2.5% per annum. FZEE25% » WA RESIE -
31. Banking facilities M. RITEE

At 31 December 2024, the Group had banking facilities
amounted to US$23.1 million (2023: US$27.3 million) and
US$16.1 million (2023: US$13.6 million) was unutilised.
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32. Contingent liabilities

The Company has provided corporate guarantees amounted to
US$14.0 million (2023: US$14.0 million) to banks in connection
with facilities granted to a subsidiary, of which US$5.0 million
(2023: US$8.0 million) was utilised as at 31 December 2024.

33. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows

(a) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions and
modification to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
US$3,094,000 (2023: US$1,237,000) and US$3,094,000
(2023: US$1,237,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for leased properties.

During the year 2023, the Group had non-cash termination
of an existing lease of office property, resulting in a
derecognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of US$257,000 and US$246,000, respectively, and
corresponding recognition of a loss on lease termination of
US$11,000 (2024: Nil).

(b) Change in assets/liabilities arising from financing activities

%A%ﬁiﬁﬁmi—t

32 AREE

AATECHRBTHELARDNRE [IRITER
HEEER14.08 B =T (2023%F : 14.0
BEET)  ZmEN2024F128318E
BHHEPS5.08E8 X (20235 : 8.068
ETT) e

B mERTMERME

(@) EBFREXRSH

FR AEERZHEENENSE
AREENHEEEENEESRE
R 15 5T 2 Bl 53,094,000 Jt (2023
£ :1,237,0003 jt) #13,094,0003%
7t (20234 : 1,237,000E 7T) °

HR2023FF R - NEBERBEWEN
FREEENHEEEMNIESKIE
HE 5 3l £257,000% T 246,000
=T WHERAKIEEEBX11,0003%
TC (20244 : £E) o

(b) REEZHEHEE BEFERL

2024 2024
Pledged
bank Lease
deposits Borrowings liabilities
2K
SRITEM BX HESE
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FERx FEr FEx
At 1 January 2024 M2024F181H 6,000 1,657 1,506
Changes from financing cash EER&REMNE L
flows - - (1,245)
Lease modification on ERAH 2 HEBET
extending lease term - — 3,094
Foreign exchange movement [E X&) - - (40)
Release of pledged deposits R C K IFEITER (2,500) - -
Interest expense FE X H - = 128
Interest paid classified as ERFE D EAKE
operating cash flows BE&RE - - (128)
Drawdowns of bank TEURITER
borrowings - 1,261 -
Repayments of bank EERITER
borrowings - (2,918) -
At 31 December 2024 R2024%F12831H 3,500 - 3,315
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33. Notes to the consolidated statement of
cash flows (continued)

(b)

Change in assets/liabilities arising from financing
activities (continued)

B.GZERESRERME (H)

(b) MEEFBHEHREE BERL (K

2023 2023
Pledged
bank Lease
deposits Borrowings liabilities
IR
IRITER & HESE
US$’000 US$’000 US$’'000
FET FET FERT
At 1 January 2023 M2023F1H1H 6,041 1,421 1,996
Changes from financing cash EER&REMNE L
flows - - (1,425)
New leases S - - 740
Lease modification on ERMBEHZHEERT
extending lease term - - 497
Early termination of lease REBXRIELHEEESR
arrangement - - (246)
Foreign exchange movement [E 3R &) - - (56)
Release of pledged deposits BRI C K IFEITER (41) - -
Interest expense FE L H - - 63
Interest paid classified as B fIE 5 BAKLE
operating cash flows RER=E - - (63)
Drawdowns of bank SZEURITER
borrowings - 1,657 -
Repayments of bank EERITER
borrowings - (1,421) -
At 31 December 2023 A2023F12A831H 6,000 1,657 1,506

(c) Total cash outflows for leases

The total cash outflows for leases included in the

(c) HERSRHAR
REeERERPERE E’J*ﬂﬁi&émuﬂj%‘

statement of cash flows is as follows: BT -
2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
FEn FEn
Within operating activities EREZEH 136 109
Within financing activities EREEEH 1,245 1,425
1,381 1,534

34. Commitments 34, A IE
Capital commitments B AR EIE

Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet provided for at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

REBEMR  CEHESHNEHRBRANE
REZFIEHMOT -

2024 2023

US$000 US$’000

FEn ES

Property, plant and equipment M BEREE 3,524 2,297
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35. Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

3. 2T HIRER
ZEINERMITERKEEEREDAENT :

2024 2024
Financial assets SREE
Financial asset at
fair value through
other
comprehensive
income
BOFERETA
Hip2EKEN
SREE
Financial
Equity assets at
investment amortised cost Total
BE A
RERE ENERERE @it
US$’000 US$'000 US$000
SV S FET
Equity investment at fair value B AFEE;TA
through other comprehensive  Eft2AWEMN
income RiERE 1,161 - 1,161
Financial assets included in trade JERE R EHERF A
and other receivables SREE - 28,298 28,298
Pledged bank deposits EEANRTER - 3,500 3,500
Cash and cash equivalents BERRLEEN - 104,242 104,242
1,161 136,040 137,201
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBEKATTE
HemesE
US$’000
Financial liabilities cRmEE FEx
Financial liabilities included in trade ARk EMmEARA
and other payables Sl =L 13,851
Interest-bearing bank borrowing IRITETEER -
13,851
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(continued)

2023
Financial assets

35. Financial instruments by category

3. &R T BEER (&)

2023
EMEE

Financial asset at

fair value through
Financial asset at other
fair value through comprehensive
profit or loss income
RATEESA BRATEBA
BH H2EWEN
tHEE tREE
Mandatorily Financial
designated Equity assets at
as such investment amortised cost Total
RE#HEARG
BEIMMEE RERE ENeREE @it
US$'000 Us$000 US$'000 Us$000
ey E ey E
Equity investment at fair value A FEEA
through other comprehensive ~ Efi2EREMN
income RiERE - 1,161 - 1,161
Financial assets included in BT R EtERFAN
trade and other receivables tREE - - 26,802 26,802
Financial asset at fair value BRATEGABEZ
through profit o loss eREE 2,522 - - 2,522
Pledged bank deposits EERNRITEH - - 6,000 6,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeREEEEN - - 80,339 80,339
2,522 1,161 113,141 116,824
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REEHRATE
Hemas
US$’000
Financial liabilities SEAE ESH
Financial liabilities included in trade FEAS R B RS TR
and other payables HemaE 15,376
Interest-bearing bank borrowing RITFTEER 1,657
17,033
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36. Related parties transactions

(@)

China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”), a state-
owned information technology conglomerate under the
administration of the central government of the PRC,
through one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Huada
Semiconductor Co. Ltd., owns approximately 28.3% of the
issued shares of the Company and is thus a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Transactions between the
Group and the subsidiaries or associates of CEC are
regarded as transactions with related parties.

CEC is a state-owned entity which is subject to the control
of the State Council of the PRC Government. The Group
had the following individually significant or collectively
significant transactions with the PRC government-related
entity during the year:

(i) The Group enters into extensive sale transactions
with the state-controlled entity, which are controlled
by the State Council of the PRC Government through
its government authorities, in the normal course of
business on commercial terms. Approximately 37%
of the Group’s sales for the year were came from this
state-controlled entity.

The following transactions were carried out with related
parties:

.-

3. BBEXS

(@)

TEEFEEEXREEERAT
HET ) REERBRPE P RBA
EENEBETEMRMEEER
BBREEZENBARNEAYERESR
PRABEBH28.3% AR A R 2 BITR
7B DARBZEERR - AREH
CECHIBARREBMBANRZBRK
BBARS -

TEETAEEER  ZHEBNE
RIS o FR - AEEEPBE BT
HEAEREUTENEANKEEX
MR :

() AEEREEXRBBEPEER
TR B I I B RER] M B2 /Y
HEXRS ZFEEHATEK
BB E B H TR E S o
KEBFRNLI7TRHNHEEER
BZBEREFERE -

UTRERBBH2RS -

2024 2023
Notes US$’000 US$’000
FiEE FEx FET
Sales: HER :
Subsidiary of CEC o B T (O it A (i 43,171 56,534
Associate of CEC FEIE FRIBE A (ii) 398 844
Testing service fees: ARG ZE
Associate of CEC FEIEFRIBE A (iii) 393 -
Rental service charges: HERGE :
Subsidiary of CEC FEREFHRNBAR (iv) 29 29
Software and IT services charges: #iff {2 BRIMTIRGEE -
Subsidiaries of CEC FREFHMEAA (v) 268 259
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36. Related parties transactions (continued)

(a) (continued)

Notes:

U]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

This represented the transaction amount for the supply of IC
and driver products (“IC Products”) from the Group to CEAC
International Limited (“CEACI”) during the year ended 31
December 2023, based on the agreement dated 22 October
2020 (the “IC Products Supply Agreement”), as subsequently
amended on 23 March 2021 and 6 May 2022 entered into
between the Company and CEACI. The IC Products Supply
Agreement has a term of three years from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2023. As the 2021 Products Sales and
Distribution Agreement expired on 31 December 2023, and
the Company intends to continue carrying out the existing
arrangements with CEACI under the 2021 Products Sales
and Distribution Agreement on sales and distribution of the
IC Products within the territory as part of the Group’s usual
and ordinary course of business, the Company entered into
the 2024 Products Sales and Distribution Agreement with
CEACI on 14 November 2023 to renew the arrangements
under the 2021 Products Sales and Distribution Agreement
for a term of three years from 1 January 2024 to 31
December 2026. The IC Products supply transactions
contemplated under the IC Products Supply Agreement
constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions
for the Company under the Listing Rules and the Company
has complied with the relevant requirements under the
Listing Rules in respect of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions.

This represented the transaction amount for the supply of
IC and driver products from the Group to an associated
company of CEC which constituted a related party
transaction and did not constitute a continuing connected
party transaction under the Listing Rules.

This represented the testing service fees charged from
an associate of CEC to the Group which constituted
a continuing connected transaction. The transactions
contemplated are subject to reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements under the Listing Rules.

This represented the rental service charges from a subsidiary
of CEC to the Group which constituted a fully exempt
continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

This represented the software and IT services charges from
subsidiaries of CEC to the Group which constituted fully
exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules.

170 Solomon Systech (International) Limited | Annual Report 2024

3. BHAETXS (&)

(%)

(@)

MyEE -

(U]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)

ERERBERDAAEFTEE 780
B AR ([CEACL) FrsT i B
HA B20205F 108228 W53 ([1C
EmEEHZE] REEZR2021F3
H238 K2022F586H 55 » &
BAEZE 2023F12831HILFE
BICEACHEFEICK &2 E W ([1C
ERDNXZEE - ICEREER
EWHRA=F  H2021F1A1H
ZF2023F12A31H - AR2021FE
M E R D #H I EN2023F 12 831
BEm MAASRRAEERE
R—MEKBRED  EHE mfmm
¢Eﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%§ﬁcmmﬁ
TEEREERNEER P HICER
WIRA Z 3 A D FECEACIA
2023%F 11 B 14 BT M 2024 F = R85
RoEHE - 52021 FE RS
ERDHEBBEET WEPEHR2024F
1A1B 8220265128318 L E&
ZE ICEREBEHREBETRET
MICE m (/B XX 5 18 i L R A1
T$ﬁ7m#%%% BERS
Mz%#%%hﬁﬁé
S A AERE R E ©

13

ik >
4}&1

X3~

3 B S i

o - ol
o h—:m‘l’ &
]

Xt

Xl

ENRKRCECH — NI &
(5w B B9 R B IR S B
BMETHRABTRES
REEBERBRE -

ERFRCECH — MK B
EWERNWEERSEE -
AR AIET 2 E &S
BREG -

FEE 7 89T
TG RER
%mtmﬁ
BIERS o

\

o ot 1 T
R
a5 T
MMS



36. Related parties transactions (continued)

(a)

(b)

3. BHAETRS (&)

(continued) (@ (&)
The following were balances arising from such sales/ HEE RBERWIRE :
purchases:
2024 2023
Notes US$’000 US$’000
MIE FEx ETT
Trade receivables: PR : 23
Subsidiary of CEC REETFHHEAT 7,666 4,856
Associate of CEC FEEFHBEA - 82
Trade payables: B 29
Associate of CEC FEEFIEBEA 96 -
Prepayments: FAMN 23
Subsidiaries of CEC FEEFHRELR 225 221
Contract liabilities: aREeE: 29
Subsidiary of CEC FEIETFHHRBAR 167 456

Compensation of key management personnel of the

(b) XEBETEEBEASHERMN :

Group:
2024 2023
US$’000 us$’000
FEx FEn
Directors’ fees =¥ - _
Salaries, allowance, bonuses and other e REE AR
benefits HuER 1,883 1,662
Pension scheme contributions EREFTEIHR 51 44
Share-based payment expense RAERX 5 99
Total compensation paid to key ENEEEBAEZ
management personnel RPN Aa%E 1,939 1,805

Details of compensation of the Company’s directors are
disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

The transactions in respect of the above compensation of
key management personnel of the Group were exempted
from continuing connected transactions under the Listing

Rules.

RRBEEZ RN RRM

W -

FEULAEEETEEE A S RN
RXpe EmRAETHERR 25E

RFIFERARAF
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37. Statement of financial position and 3. X NB B RRERFEE
reserves of the Company

(a) Statement of financial position (a) BMBRRE
2024 2023
US$’000 US$’000
TE T Epe
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RMBARWIRE 55,209 55,209
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and other receivables FE U R R HL b E WK 61 52
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UK BfE B 1 B 3,543 3,244
Cash and cash equivalents RekBESEEY 60 236
Total current assets RBEEHES 3,664 3,532
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS B B A R 5K 6,668 6,629
Accrued expenses and other payables BEREMENR 247 189
Total current liabilities REBEEE 6,915 6,818
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE (3,251) (3,286)
NET ASSETS EEFE 51,958 51,923
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the EAFEREFEA
Company FE 4 R &
Issued capital 2T 32,193 32,166
Reserves ] 19,765 19,757
Total equity HEER 51,958 51,923
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37. Statement of financial position and
reserves of the Company (continued)

37. ?&%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂkiﬂ%&&ﬁﬁ

(b) Reserves (b) fRE
Equity
Share compensation Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BRAER

B RE B e RitEE Fo
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FER FERx FEx FEx
At 1 January 2023 72023F1 818 103,676 18,383 (102,747) 19,312
Profit for the year FR=A - - 151 151
Total comprehensive income 2EKEL - - 151 151
Equity-settled share option arrangements % < 2 3 A - 274 - 274
Exercise of share options TEERE 30 (10) - 20
At 31 December 2023 #2023%12831H 103,706 18,647 (102,596) 19,757
At 1 January 2024 2024F1A1H 103,706 18,647 (102,596) 19,757
Loss for the year FERER - - (108) (108)
Total comprehensive income 2HEKEAG - - (108) (108)
Equity-settled share option arrangements PR A FE 25 R A - 6 - 6
Exercise of share options TEERE 163 (53) - 110

Transfer of equity compensation reserve RT3

upon cancellation/laspe/forfeiture of /RSl 2 R

share options ERBMEEER - (384) 384 -
At 31 December 2024 M2024%F12A31H 103,869 18,216 (102,320) 19,765

38. Approval of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the
Board of Directors on 20 March 2025.

3. ZEMBHRREFM

AEESHBHMERTN2025F3F20AKE
EEEH-
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
US$ million BB %t

Sales HE 113.4 153.2 190.8 168.1 121.3
Gross profit ER 38.0 46.3 65.5 67.3 35.8
Net profit FRA 10.1 19.4 27.8 23.7 11.7

Assets and liabilities EENKERE

- Total assets —-HEE 163.7 157.4 158.3 139.9 94.2
- Total liabilities -HaE 26.7 30.5 491 53.2 30.8
- Shareholders’ funds -BRERER 137.0 126.9 109.2 86.7 63.4
US centsE4l
Earnings per share BREAR
- Basic (i) —E7K() 0.4 0.8 1.1 1.0 0.5
- Diluted (ii) - >-1(0) 0.4 0.8 1.1 1.0 0.5
Dividends per share BRERE - - - 0.1 0.1
Net assets per share () BREEFME() 5.49 5.09 4.38 3.48 2.56

(i) The basic earnings and net assets per share are based on the weighted average of 2,480,302,624,
2,488,069,886, 2,493,903,036, 2,495,151,529 and 2,496,128,581 ordinary shares in issue during each of the
years ended 31 December 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024, respectively.

BREXANEFNREREEFTHERE D IR EH E2020F » 20214 ~ 20224F ~ 2023F K2024F12HA31H L FE
REMNDHBITEZERINET Y E2,480,302,624% - 2,488,069,886/% * 2,493,903,0368% * 2,495,151,529/% &
2,496,128,581 15t & o

(i) For 2020, 2021, 2022, 2023 and 2024, the diluted earnings per share information is based on 2,480,516,010,
2,490,824,465, 2,495,276,295, 2,495,151,529 and 2,496,128,581 ordinary shares, respectively, which are the
adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of all dilutive/potential
share options outstanding during the year.

FA2020%F ~ 20214 ~ 20224 ~ 2023F K 2024%F » BRI ERFMNER 5 511%2,480,516,0108% ~ 2,490,824,4658%

2,495,276,2958% ~ 2,495,151,5200% } 2,496,128 58 1R EBRtE » NRBBRFEAFTEHRTEBERECFER
HARECBITMEFLIEBERTE -
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2013 Share Option
Scheme

201358 I A2 st 2l
AMEPD

Beijing ChipAdvanced
=z

Board
g

Cayman lIslands
Companies Law

MEHS QAR

CEC
FEIE

Code Provision(s)
F IR XX

The share option scheme approved by
shareholders for adoption at the annual
general meeting held on 28 May 2013

3Active Matrix Electrophoretic Display

Beijing Chip Beijing ChipAdvanced
Technology Inc. (AtZBZRIERHE
BR A &]), a company established in the
PRC, the shares of which are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 430094), and a connected
person of the Company;

Board of Directors

Companies Act (Revised), Cap. 22 of
the Cayman Islands, as amended or
re-enacted from time to time

CEAC International Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary
of CECI, and a connected person of
the Company

China Electronics Corporation, a
state-owned information technology
conglomerate under the administration
of the central government of the
PRC, is a substantial shareholder of
the Company through its interests in
Huada

FYPEEREEREERAT (CEC
Technology Co., Ltd.*™), a company
established in the PRC and an indirect
subsidiary of the CEC, and a connected
person of the Company

Code provision(s) in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in
Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

Committee of Sponsoring Organization
of the Treadway Commission is a
private sector initiative that has issued
internationally recognized internal
control frameworks

Chinese Yuan, Renminbi

BERAR

A2013F5 28 HETZRRBFARE L
SRR AL EER N A B IR RE 5T 2

E B E AR

TFERBEZRERBERAT S —KRH
BRINAFE  ERORLEERERS
Fr £ (R 1K55 : 430094) R B AR T
HBEEAL

BE=g

TRETREHNHENREHSEHE
228 N AE (BB K)

TEEFRMBEBEBRAE - REBEM
B Z2BRAT » BCECINZEKB AT

TEEFEEEXREARAR  —XRE
ERBRTEPRBAEENERETR
ERMEREE BBESZEANERS
KRB ZEERR

RINFEEBREENZEBRAA  RH
BEMR L 2BEREELT  ATHE
FEE-BENBAR

EHRAMBRCIE 2 REERTA S
By <7 Bl XX

Committee of Sponsoring Organization
of the Treadway Commission;g — I8 FA
EitE BRREBEEBRRINANEE
18

FET - AR®
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BERkAR

Company
/N

Current ratio
/}Ibib tt =
Director(s)
5=

Debt to equity ratio
ERERL R
ESL

BT HEERE
Gearing ratio
#EAELE
Group
rEE

HES
ERAX

HK$/HKD

BT
Hong Kong/HK/HKSAR
&8

HKAS

BB ETEL

HKFRS
BRMIERELES

D GLOSSARY

Solomon Systech (International)
Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Total current assets divided by total
current liabilities

The director(s) of the Company

Interest-bearing bank borrowing
divided by total equity

Electronic Shelf Label

Interest-bearing bank borrowing
divided by total equity

The Company and its subsidiaries

tRERNDRBHEBRRAGE (Beijing
Huada Empyrean Technology Co.,
Ltd.**), a company established in the
PRC, and a connected person of the
Company

Hong Kong dollars

Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region of the PRC

Hong Kong Accounting Standards

Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, or collectively for HKAS
and Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

Huada Semiconductor Co. Ltd., a
PRC company with limited liability
to consolidate all IC businesses
under CEC group. It is a substantial
shareholder of the Company

Integrated Circuit
Intellectual Property

Japanese Yen

Korean Won

Liquid Crystal Display
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Listing Rules
LA

LTPS

LLC
BRAE

MIPI

quel Code
% 5 B

NTD
e

OLED

PMOLED

PRC/Mainland China
RRER B K BE

R&D

S&D
HERDH
SFO

the Stock Exchange
5 32 Bt

TDDI
TFT

UK
EE]
USA
%H

US$/USD
Y

The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange

Low Temperature Polysilicon, a
technology for the manufacturing of
TFT-LCD

Limited liabilities company

Mobile Industry Processor Interface

Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in Appendix C3 to
the Listing Rules

New Taiwan dollars

Organic Light Emitting Diode
Passive Matrix Organic Light Emitting
Diode

The People’s Republic of China, for
the purpose of this report, excluded
Hong Kong and Macau Special
Administration Regions and Taiwan

Product design, development and
engineering

Selling and Distribution

Securities and Futures Ordinance

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

Touch and Display Driver Integration

Thin Film Transistor

United Kingdom
United States of America

US dollars

for identification purposes only

MPAXEREERALT | 2024FF 3R

B RS EmRA

BEZRY —BREFEERERS
BRI

AR

BETEEERAE

EHRBIMERCIIF 2 EHBEITAES
ETESTZNEESTA

maw
BRBEX_mE
WEBERE A —mEE

PEARANE - BAREMS - TEE
TEEBRRMENTREREE

EmRE HBERIRE

HERD W
CESE Y
BERBARSAARAT
CELLE R
AREAR
ARBEIE
£HEARE

XExT

177



Financial Calendar

Financial Year End
31 December

Announcement of Annual Results
20 March 2025

Share Listing

Listing Venue and Date
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
8 April 2004

HKSE Stock Code
2878

Board Lot
2,000 shares

Trading Currency
HKD

Issued Shares
2,497,752,351 (as at 31 December 2024)

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent
Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 31119

Grand Pavillion Hibiscus Way,

802 West Bay Road,

Grand Cayman

KY1-1205

Cayman Islands

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Website: www.tricoris.com

Independent Auditor

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King’s Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

Hong Kong Legal Advisor
Loeb & Loeb LLP
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Vistra (Cayman) Limited

P.O. Box 31119
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Board Members

Executive Director
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Hui

Dr. Kang Jian (resigned on 13 May 2024)

Ms. Liu Fei (appointed with effective from 13 May 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Chi Kong

Dr. Chan Philip Ching Ho

Dr. Kwok Hoi Sing

Authorized Representatives
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
Mr. Yu Chon Man

Company Secretary & Qualified Accountant
Mr. Yu Chon Man
CPA, FCCA

Corporate Communications/Investor Relations
Email: ir@solomon-systech.com

Principal Office

Unit 607-613, 6/F Wireless Centre
3 Science Park East Avenue

Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2207 1111

Fax: (852) 2267 0800

Website
www.solomon-systech.com
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This 2024 Annual Report (bilingual version in English and Chinese) has
been posted on the Company’s website at www.solomon-systech.com.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications (including but not limited to annual reports,
summary financial reports (where applicable), interim reports,
summary interim reports (where applicable), notices of meeting,
listing documents, circulars and proxy forms) via the Company’s
website and for any reason have difficulty in gaining access to the
Annual Report posted on the Company’s website will promptly upon
request be sent by post the Annual Report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of means of
receipt of the Company’s corporate communications.

Shareholders may request for printed copy of the Annual Report
or change their choice of means of receipt of the Corporate
Communications by sending reasonable notice in writing to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
or by sending an email to solomon2878-ecom@vistra.com.
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Solomon Systech (International) Limited

mfISLERBRLT

Unit 607-613, 6/F Wireless Centre,

3 Science Park East Avenue,

Hong Kong Science Park,

Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2207 1111  Fax: (852) 2267 0800

www.solomon-systech.com
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